PEASE DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY PUBLIC AGENDA
Thursday, January 19, 2017

Time: 8:30 a.m.

Place: 55 International Drive, Pease International Tradeport
Portsmouth, New Hampshire

AGENDA

L Call to Order

I Acceptance of Meeting Minutes: December 15, 2016*
II1. Public Comment

Iv. 0O1d Business

A. Reports
1. Spyglass Development LLC
B. Approvals '

1. Airport Obstruction Removal* (Torr)

V. Airport Committee Report* (Preston)
A. Approvals
1. CHI Aerospace Fuels, LLC - Flight School* (Allard)

VI.  Marketing Committee Report* (Loughlin)
A. Approvals
1. Royal Technology Group, Inc. — Hangar 227* (Lamson)

VII. Finance
A. Financial Reports
1. Operating Result for Five Month Period Ending November 30, 2016*
2. Nine Month Cash Flow Projections to September 30, 2017*

VII. Licenses/Easements/Rights of Way/Options
A. Approvals
1. In Control Family Foundation, Inc. — Right of Entry* (Preston)

IX. Leases
A. Reports
1. Pioneer Aviation, LLC*

B. Approvals
1. Two International Group, LLC — Lease Option* (Loughlin)

X. Signs
A. Approvals
1. Wentworth — Douglass Hospital — 73 Corporate Drive* (Lamson)

XI.  Contracts/Agreements
A. Reports*



XIL

XVL

XVIL

XVIIL

XIX.

*%
ok

I+

1. Alternative Sales — Clubhouse Kitchen
2 Eckhardt & Johnson, Inc. — Terminal HVAC System

B. Approvals
1. Ricci Lumber — Clubhouse Equipment (Allard)
2. Golf Car GPS Management System* (Preston)

Executive Director’s Reports/Approvals
A. Reports
L. Golf Course Operations
2. Airport Operations
a) Skyhaven Airport
b) PSM
c) Noise Line Report*

B. Approvals

1. Long Term Disability and Life Insurance - Renewals* (Lamson)

2. Bills for Legal Services* (Allard)

3. Delegation of Authority to Executive Director — Legal Services* (Loughlin)
Port Committee Report* (Loughlin)

Division of Ports and Harbors

A. Reports
1. Port Advisory Council
2. Operations Manager
3. Commercial Mooring Permit Transfer*

New Business

Upcoming Meetings
Board of Directors  March 16, 2017

All Meetings begin at 8 a.m. unless otherwise posted.

Directors’ Comments
Adjournment

Press Questions

Related Materials Attached

Related Materials Previously Sent

Related Materials will be provided under separate cover
Materials to be distributed at Board Meeting
Confidential Materials



PEASE DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY Thursday, December 15, 2016
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING
MINUTES

Presiding: George M, Bald, Chairman

Present: Robert A. Allard, Treasurer; John P. Bohenko; Margaret F. Lamson; Peter J. Loughlin,
Vice Chairman; and Franklin G. Torr '
Absent: Robert F. Preston

Attending: David R. Mullen, PDA Executive Director; Lynn Marie Hinchee, PDA Deputy
Director/General Counsel; PDA staff members; and members of the public

I. Call to Order

'Chairman Bald called the meeting to order at 10:08 a.m. in the Board conference room at 55
International Drive, Pease International Tradeport, Portsmouth, New Hampshire.

IL. Acceptance of Meeting Minutes: November 17, 2016

Director Bohenko moved and Director Allard seconded that The Pease Development Authority
Board of Directors hereby accept the Minutes of the November 17, 2016 Board meeting. Discussion:
None. Disposition: Resolved by unanimous vote for; motion carried.

IOI. Employee Recognitions

David Mullen, PDA Executive Director, and Tanya Coppeta, PDA Employee Relations Manager,
recognized the following PDA employees for their years of service:

25 Years

Jessica Patterson, IT Administrator, was awarded a certificate of service and $250.

20 Years

Mark Gardner, Deputy General Counsel was awarded a certificate of service, $100 and his name
will be engraved on the PDA plaque for long term employees.

15 Years

Dave Curtis, Airport Maintenance, and Jim Thurlow, Airport Maintenance/Skyhaven Airport,
were each awarded a certificate of service and $50

10 Years
Ed Pottberg, Airport Security Coordinator, was awarded a clock.

1v. Public Comment

Marcus Ebert, of Royal Technology Group (“RTG”), made comments about the use of Hangar
227 by RTG and the status of lease negotiations for the hangar.

Pease Development Authority Board of Directors December 15, 2016 Page 1



V. Old Business -
1. Release of Non-Public Minutes

Director Loughlin moved and Director Torr seconded that Having determined that pursuant to
NH RSA 91-A:3 the divulgence of a portion of the rion-public minutes of October 20, 2016 related
to Spyglass Development, LL.C will not: a) likely affect adversely the reputation of any person other
than a member of the body or agency itself; or b) render the proposed action ineffective; or c)
pertain to terrorism, the PDA Board of Directors hereby determines to release said minutes to the
public. Discussion: None. Disposition: Resolved by unanimous vote; motion carried.

2. Spyglass Development, LL.C — 30 New Hampshire Avenue

Director Allard moved and Director Lamson seconded that The Pease Development Authority
Board of Directors resolves as follows:

to direct the Executive Director to suspend negotiations with Spyglass Development LLC
with respect to the Letter of Intent dated October 14, 2016 for the premises located at 30 New
Hampshire Avenue and, without waiving any existing terms and conditions, permit the Lease
Agreement to expire by its terms on July 31, 2022. Director Bohenko moved and Director Allard
seconded that the Board suspend the rules to allow for public comments from representatives of
Spyglass Development regarding the pending motion. Discussion on the motion to suspend rules:
None. Disposition: Resolved by unanimous vote; motion carried.

Discussion on main motion: Rob Ciandella, Attorney for Spyglass Development LLC (Spyglass)
asked that the Board not pass the motion as presented. Atty. Ciandella reviewed the history of the
Spyglass lease at 30 New Hampshire Avenue, the Letter of Intent (“LOI”) for an expansion of the
premises dated October 14, 2016, and the status of negotiations. Atty. Ciandella stated that if the Board
does not continue negotiations, then Spyglass will sue the PDA. Atty. Ciandella reviewed the reasons
Spyglass believes negotiations should continue, including:

- To pass the motion would be an institutional mistake by the PDA; .

- No emergency need for the building and parking lot by PDA

- ALetter of Intent dated October 14, 2016 regarding expansion of the building is still pending

- PDA’s need for parking is based on future possibilities

- Spyglass should be allowed to draft a plan that would accommodate PDA’s future plans for
the premises as well as the needs of Spyglass’s tenant (Flex Energy)

- No negotiations have taken place since October, 2016 as ordered by the Board .

- PDA will lose rental revenues and incur legal fees to defend the resulting litigation

Atty. Ciandella reviewed the aviation activities at the Tradeport since 1993 and current activity at
other area airports. Atty. Ciandella noted that no parking studies, airport growth studies, or alternative
plan studies have been done to justify the basis of PDA’s stated need for parking. Atty. Ciandella
reviewed the materials prov1ded to Spyglass regarding PDA’s need for parking. Atty. Ciandella noted that
the premises are located in the Airport Business Commercial Zone while other areas considered for
parking are located in the Airport Zone and questioned why the premises would be considered for airport
use when it is zoned as business/commercial. Atty. Ciandella requested that the Board either ratify the
October 14, 2016 LOI or, in the alternative, consider following motion that Atty. Ciandella read into the
record.

The Pease Development Authority Board of Directors hereby moves to direct the Executive
Director to conduct a study of projected aviation growth and associated aviation related

Pease Development Authority Board of Directors December 15, 2016 Page 2



parking requirements and to study what alternatives exist for satisfying those projected
aviation parking related needs. The study shall be based on professional evaluations of
projected aviation activity at Pease and projected parking capacity and rental car
activity, in light of the emerging robotic automobile industry. Further, the Executive
Director is directed to present the results of the study to the Board at a regularly
scheduled meeting. The Board will take this study under advisement to allow interested
parties to review and comment on the study. Contemporaneously, the Executive Director
is directed to negotiate with Spyglass Development, LLC to fully explore options which
may exist either in the terms of the business deal or in the configuration of parcels and
buildings on the ground, to accommodate any aviation related parking need established by
the study which will be presented to the Board of Directors which cannot be satisfied by
alternative sites at Pease. If the Board adopts the study and its findings, the Executive
Director will present the Board with a revised Letter of Intent reflecting the
accommodations for aviation related parking needs.

In response to Director Bohenko, Atty. Ciandella confirmed that Spyglass would be willing to
work with PDA on the construction of a parking deck at a future time. Lynn Hinchee, PDA Deputy
Director/General Counsel, spoke of her concerns regarding the proposed motion which had not been
reviewed by Staff beforehand and Atty. Ciandella’s representation that there would be no alternatives to
the actions proposed in the motion. Issues of the negotiation include the difference between no
alternatives and the right of the Board as airport proprietor to have a preference. The Spyglass motion
would undo the Board’s right to make a determination in the best interest of the airport. If negotiations
continue, a new LOI would have to be drafted to deal with various issues proposed in the previous LOIL
including the altered rental structure. All issues should be considered in negotiations including costs
associated with parking. The motion presented by Spyglass was not presented to Staff beforehand and the
Staff should be allowed time to fully review it.

Chairman Bald felt that there is a general misunderstanding of the difficulties in redeveloping a
military facility into a business facility and PDA’s mission to develop Tradeport business over the years.
Chairman Bald reviewed the history of the businesses at 30 New Hampshire. Chairman Bald felt that the
parties should take the time fo review negotiations and consider all options regarding use of the building
and PDA’s needs for parking in support of the airport and find a solution for PDA needs and Spyglass’s
need. Director Lamson felt that the issue is long range planning needs. Director Bohenko considered
taking a recess to allow the attorneys time to review the motion. Director Loughlin stated his support for
additional parking studies and his concerns with preserving flexibility of the use of the premises by PDA;
and that the matter should be continued for one month to give Staff time to review the issues.

Director Bohenko felt that the Board needs to get a better understanding of aviation growth and
options for parking. Director Torr questioned whether Spyglass has explored the option of relocation Flex
Energy to its other site at 166 Corporate Drive or another site that would accommodate FlexEnergy’s
needs. The Board and Staff continued to discuss whether PDA’s proposed motion should be tabled until
the January, 2017 Board mieeting and if Spyglass’s motion should be used as a template. Chairman Bald
confirmed with Mr. Mullen that. Staff understands the Board’s policy. Mr. Mullen noted that the parties
are looking for options satisfactory to both sides

Director Loughlin felt that decisions cannet be made on possible and presently unknown future
aviation activity. Parking is critical to the growth of the airport. PDA must balance the interests of future
airport development with the needs of landside development. Director Bohenko asked if the Spyglass
motion could be expanded to include a parking deck and require Spyglass to look at alternate locations for
Flex Energy. Attorney Hinchee informed the Board that the most compelling concern of the Spyglass
motion is that it requires Staff to show that nothing else will work or will satisfy Spyglass. In its

Pease Development Authority Board of Directors December 15, 2016 Page 3



governmental capacity as a Board and a landlord, the Board has the right to determine what is best for
PDA and look at various options. Director Lamson asked if there would be any issues with TSA if a
parking deck was built near the airport. Director Bohenko withdrew his request to use the motion asa
template and requested that the Board be provided with an outline of topics to be discussed with Spyglass.
Attorney Hinchee confirmed that Staff will work with Spyglass’s counsel to set the meeting agenda and
provide the Board with the outline.

Director Loughlin confirmed that the motion would be continued until January and that the
parties will explore all options available to PDA and Spyglass. Director Torr expressed his concerns that
PDA is being “boxed in” and that all options for use of the premises for future development in support of
the airport should be explored. Director Torr expressed his strong support for the airport. Chairman Bald
confirmed that the Board is not committed to any action, but will wait until January to vote to allow time
to provide the Board with better information. Director Allard questioned if Spyglass has looked at other
sites for relocation of Flex Energy’s business.

Michael Kane, principal of Kane Company, stated that he believes the only PDA issue is the 580
parking spaces needed for airport expansion. Flex Energy has put $3 million in infrastructure
improvements in the building. Flex Energy would need to relocate, possibly out of state, if its building
needs cannot be accommodated. Mr, Kane stated that Spyglass would commit to build and pay for a2 580
space parking deck if Spyglass was allowed to-stay at 30 New Hampshire Avenue if the parking spaces
are needed in the future. All reasonable alternatives need to be explored.

Attorney Hinchee informed the Board that PDA’s concerns are not solely related to parking, but
to the use of the parcel and building in general. Spyglass has not provided any reasons that would
preclude PDA. from exploring and advising Spyglass other reasons as to why the site is uniquely suited to
PDA needs. Mr. Kane felt that nothing has changed with the building structurally since the start of
negotiations of the LOIL The only issue is the 580 parking spaces. He was not aware of any other
concerns and asked that a study be done before forcing Flex Energy to leave.

Maria Stowell, PDA Engineer, reported that the 580 parking spaces are indicated on a plan
proposed by Spyglass and are not part of PDA’s plans. PDA has reviewed parking needs and developed
parking plans. PDA also has building facility needs which could be alleviated by PDA using the building
for PDA staff, rental car offices and other concessions. While retaining the building, PDA plans would be
able to create over 600 parking spaces.

Director Lamson reviewed the history of the building’s construction and the number of
employees at Flex Energy. Attorney Hinchee confirmed that Spyglass built an extension on the former
Air Force building that PDA improved with EDA grant funds. Mr. Mullen reviewed the ownership
history of the building.

Director Bohenko moved and Director Allard moved to table the motion, Discussion: None.
Disposition: Resolved by unanimous vote; motion carried.

VL Golf Committee Report

Director Bohenko reported that the Golf Committee met on December 15,2016, The Committee
was updated on proposed clubhouse improvements.” The Committee recommended that the Board
approve the golf car contract, the rate increase for the use of golf cars; and the update to the tee time
reservation system. Director Lamson commended Scott DeVito, PGA General Manager, and the Golf

Course staff for their good work.

Pease Development Authority Board of Directors December 15, 2016 Page4



A. Approvals
1. Golf Cars

Director Torr moved and Director Lamson seconded that Im accordance with -the
recommendation of the Pease Development Authority Golf Committee, the Pease Development
Authority Board of Directors hereby approves of and authorizes the Executive Director to enter
into a contract with Country Club Enterprises of Wareham, MA, in the amount of $66,420 per year
for a period of five (5) years (including an option to terminate the Contract at the end of four (4)
years at the sole discretion of the PDA) for the lease and servicing of 90 electric golf cars as
described in the memo by Scott DeVito, Golf Course General Manager, dated December 6, 2016
attached hereto. Discussion: In response to Director Loughlin, Director Bohenko confirmed that the
Golf Course staff had reviewed the staggered contract approach for the leasing of golf cars and found that
the cost was higher than the proposed contracts. Disposition: Resolved by unanimous vote; motion
catried.

2. Golf Car Rate Increase

Director Lamson moved and Director Allard seconded that In accordance with the
recommendation of the Pease Golf Committee, the Pease Development Authority Board of
Directors hereby approves of and authorizes the Pease Golf Course to implement rate increases for
players’ use of the Golf Cars effective March 1, 2017; all in accordance with the memorandum
from Scott DeVito, PGA General Manager dated December 9, 2016 attached hereto. Discussion:
None. Disposition: Resolved by unanimous vote; motion carried.

3. EZ Links Reservation System

Director Bohenko moved and Director Allard seconded that Im accordamce with the
recommendation of the Pease Development Authority Golf Committee, the Pease Development
Authority Board of Directors hereby approves of and authorizes the Executive Director to enter
into the contract with EZLinks of Chicago, IL in an annual amount of $9,936, and a one-time
subscription fee of $500 (a total cost of $10,436 for the first year) for a web-based
reservation/marketing system; all in accordance with the memorandum of Scott DeVito, PGA
General Manager, dated December 8,2016 attached hereto.

In accordance with the provisions of RSA 12-G:8 VII, the Board waives the RFP
requirement based on the following reasons:

1. EZLinks is the successor company to Integrated Business Solutions (“IBS”), the original
supplier of the software;

2. EZLinks is the only company that provides software that will interface with IBS
systems;

3. Itis cost effective to continue using the current system instead of purchasing a new
system.

Note: This motion requires 5 affirmative votes. Discussion: Disposition: Resolved by unanimous
roll call vote; motion carried.

Pease Development Authority Board of Directors December 15, 2016 Page 5



VII. Finance
A. Financial Reports
1. Operating Results for Four Month Period Ending October 31, 2016

Irv Canner, PDA Director of Finance, reported on the status of the PDA FY 2017 finances for the
four month period ending October 31, 2016, including: trends in operating revenues and operating
expenses; variances in rental facilities fee revenues, fuel sales, golf merchandise sales, and staffing costs.
Mr. Canner reviewed the changes in the Balance Sheet due to the reduction in the number of construction
projects. Mr. Canner reported on the status of the revolving line of credit (zero balance) and pension
liabilities. A review of the Business Units showed that enplanements at PSM are at 58,715 as of
November 30%, a 30% increase from last year. Mr. Canner reviewed Skyhaven Airport’s (“DAW™);
operating revenues and expenses. To date, PDA has absorbed $1.5 million for operations and capital
improvements at Skyhaven Airport. A review of the Golf Course operations for the same period last year
showed increases in golf course revenues, bar and grill sales, and rounds of golf played. The Division of
Ports and Harbors’ (“DPH”) operating revenues remains in line with the budget. Director Allard
confirmed that the ME DOT contract with DPH ends in December, 2017 and that DPH is actively
pursuing replacement revenues.

2. Nine Month Cash Flow Projections to August 31,2017

Mr. Canner reviewed PDA cash flow projections for the nine month period ending August 31,
2017, including the projected ending cash balance of $5.0 million; grant funded and non-grant funded
construction expenditures. Mr. Canner reported on the effect of the changes in the Federal Reserve
interest rates on PDA’s revolving line of credit and borrowing costs. Mr, Canner reported on the
variances in DPH cash balances. The Revolving Loan Fund is now in excess of 90% in loan coverages as
loan applications have increased. The loan funds continue to be monitored to ensure that loans can
continue to be made.

Director Lamson asked about the grants used for tree cutting. Ms. Stowell reviewed the FAA
grants beginning in 2009 that PDA has used for obstruction study, environmental assessment, and the
second phase of the obstruction study.

VIII. Leases
A. - Reports

In accordance with the “Delegation to Executive Director: Consent, Approval of Sub-sublease
Agreements”, Mr. Mullen reported on the following subleases:

1. 222 International, LP

222 International, LP entered into a sublease with Technical Needs North, Inc. for 1,521 square
feet at 195 New Hampshire Avenue for a base term of 5 years. Director Lamson approved the sublease.

2. 119 International Drive, LLC

119 International Drive, LLC entered into a sublease with Liberty Mutual Insurance Company for
4,966 square feet at 15 Rye Street for a base term of five years. Director Lamson approved the sublease.

Pease Development Authority Board of Directors December 15, 2016 Page 6



3. Pioneer Aviation, LL.C

Pioneer Aviation, LLC entered into a sublease with Sig Sauer, Inc. for 16,400 square feet at 125
Aviation Avenue for a base term of three years. Director Loughlin approved the sublease.

B. Approvals
1. Two International Group, LLC — Lease Option

Director Loughlin moved and Director Lamson seconded that The Pease Development
Authority Board of Directors authorizes the Executive Director to execute such document necessary
and desirable to grant an option to Two International Group, LLC (“TIG”) for the 11 acre parcel
located at 100 New Hampshire Avenue, subject to the release of the existing option held by Client
80-R or December 31, 2016, whichever occurs first, for a period of six (6) months at a fee of
$12,100.00; with one (1) six (6) month option to extend at a fee of $24,200.00 exercisable by mutual
agreement of the parties; all on substantially the same terms and conditions set forth in the Option
Agreement and Term Sheet attached hereto. Discussion: Mr. Mullen informed the Board that the
subject parcel is the last large area parcel available for development and could also be considered for use
as a parking area for the Airport. Chairman Bald moved and Director Bohenko seconded to table the
motion until the January 19, 2017 Board meeting to allow Staff time to review the parking issues.
Discussion on motion to table: None. Disposition: Resolved by unanimous vote; motion to table carried.

IX. Signs
A, Reports

1. ConvenientMD — 111 New Hampshire Avenue

In accordance with the “Delegation to Building Inspector: Consent and Approval of Minor
Revisions to Existing Signs”; Mr. Mullen reported that PDA approved of the modification to the Seacoast
Media Group sign to add the name of ConvenientMD, a new subtenant. Chairman Bald approved the sign
modifications.

2. 119 International Drive, LL.C — 15 Rye Street

In accordance with the "Delegation to Building Inspector: Consent and Approval of Minor
Revisions to Existing Signs”, Mr. Mullen reported that PDA approved of the replacement of the sign at 15
Rye Street with a slightly larger sign. Director Loughlin approved the sign modification.

X. Contracts/Agreements

A, Approvals _
1. Cross Insurance — Policy Renewals

Director Lamson moved and Director Torr seconded that The Pease Development Authority
Board of Directors authorizes the Executive Director to accept and bind insurance coverages for
the Pease Development Authority to be provided by Cross Insurance Agency for the period of
12/31/16 through 12/31/17 in the projected amount of $160,680.65; all in accordance with the
Proposed Premium Summary attached hereto. Discussion: None. Disposition: Resolved by
unanimous vote; motion carried.

Pease Development Authority Board of Directors December 15, 2016 Page 7



2. USDA APHIS Wildlife Control/Monitoring

Director Allard moved and Director Torr seconded that The Pease Development Authority
Board of Directors authorizes the Executive Director to execute a contract with the United States
Department of Agriculture Wildlife Sexrvice (USDA WS) from January 1, 2017 through December
31, 2017, in the amount of $18,902.09 for the purpose of providing integrated turkey, other large
bird, and animal control and monitoring services at the Airfield; all in accordance with the
memorandum of Andrew Pomeroy, Airport Operations Supervisor, dated December 5, 2016, and
attached hereto.

In accordance with the provisions of RSA 12-G:8 VIII, the Board justifies the waiver of the RFP
requirement based on the following reasons:

1. PDA has a long standing relationship with USDA WS stemming back to the time
PDA was formed. As a part of that ongoing relationship, the USDA WS has maintained
ongoing wildlife surveys, with data dating back to its first arrival at Pease. PDA does not
want to interrupt this data stream.

2. The USDA WS conducts training classes for PDA Airport Operations Personnel on
Airport Wildlife Hazard Management, to meet FAR 139 requirements. USDA is the FAA
recognized authority for such required training,

Note: This motion requires 5 affirmative votes. Discussion: In response to Director Lamson, Andrew
Pomeroy, Airport Operations Supervisor, reviewed the services and areas that are monitored under the
contract, Disposition: Resolved by unanimous roll call vote; motion carried.

3. Holliston Sand & Gravel — Runway Sand

Director Loughlin moved and Director Allard seconded that The Pease Development Authority
Board of Directors hereby approves of and authorizes the Executive Director to execute a contract
with Holliston Sand & Gravel of Slatersville, RI, for the period of December 1, 2016 through
November 30, 2017 for the purpose of providing FAA approved runway sand for the Airport
runways at the price of $99.05 per ton; in accordance with the memo from Andrew Pomeroy,
Airport Operations Manager, dated November 30, 2016, attached hereto. Discussion: None.
Disposition: Resolved by unanimous vote; motion carried.

4. Cryotech Deicing Technology — Runway Deicing Liquid

Director Torr moved and Director Allard seconded that The Pease Development Authority -
Board of Directors hereby approves of and authorizes the Executive Director to execute a contract
with Cryotech Deicing Technology of Fort Madison, IA, for the purpose of purchasing runway
deicing liquid at a price of $4.67 per gallon for a period of December 1, 2016 through November 30,
2017, all in accordance with the memorandum of Andrew Pomeroy, Airport Operations Manager,
dated November 30, 2016, attached hereto. Discussion: In response to Director Lamson, Mr. Pomeroy
confirmed that PDA has used Cryotech in the past. Disposition: Resolved by unanimous vote; motion
carried.

5. Nachurs Alpiné Solutions Industrial — Runway Deicing Solid
Director Bohenko moved and Director Loughlin seconded that The Pease Development

Authority Board of Directors hereby approves of and authorizes the Executive Director to execute

Pease Development Authority Board of Directors December 15,2016 Page 8



a contract with Nachurs Alpine Solutions Industrial of Marion, OH, for the purpose of purchasing
sodinm formate based runway deicing solid at the price of $0.599 per pound for a period of
December 1, 2016 through November 30, 2017, all in accordance with the memorandum of Andrew
Pomeroy, Airport Operations Manager, dated November 30, 2016, attached hereto. Discussion:
Disposition: Resolved by unanimous vote; motion carried.

XI. Executive Director’s Reports/Approvals
A, Reports
1. Elections

Mr. Mullen informed the Board that in accordance with Article III, Section 3.4 of the PDA By-
Laws, the Vice Chairman and Treasurer need to be elected for 2017:

A.  Vice Chairman

Director Lamson moved the motion and Director Bohenko seconded that Peter Loughlin be
elected as Vice-Chairman of the Pease Development Authority. Discussion: None. Disposition:
Resolved by unanimous vote: motion carried.

B. Treasurer

Director Loughlin moved the motion and Director Torr seconded that Robert Allard be elected’
as Treasurer of the Pease Development Authority. Discussion: None. Disposition: Resolved by
unanimous vote: motion carried.

2. Committee Appointments
Chairman Bald appointed Directors to the following Committees:

Standing Committees

Executive Committee

Marketing and Economic Development Committee
P

George Bald, Chair eter Loughlin, Chair
Peter Loughlin. Vice Chairman Robert Preston
Robert Allard, Treasurer Frank Torr

Staff Contact: Mullen/Hinchee

Finance Committee

Robert Allard, Chair

John Bohenko

Margaret Lamson

Staff Contact: Mullen/Canner

Airport Committee

Robert Preston, Chair

Robert Allard

Margaret Lamson

Staff Contact: Hopper/Stowell

Ad Hoc Advisory Committees

Capital Improvement and

Pease Development Authority

Staff Contact: Mullen

Zoning Adjustment & Appeals Committee

Frank Torr, Chair

Peter Loughlin

George Bald .
Staff Contact: Hinchee/Stowell

Board of Directors December 15. 2016 Page 9



Land Planning Committee
Peter Loughlin, Chair

Robert Allard

Frank Torr

George Bald

Staff Contact: Hinchee/Stowell

Golf Committee

John Bohenko, Chair

Robert Allard

Robert Preston

Staff Contact: Mullen/DeVito

Audit Committee
John Bohenko, Chair
Peter Loughlin
Robert Preston™
Staff Contact: Canner

Transportation Management Committee

Margaret Lamson, Chair
John Bohenko

Frank Torr

Staff Contact: Stowell

Port Committee

Peter Loughlin, Chair

Frank Torr

John Bohenko _

Ex Officio: Chair DPH Advisory Council
Staff Contact: Mullen/Marconi

Legal Bill Review
George Bald, Chair
Peter Loughlin

Frank Torr

Staff Contact: Hinchee

3.  PDA Holiday Schedule — 2017

Chairman Bald reported that PDA employees will observe the following holidays in 2017:

New Year’s Day (Observed) Monday January 2
Martin Luther King/Civil Rights Day (Observed) Monday January 16
Presidents’ Day (Observed) Monday February 20
Memorial Day (Observed) Monday May 29
Independence Day Tuesday July 4

Labor Day Monday September 4
Columbus Day (Observed) Monday October 9
Veterans’ Day (Observed) Friday November
Thanksgiving Thursday November 23
Day after Thanksgiving Friday November 24
Christmas Day Monday December 25

4. Golf Course Operations

Scott DeVito, PGA General Manager, reported on the activities at the Pease Golf Course. The
Pro Shop and Titleist held golf club fitting sessions during the year which helped increase the Golf Shop
merchandise sales. Staff is working with Titleist to conduct fitting sessions in 2017. The course closed for
the season on December 4, 2016. Golf Course Maintenance are getting the course ready for winter.
Activity has increased in the simulator rooms and membership applications are being processed for 2017.

5. Airport Operations

Andrew Pomeroy, Airport Operations Supervisor, reported on aviation activities.

a)

PSM

As of November 30%, enplanements at PSM are at 58,715 and 117,383 passengers have gone

Pease Development Authority

Board of Directors December 15, 2016 Page 10



2016. The Council reviewed the UNH Marine Department “Living Bridge” project at the Memorial
Bridge in Portsmouth,

Mr. Marconi reported that for the third year the Division of Motor Vehicles (“DMV™) and the
Division of Ports and Harbors (“DPH”) held a commercial licensing and permit program on December 8,
2016, to allow commercial fishermen to renew vessel registrations and fishing licenses at the DMV
offices in Dover, NH instead of having to go to Concord, NH to complete the registrations. A second
session will be held at the Dover DMV offices on January 19, 2017 from 8:30 a.m. — 12:30 p.m.

2. Commercial Mooring Transfer

Mr. Marconi reported that in accordance with the “Delegation to Executive Director: Consent,
Approval and Execution of Mooring Permit Transfers”, commercial moorings were transferred for:

~ Date of
Applicant Permit Business Approval
Rye Harbor No. 397 Commercial Fishing 11/10/16
Transferor: Randell Collins
Transferee: Joshua Crooks

B. Approvals
1. Bills for Legal Services

Director Torr moved and Director Lamson seconded that The Pease Development Authority
Board of Directors authorizes the Executive Director to expend funds in the total amount of $90.00
for legal services rendered to the Division of Ports and Harbors by:

1. Susan Marshall, Esq.
Through August 30, 2016 $90.00

Discussion: None. Disposition: Resolved by unanimous vote; motion carried.
XITI. New Business

No new business was brought before the Board,

XIV. TUpcoming Meetings
1. 2017 Proposed Meetings Schedule

Chairman Bald presented the 2017 proposed meetings schedule and asked the Directors to let him
know if any revisions need to be made. The following meetings will be held in January:

Finance Committee January 17, 2017 8:00 a.m.
Golf Committee January 17, 2017 8:30 am.
Board of Directors January 19, 2017 8:00 a.m.

All Meetings begin at 8 a.m. unless otherwise posted.

Pease Development Authority Board of Directors December 15, 2016 Page 12



XV. Directors’ Comments

Director Bohenko informed the Board that he will not be available for the January Finance, Golf, and
Board meetings and asked to be excused. Director Allard informed the Board that he will be out of town
beginning in January and also will not be available to attend the Japuary meetings, but will participate via
telephone. The January Finance Committee and Golf Committee meetings will be rescheduled. Director
Torr asked that all offer good wishes to Director Preston as he recovers from surgery.

XVL Adjournment

Director Allard moved and Director Bohenko seconded to adjourn the Board meeting,
Discussion: None. Disposition: Resolved by unanimous vote; motion carried. Meeting adjourned at
11:58 a.m.

XVIL. Press Questions
No members of the press attended the meeting.

Respectfully submitted,

David R. Mullen |

Executive Director/Secretary

Pease Development Authority Board of Directors December 15, 2016 Page 13



55 International Drive, Portsmouth, NH 83801

MOTION
Director Torr

The Pease Development Authority Board of Directors hereby
approves of the airport obstruction removal and lighting project as
presented on the associated drawings depicting the scope of work required
to be undertaken which plans are attached hereto.

The Board also authorizes the Executive Director to spend funds in
an estimated amount of $92,000 to provide wetland mitigation. for the
impacts of the obstruction removal and lighting project as a prerequisite
to securing a wetlands permit all in accordance with the memorandum
from Maria J. Stowell, P.E. - Manager - Engineering dated January 13, 2017
attached hereto.

In accordance with the provisions of RSA 12-G:8 VI, the Board
justifies the waiver of the RFP requirement based on the following reéasons:

1. There remain uncertainties as to what mitigation projects
will be approved and undertaken; and

2. Submitting the grant application by the deadline is
contingent upon completing the wetland mitigation projects

and obtaining a wetlands permit.

Note: This motion requires 5 affirmative votes.

N:\RESOLVES\AirportObstructionRemoval117.docx

OO0OOCO TAKING YOU THERE

‘ph: 603-433-6088 fax: 6N3.427.0422 www nenssdny nra



SE

PEASE

INTERNATIONAL

DEVELOPMENT
AUTHORITY

MEMORANDUM

To: David R. Mullen, Executive Director . "

From: Maria J. Stowell, P.E., Engineering Manager \.um
Andrew B. Pomeroy, C.M., Airport Operations Manager

Date: January 13, 2017

Subject: PSM Obstruction Removal and Lighting Project

In 2011 and again in 2014, the PDA Board accepted AIP Grants and approved the corresponding contracts to
design and bid a project to remove airspace obstructions associated with Portsmouth International Airport. At
this time, we have completed: the identification of airspace obstructions that are hazards; field mapping
including wetland delineation; wildlife surveys; a NEPA Categorical Exclusion determination including a review
under the Historic Preservation Act; and 90% project drawings. Alteration of Terrain and Wetland Permits are
pending, with the intention of bidding the project and using the bid resultsto apply to FAA for the construction
phase of the work before the May 1% deadline.

Staff would typically bring a project back to the Board once it has been bid and all costs are known. However,
the obstruction removal project, as it is now designed, has sparked concerns from Newington Town officials
and residents. The Town has contacted Directors Lamson and Loughlin, as well as its Town Counsel to inform
them of its concerns over PDA’s project design. Staff believes that that the project has been designed to comply
with FAA regulations and Grant Assurances, to protect the airport from undue safety risks, and to remain within
PDA’s jurisdiction concerning use of its property. However, to ensure that the project conforms to the wishes
of the Board, | ask that you present the design to the Board for approval. We will also need Board approval to-
spend approximately $92,000 related to securing a wetland permit for the project.

A brief history of the evolution of the project may be helpful. In 2009 and 2010, work began to identify airspace
obstructions that may pose a hazard to aircraft. By studying available aerial photogrammetry, HTA discovered
a number of items, both manmade structures and natural vegetation, that penetrate defined approach and
departure surfaces. Information regarding all of these penetrations was submitted to FAA as part of an
aeronautical study. The FAA response specified which of the penetrations are presumed hazards (see Part 77
Regulations below). PDA is now obligated to mitigate the hazards.

A number of the hazards are located off-airport on private property containing a duplex housing unit, and on
property owned by the Town of Newington. As required by FAA; PDA approached the owners of these parcels
proposing to remove the hazards through the acquisition of avigation easements. We were not successful in
obtaining easements or any other rights related to removing the hazards off-airport. Therefore, we have no-
choice but to mitigate these hazards by an alternative method of lighting.

There are also hazards on airport property. These consist of about 28 non-contiguous acres of trees (plans
attached). Because removal of the trees on this land is within PDA’s jurisdiction, provided that certain
approvals are acquired, we have designed a project that will eliminate these hazards and prevent their re-
establishment. Following is a partial listing of the applicable approvals.

TAKING YOU THERE



National Historic Preservation Act (NHPA)

Since PDA is seeking federal funding to remove trees, the project requires a review in the context of the
National Historic Preservation Act. This review began in 2011 through a filing with the NH Division of Historic
Resources (DHR), and ended in late 2015 with a Cultural Resources Effect Memo determination that “There
will be No Adverse Effect on Historic or Archaeological Properties” (attached). The NHPA provides that this
determinatjon be made by FAA with concurrence from DHR. Prior to issuing this determination, FAA consulted
with the Town of Newington. {See attached letters dated August 26, 2015 and November 9, 2015.)

National Environmental Protection Act (NEPA)

Again, because federal funding is anticipated, the project is required to conform to the provisions of NEPA.
Based on criteria specified in its review checklist, FAA determined that the project meets the requirements for
a Categorical Exclusion (CATEX). (Documentation attached.)

NHDES Alteration of Terrain and Wetlands Permits

The project involves the disturbance of soil and temporary wetland impacts that require the cited State
Permits. It is in its capacity tQ review and comment on the wetland permit, that the Town of Newington has
raised concerns that span issues from noise to viewscapes.

Staff believes that the project’s review and permit process has sufficiently protected local resources.
Furthermore, we believe that we have limited the actual removal of trees as much as possible without risking
safety, defaults on grant assurances, and future FAA funding. Following are excerpts from salient rules and
regulations, which obligate PDA's action to mitigate these hazards.

Code of Federal Regulations (CFR)

The following from CFR Title 14: Aeronautics and Space. Chapter |, Subchapter E specifies rules for
identifying ohstructions and determining which obstructions are hazards.

PART 77—SAFE, EFFICIENT USE, AND PRESERVATION OF THE NAVIGABLE AIRSPACE
Subpart C—Standards for Determining Obstructions to Air Navigation or Navigationdl Aids or Facilities
§77.13 Applicability.

This subpart describes the standards used for determining obstructions to air navigation, navigational aids, or
navigational facilities. These standards apply to the following:

{a) Any object of natural growth, terrain, or permanent or temporary construction or alfteration, including
equipment or materials used and any permanent or temporary apparatus.

(b} The alteration of any permanent or temporary existing structure by a change in its height, including
appurtenances, or lateral dimensions, including equipment or material used therein



§77.15 Scope.

(a) This subpart describes standards used to determine obstructions to air navigation that may affect the safe
and efficient use of navigable airspace and the operation .of planned or existing air navigation and
communication focilities. Such facilities include air navi"gation aids, communication equipment, airports,
Federal airways, instrument approach or departure procedures, and approved off-airway routes.

(b) Objects that are considered obstructions under the standards described in this subpart are presumed
hazards to air navigation unless further aeronautical study concludes that the object is not a hazard. Once
further aeronautical study has been initiated, the FAA will use the standards in this subpart, along with FAA
policy and guidance material, to determine if the object is & hazard to air navigation,

Airport Improvements Program Grant Assurances

Each time that PDA accepts a grant through the Airport Improvement Program, it cert'_iﬁes that it will comply
with thirty-nine specific rules pertaining to administration and operation of the airport. Grant Assurance
Number 20 refers to hazards.

The sponsor hereby assures and certifies; with respect to this grant that:

20. It will take appropriate action to assure that such terminal airspace as is required to protect instrument and
visual operations to the airport (including established minimum flight aititudes) will be adequately cleared and
protected by removing, lowering, relocating, marking, or lighting or otherwise mitigating existing airport hazards
and by preventing the establishment or creation of future airport hazards.

Airport Improvements Program Handbook

The AIP Handbook provides guidance and sets forth policy and procedures used in the administration of the
Airport Improvement Program. Paragraph b of Section 3-23 FAA Mandatory Standards calls into question the
funding for the runway rehabilitation project if airspace is not cleared:

b. Safe Approaches for Runway Projects (Clear Approaches). The FAA has interpreted 49 USC § 47105(b){3) to mean
that safe approaches are part of the FAA standards that must be met for runway projects. Per FAA policy, the ADO
must not fund the rehabilitation, construction, or extension of any section of a run way that the ADO has determined
will not be usable due to unsafe approaches using the latest version.of Advisory Circular 150/5300-13, Airport Design.

For these reasons, staff recommends that the 28 acres of trees situated on PDA property that have been
identified as hazards be removed and the areas be maintained by periodic mowing (by brush hog).

Finally, with regard to wetland permitting, the 28 acre area includes 2.5 acres of wetlands - 1.76 acres in
Newington and 0.79 in Portsmouth. In a 2014 vote, the Board approved spending for fees to apply for wetland
and alteration of terrain permits for this project. We now know that securing a wetland permit will require
mitigation totaling approximately $92,000. This amount will either be paid into the Aquatic Resource
Mitigation (ARM) Fund or it will be used to implement mitigation projects identified by the local conservation
commissions and approved by NHDES. We anticipate that the amount will be reimbursed by the tree removal
grant. However, we are required to have the permit in hand before applying for the grant and we are required
to pay the fee before receiving the permit.



As stated, the mitigation projects are proposed by the municipalities. Portsmouth has identified a project that
‘has received DES approval. Newington has not yet done so. {f we are successful in using focal municipal
projects for mitigation, PDA would need to hire professionals for design and monitoring services and then hire
contractors for the installation. Since time is of the essence, staff is proposing to use contractors that have
recently been contracted by PDA, the State, or the municipality. We would be relying on that recent
procurement process to satisfy the typical selection criteria, triggering the need for a waiver from PDA’s

procurement policy.

In addition to the attachments cited above, | have included with this memo selected project drawings. These
show the clearing sites and associated upland and wetland areas. They also show the locations of an
obstruction light at the airport’s south end and hazard beacon at the north end.

At next week’s Board meeting, please seek approval:

1. For the airport obstruction removal and lighting project as presented on the attached drawings; and,

2. To spend funds in an estimated amount of $92,000 to provide wetland mitigation for the impacts of
the obstruction removal and lighting project. In doing so the Board will waive the RFP procedure due
to the uncertainties in specifying the type of work at this time, and the need to meet the grant

submission deadline.

N:A\ENGINEER\Board Memos\2017\Newington Tree Removal.docx



B0
'Sa'l

Cultiral Resouices Effsct Memo Delton e S ONMENT
N » - $le ot 0%
Eraject Téwn: Newinglon and Portsmonth Daté: Deésiithitr 2; 2015 VENTD
StafeNo.: NA. ARF 2758 3 DERSATMENT OF
StafeNo.; NA. R R7L58 FederalNa; {as applicable): NA. - SEANSPORTATION

Pursuant o a meeting on October 21, 2015, and for thc pirpess of compliznee with the répulations of National
Historic Preservation Act and the Advzsory Coyticdl on-Historle Présérvation’s procedures for the Prolection of
Histaric Prqpemes (36 CER B00), the NH Division of Historioal Resources and the Federal Aviatiari
tnistration {FAA) have coordifted the identifiostion and evalontion of cultural resotrees refafive to

(projeot dsscﬁptian)

The Pease Bevelopment Authority (PDA) proposss to address aitspace obsfructions at Portsmouth biternationel
Adrport at Pegse (PSM).

In 2009, a studly was conducted to. identify sirspace obstructions in. dnd trevind PSN uging acifal fhetogrammetry
to eallect elevations of tree canopies gnd pisn-msde: structures. Identified obstrotions were sibmitted to the FAA
for évaluation and determination if they posed a risk to afrotaft operatinig on and areund the airport, The FAA
conciuded that many of the obstructions:néed fo be addiessed, The projeet As pmpesed inoludgs removal of
ebstructions (irees) looated within fhie airport houndary, and fnstallation of Hghting.to light obstrictions located
both on airpert property and on piivate property, outside oFthe airpott beundaxy that canmos be removed at this
timg due to the combination of: signiﬁcant and utipanmittable imipacts to kistorie resotirces, a Prime Wetland, and

private property.

Tnstallation of lighting-will include the following: instalation of 18-24 diamster. poles and, if necessary and based
on soil conditions, an spproximately 4 ff diatneter conoréte foundation; & 20-ft by 20-ft square, 8t high chainlink
fenge-around the L-864 flashing red hazard beacon, anid 4 10 1t by 10 ft square, & fthigh chalntink fenice arptind
the L-810-steady white obstruction light; and tempoyary’ and minisa] ground modifigation for affachnisiit to &
power souree:

The north end of the projest. area is located msar the Newinglon Center Historic District, which fs Hsted on the
National Regjster of Historio Places (National Register), s3-well ay the Alfred Piokering Farm, which Is sligible
for listing on the Nationa] Register, The project was reviewed andrevised over sevirel itcrationy, and a
préesentation was giveti to the Newinigton HDC oni Septem"hcr 17, 2015, af which time:the project ineluded removal
or Ttgﬁtm,g gf trees withid the. Newington Historig Distriot. After this mesting, PDA éhase to alter the praject
design siich that obstractions will orily be femoved withifithe. dlrport boyndaty; and off-airhort obstrustions will
be bt via installation of an 1-864 hazard beaven on the.airpott property, FAA sont o Fitidifig of No. Adversé
Bffects to Historfe Propesiies ta NHDHR on November 19,2015, Newington HDC responded in support of the.
proposed action Vis émail oh Noverbér20, 2015,

The project is expected to begin in the winter/spring of 201 6/201 7 bt coirld begin as late 45 fall 2017 pending
FAA grant awaid date, Thie projest would take approximately fourto six months to ‘complete,

Baised on & review of the fireject, as présentid ori this dats, it has been determined that:
[ No Historic or Archaeological Froperties will be Affected

¥ ‘Therewill be No Adverse Bffect aii Historic or Archaeblngical Properiies
Desetibe-any outstanding commitments? . _ :




In accbrdance with the Advisory Council's regulations, we will coritinue to ogivsult, as appiopriate, as this project.

proceeds. A .
of Historical Resources
>~ 3 A"

The NH State Ilistoric Preservation Officer conéuvs with these findings:_; e
. H Division
There Will Be: No4(0[X); Programmtic 49 [ Band [T o

L] A fiuding of de mininis 4¢6) iminet as stated: n addifion, wifh NHDHR concurrece of o adverso offét for
the above undertaking, ad fn dcobrace with 23 CFR 774, FAA intends lo, aud by signature below, doos mike 2
ﬁﬂd-iﬂg aofde niinimiy impact NHD‘[[R’S §i anature below répresents concuirence with bﬁ {h the fio advtite 6TToct

‘deternuinafion and the de minimis (indings. Paties to the Section 106 pracess have been eonsulted and thelf éancerns

have been taken frito aceount. Theréfore, the requirements of Suction 4(f) huve been satisfied,

{viation Adwinistration . Project Manager

Féderal

Ce: FAA, NHDHR, Peasc Pevelopment Autholy (4= as applicable 11 )



LA

US. Depariment Federai Aviation Administration 12 New England Executive Park
of Trargpiartation New England Region . Burliniton, MA 01803

Federal Aviation

Administiction

August 26, 2015

Ms. Gail Pare, Chair Mr. Rick Steri, Chair

Newington Historic District Commission Newington Board of Selectmen

205 Nimble Hill Road 205 Nirnble Hill Road

Newington NH 03801 Newington NH 03801

Dear. Ms, Pare and Mr, Stern;

The Federal Avistion Administration (FAA) has been working with the Pease Developmerit Authority
(PDA), and their consultants Hoyle, Tanner & Associates, since 2011 to dddréss obstructions in the
airspace surroundinig Portsmouth International Airport at Pesge.

As you are aware, trees presently grow in the airspace around this airport. Some of the trees are
present in and around the Newirigton Center Historic District. As thie FAA is funding the cusrent
study, and will likely fund any tree removal, these activities are considered “undertakings” under the
National Historic Preservation Act, and must comply with Section 106 of the Act, Ultimately, the
FAA must make a “Finding” under Section 106, and seek State Historic Preservation Office (SHPO)
concuirence. In keeping with state regulations, a “Request for Project Review” was filed in February
2011 and comments were received from the NH Division of Historical Resources in March of 2011,

The SHPO typically (as they have in this casé) directs us to consylt with the loca] historical
commission. A meeting was held with representatives of the Historic Distict Commission, Selectmen
and Planning Department in May, 2011 to discuss these matters. Additional information was
exchanged and the Selectmen ultimately responded in & letter in July, 2012, which included a June
2012 letter from the Historic District Commission. -

Based on the various constraints to the cledring of tiees on and around the airport, we have
considéerably modified the tree ¢learing plins. The current propesal includes limited tree removal and
lighting. We would like to present the curreiit proposal to ths Historic District Commission and any
other appropriate Newingtor departments. Ideally, we would like to meet simultaneously with all
intefested parties. But if necessary we will meet with the agpropriate boards individually. Maria
Stowell of PDA will contact Tom Morgan to sée how this would best be accomplished. We look
forward to continued consultation on this matter. . Please do not hesitate to contact me if you have any
questions.

Sincereéz, | ’; .
S B%cﬁ

Richard P. Doucette, Manager of Environmental Programs
Alrports Division, FAA New England Region

CC:  Tom Morgan, Newington Plannihg Department
NH Division of Historical Resources
NH Department of Transportation






@

U.S. Department Federal Aviation Administration 12 New England Executive Park -
of Transportation New England Region Burlington, MA 01803

Federal Aviation

Administration

November 9, 2015

Ms. Gail Pare, Chair -

Newington Historic District Commission
205 Nimble Hill Road

Newington NH 03801

Dear. Ms. Pare;

The Federal Aviation Administration (FAA) has been working with the Pease Development Authority
(PDA), and their consultants Hoyle, Tanner & Associates, since 2011 to address obstructions in the
airspace surrounding Portsmouth International Airport at Pease. Some of the trees identified as
obstructions are present in and around the Newington Center Historic District. The FAA will likely
fund the tree removal; and these activities are considered “undertakings” under the National Historic
Preservation Act.

We have consulted with both the State Historic Preservation Office (SHPO) the Newington Historic
District Commission. A meeting was held with representatives of the Town of Newington in May,
2011. The Selectmen objected to the project as it was then proposed in a July 2012 letter, which
included a June 2012 letter from the Historic District Commission. We met again on September 17,
2015 and discussed the currently proposed project and the changes since 2011 in detail with the Historic
District Commission, the Town Planner and Chairman of the Board of Selectmen. That meeting was
followed up with an email on September 22™ regarding the boundary of the Historic District, and on
September 24" regarding hazard beacons.

Since that time we have: completed an Individual Inventory Form for the Pickering property, as
discussed at our meeting in September. That form has been submltted to the SHPQ, and is attached
herein. We met with the SHPO on October 21%, to give them an update on our consultation, and the
progress on this project. We have yet to hear from the Town of Newington on our undertaking.

Our initial proposal included tree removal on Pease property as well as in the Historic District.
Newington objected to the tree removal in the Historic District. We then requested that the HDC
provide comment on the potential for either removal of trees located on the Transfer Station parcel or
the installation of obstruction lights at the Transfer Station; if trees could not be removed from the
Transfer Station parcel, a larger obstruction hazard beacon, located on Pease property, would be
required. As we have not heard from Newington, we can only assume the response has not changed.

There are other off-airport obstructions on private property located at 340 Little Bay Road. Negotiations
are underway between those private owners and PDA. Adjacent to that private parcel is a prime wetland
on airport property and two areas of trees within the wetland buffer penetrate the airport’s airspace. Our
understanding is that removal of these trees in the prime wetland buffer will be as difficult as removing
trees off airport, or in the Historic District. In lieu of any off-airport tree clearing we can install a hazard
beacon on airport property, as discussed at out meeting in September. Absent any immediate response



from Newington, this is our current proposal: Cut tree obstructions on airport property and install a
hazard beacon to-mitigate (a) tree obsu'ucﬁons that remain off airport, and (b) tree obstructions in the
prime wetland on airport property.

The proposed hazard beacon will be located in the approximate location as shown on the enclosed plans.
It would be located approximately 450° from Little Bay Road, 500° from the Pickering home, 475’ from
the Historic District boundary, and over 1,100’ from any buildings in the Historic District. The latest
analysis indicates the beacon will be approximately 35’ tall, thus the visibility by people outside the
airport will be minimal. The on-airport tree cutting will be set back approximately 100’ from Little Bay
Rd., at its closest point. The tree clearing and hazard beacon will be separated by trees along the Historic
D1stnct boundary and along Little Bay Rd. As one can see from the plans there is a considerable buffer
of fields and trees between our undertaking and the historic resources in the area. The distance and
intervening trees will minimize the view of the tree cutting and hazard beacon.

If you have any questions or comments please do not hesitate to contact me.

Sincerely,

Richard P. Doucette
Manager of Environmental Programs
FAA New England Region

CC: . 'NH Division of Historical Resources
NH Department of Transportation
Pease Development Authority



ARP SOP No. 5.00 Effective Date: October 1, 2014

APPENDIX A. DOCUMENTED CATEX

Airport sponsors should use this form for projects eligible for a categorical exclusion (CATEX) that
have greater potential for extraordinary circumstances or that otherwise require additional
documentation, as described in the Environmental Orders (FAA Order 1050.1E and FAA Order
5050.4B).

To request a CATEX determination from the FAA, the sponsor should review potentially affected
environmental resources, review the requirements of the applicable special purpose laws, and consult
with the FAA Environmental Protection Specialist about the type of information needed. Complete
this form and send it with any supporting environmental resource documentation to the appropriate
FAA Airports Division/District Office. The form and supporting documentation should be provided
in accordance with the provisions of FAA Order 5050.4B, paragraph 302b, to allow sufficient time
for review. The CATEX cannot be approved until all information/documentation is received and all
requirements have been fulfilled.

It is ultimately the sponsor’s responsibility to ensure that all of the information necessary for the
FAA to make an environmental determination is accurate and complete.

Name of Airport, LOC ID, and Location

Portsmouth International Airport at Pease (PSM), Portsmouth, NH
Project Title

On-Airport Obstruction Removal and Lighting Project

Provide a brief, but complete description of the proposed project, including all project components,
justification, estimated start date, and duration of the project. Include connected actions necessary to
implement the proposed project (including but not limited to moving NAVAIDs, changing flight -
procedures, and designating or developing haul routes, new material or expanded material sources,
staging or disposal areas). Attach a sketch or plan of the proposed project. Photos can also be
helpful. '

The Pease Development Authority (PDA) proposes a project to address airspace obstructions at
Portsmouth International Airport at Pease (PSM). Attachment A includes a location map and plans
detailing the location of the project components.

In 2009, a study was conducted to identify airspace obstructions in and around PSM using aerial
photogrammetry to collect elevations of tree canopies-and man-made structures. Identified
obstructions were submitted to the FAA for evaluation and determination if they posed a risk to
aircraft operating on and around the airport. The FAA concluded that many of the obstructions need
to be addressed via 1) removal of the obstruction, or 2) installation of lighting that will enable aircraft
operators to clearly see and avoid the obstruction. This Categorical Exclusion includes removal of
obstructions (trees) located within the airport boundary, and installation of lighting to light
obstructions located both on airport property and on private property, outside of the airport
boundary, that cannot be removed at this time due to the combination of significant and
unpermittable impacts to historic resources a Prime Wetland, and private property.

In upland areas where obstructions are identified for removal on the attached plans, trees will be

removed and stumps ground in place, and the remaining land will be graded, loamed and seeded
for permanent maintenance via mowing. In wetland areas where obstructions are identified for

A1



A e e

Effective Date: October 1, 2014 ' ARP SOP No. 5.00

removal on the attached plans, trees will be removed by cutting flush with the ground surface,
leaving stumps in place, soils will not be graded, and trees will either be removed off-site or left in
the wetlands to provide additional wildlife habitat, pending future discussions with NHDES and
USACE. Low ground pressure equipment or “swamp” mats will be used in wetlands to allow for
ingress/egress of removal equipment. Cranes may be used from uplands to reach into wetlands to
remove individual trees, where appropriate. Along defined streams, obstructing trees will be
removed and underbrush will remain.

Installation of lighting will include the following: installation of 18-24" diameter poles and, if
necessary and based on soil conditions, an approximately 4 ft diameter concrete foundation; a 20 ft
by 20 ft square, 8 ft high chainlink fence around the L-864 flashing red hazard beacon, and a 10 ft
by 10 ft square, 8 ft high chainlink fence around the L-810 steady white obstruction light; and
temporary and minimal ground modification for attachment to a power source. .

The project is expected to begin in the winter/spring of 2016/2017, but couid begin as late as fall
2017 pending FAA grant award date. The project would take approxnmately four to six months to
complete.

Provide a brief, but complete, description of the proposed project area. Include any unique or natural
features within or surrounding the airport property.

PSM is a publicly owned joint-use airport supporting the aeronautical demands of both civil and
military users located in both the City of Portsmouth and the Town of Newington, New Hampshire.
PSM is owned and operated by the Pease Development Authority (PDA). PDA was created by
virtue of a declaration of the State of New Hampshire in 1990, and is an extension of the State.

The airport has a single 11,321 ft long by 150 ft wide runway oriented approximately north-south
that provides the means for all landing and takeoff operations for fixed wing aircraft at the airport.
The runway and majority of original facilities were constructed in the 1950’s as part of the creation
of a military air base under the United States Air Force's Strategic Air Command. The military base
was closed and conversion to civilian use began in 1991. There is a parallel taxiway running the
entire length of the runway, and concrete and bituminous aircraft aprons covering more than 215

acres.

PSM is a joint civilian-military airport. On the civilian side, its commercial terminal building, PSM
currently hosts scheduled commercial service noni-stop flights to destinations in Florida, as well as
civilian chartered flights for.troops leaving for duty overseas and also returning home. PSM has
muiltiple other tenants, including general aviation, many corporate aircraft, charter services, cargo
service, helicopter sightseeing, and the fixed based operator (FBO) Port City Air. PSM is also a US
Customs designated point of entry into the United States. On the military side, PSM is home to the
167th Air National Guard refueling wing, which has been chosen to be the first base to host the Air
Force's new refueling tanker, the KC-46A.

A-2



ARP SOP No. 5.00 . Effective Date: October 1, 2014

Identify the appropriate CATEX paragraph(s) from Otder 1050.1E (paragraph 307-312) or 5050.4B
(tables 6-1 and 6-2) that apply to the project. Describe if the project differs in any way from the
specific language of the CATEX or examples given as described in the Order.

According to Order 1050.1F, Section 5-6. The Federal Aviation Administration’s Categorical
Exclusions, the following would apply to this project:

5-6.4(1) Federal financial assistance for, licensing or approval of the grading of land, the removal of
obstructions to air navigation, or erosion control measures, provided those activities occur on and
only affect airport property, a commercial space launch site, or FAA-owned or leased property.
(ATO, ARP, AST)

And

5-6.3(b) Establishment, installation, upgrade, or relocation of any of the following on designated
airport or FAA propetty: airfield or approach lighting systems, visual approach aids, beacons, and
electrical distribution systems as described in FAA Order 6850.2, Visual Guidance Lighting
Systems, and other related facilities. (ATO, ARP)

The circumstances one must consider when documenting a CATEX ate listed below along with each
of the impact categories related to the circumstance. Use FAA Environmental Orders 1050.1E,
5050.4B, and the Desk Reference for Airports Actions, as well as other guidance documents to assist
you in determining what information needs to be provided about these resource topics to address
potential impacts. Indicate whether or not there would be any effects under the particular resource
topic and, if needed, cite available references to support thése conclusions. Additional analyses and
inventories can be attached or cited as needed.

304a. National Historic Preservation Act (NHPA) resources

Projects that have the potential to cause effects on historic properties require a Section 106 finding in
ordei to meet the requirements of the NHPA regardless of the type of NEPA document being
completed. Check with your local Airports Division/District Office to determine if a Section 106
finding is required. Consultation with the State Historic Preservation Officer/Tribal Historic
Preservation Officer (SHPO/THPO) may be required, and should be conducted through the FAA.

YES | NO

Are there historic/cultural resources listed (or eligible for listing) on the National U
Register of Historic Places located in the Area of Potential Effect? If yes, provide a
record of the historic and/or cultural resources located therein.

The north end of the project area, as identified on the attached plans, is located near
the Newington Center Historic District, which is listed on the National Register of
Historic Places (National Register), as well as the Alfred Pickering Farm, which is
eligible for listing on the National Register. Attachment B contains relevant
information and local and agency communication for the project file regarding
potential effects on historic properties.




Effective Date: October 1, 2014 ) ARP SOP No. 5.00

YES

NO

Does the project have the potential to cause effects? If yes, describe the nature and
extent of the effects.

A Section 106 Request for Project Review (RPR) was submitted to the New Hampshire
Division of Historical Resources (NHDHR) which functions as the State Historic
Preservation Officer (SHPO) in 2011, including a map of the proposed obstruction
removal at that time that included trees located on private property within the Town
of Newington and the Newington Center Historic District. SHPO/NHDHR responded
that they would like input from the Newington Historic District Commission (HDC) on
the potential effect of the project on the Historic District, as well as the potential
eligibility for listing of the Alfred Pickering Farm on the National Register.

The Town of Newington responded with a letter dated July 13, 2012 from the Board of
Selectmen that the Board had unanimously voted to decline the proposal to cut any
trees on Newington Land, and also included-correspondence from the Newington
Historic District Commission, dated June 27, 2012. This letter expressed concerns
regarding negative visual impacts from tree removal on, and adjacent to the
Newington Center Historic District.

An Individual Inventory Form (lIF) for the Alfred Pickering Farm was prepared and
presented to NHDHR on November 2, 2015. The Farm was determined to be eligible
for listing on the National Register by NHDHR on November 18, 2015.

The project was reviewed and revised over several iterations, and a presentation was
given to the Newington HDC on September 17, 2015, at which time the project
included removal or lighting of trees within the Newington Historic District. After this
meeting, PDA chose to alter the project design such that obstructions will only be
removed within the airport boundary, and off-airport obstructions will be lit via
installation of an L-864 hazard beacon on the airport property. FAA sent a Finding of
No Adverse Effects to Historic Properties to NHDHR on November 19, 2015.
Newington HDC responded in support of the proposed action via email on November
20, 2015.

5

Is the project area previously undisturbed? If yes, provide more information.

Click here to enter text if necessary

Will the project impact tribal land or land of interest to tribes? If yes, describe the
nature and extent of the effects and provide information on the tribe affected.
Consultation with their THPO may be required.

‘Click here to enter text if necessary

A-4




ARP SOP No. 5.00 Effective Date: October 1, 2014

304b. Department of Transportation Act Section 4(f) and 6(f) resources

YES | NO

Are there any properties protected under Section 4{f) (as defined by FAA Order O
1050.1E) in or near the project area? This includes publicly owned parks, recreation
_ are-aé, and wildlife or waterfowl refuges of national, state or local significance or
land from a historic site of national, state or local significance.

Section 4(f) properties near the project area include Great Bay National Wildlife
Refuge (NWR) and the Section 106 properties discussed in the section prior. Tree
removal has been designed such that a minimum of 75-foot buffer of trees will
remain between the removal areas and the boundary of the Great Bay NWR (see
project plan, Attachment A). The project will not affect this property.

Will project construction or operation directly or constructively “use” any Section 1 P
4(f) resource? If yes, describe the nature and extent of the use and/or impacts, and
| why there are no prudent and feasible alternatives. See Desk Reference Chapter 7.

Neither the Newington Center Historic District nor the Alfred Pickering Farm will be
affected by the project. Tree removal has been designed such that a minimum of
75-foot buffer of trees will remain between the removal areas and the boundary of
the Great Bay NWR (see project plan, Attachment A). The project will not affect this
property.

Will the project affect any recreational or park land purchased with Section 6(f) O X
Land and Water Conservation Funds? If so, please explain, if there will be impacts to
those properties.

LWCF projects include some areas within the Great Bay NWR. As noted prior, the
project will not affect this property.

304¢c. Natural, Ecological, or Scenic Resources

This section covers a broad range of categories from farmlands to endangered species to coastal
resources to wild and scenic rivers. Items to consider include:

Coastal Resources YES | NO

N

Will the project occur in or impact a coastal zone as defined by the State’s Coastal O X
Zone Management Plan (CZMP)? If yes, discuss the project’s consistency with the
State’s CZMP. Attach the consistency determination if applicable.

The project falls within the NH Coastal Zone and was reviewed by the NH Coastal
Program on September 16, 2013 and was found to comply with the enforceable
policies of New Hampshire’s federally approved coastal management program
(Attachment C). '




Effective Date: October 1, 2014 ARP SOP No. 5.00

Coastal Resources YES | NO
Will the project occur in or impact the Coastal Barrier Resource System as defined | X

by the US Fish and Wildlife Service?

Click here to enter text if necessary

A-6



ARP SOP No. 5.00 Effective Date: October 1, 2014

Ecological Resources YES | NO

Are there any federal or state listed endangered, threatened, or candidate sbecies I
or designated critical habitat in or near the project area? This includes species
protected by individual statute, such as the Bald Eagle.

| Attachment D includes information for the project file regarding these resources.

A review of the NH Natural Heritage Bureau (NHNHB) database revealed several
species of state-listed plants and animals found within the vicinity of the project.
Animals included the following:

Bald Eagle (Haliaeetus leucocephalus) T

Common Moorhen (Gallinula chloropus) SC

Grasshopper Sparrow (Ammodramus savannarum) T

Osprey (Pandion haliaetus) SC

Pied-billed Grebe (Podilymbus podiceps) T

Upland Sandpiper (Bartramia longicauda) E

| Coordination with the NH Fish and Game Department (NHF&G) concluded the -
animal species listed would not be affected by the project. The recommendation
that equipment or vehicles not be staged in any grassland areas near the runways
to-avoid impacts to upland sandpiper between April 15 and August 1 will be
adhered to and noted in contractor plans.

The two plant species listed are Hairy Hudonsia (Liatris novae-angliae, threatened)
and Northern Blazing Star (Hudsonia tomentosa, endangered). These plants have
been observed within some of the grassy areas of the airport in the past. NHNHB
requested a botanical survey of the plants to ensure the plants would not be
impacted directly or indirectly by an obstruction removal. A botanist conducted a
field survey in 2014 (included in Attachment D) and located several areas of both
species.

Review of the US Fish and Wildlife Service (USFWS) Information Plannirig and
Conservation (IPaC) tool revealed the airport may have habitat for the federally-
listed Red Knot (Calidris canutus rufa, threatened) and the Northern long-eared bat
(NLEB, Myotis septentrionalis, threatened). A bat survey was conducted in July 2015
by a certified wildlife biologist; no individual NLEBs were identified as using the
available habitat within PSM.




Effective Date: October 1, 2014 ARP SOP No. 5.00

Ecological Resources YES | NO

Does the project affect or have the potential to affect, directly or indirectly, any O X
federal or state-listed, threatened, endangered or candidate species, or designated
habitat? If yes, consultation between the FAA and the US Fish & Wildlife Service,
National Marine Fisheries Service, and/or the appropriate state agency will be
necessary. Provide a description of the impacts and how impacts will be avoided,
minimized, or mitigated.

Coordination with NHF&G concluded the animal species listed in the section prior
would not be affected by the project as long as their recommendations are adhered
to.

NHNHB stated that the field study and location information would be satisfactory to
mitigate any concerns about inadvertent damage to the listed plants during
construction provided that the design of obstruction removal avoided these areas
and the areas are marked as off-limits to construction vehicles during construction.
The survey revealed that there would be no direct impact by obstruction removal to
either of the plant species. Plant habitat will be displayed on the design plans and
demarked in the field as needed to avoid construction traffic and any other
activities that might damage these plants.

USFWS stated there is no available habitat for the red knot, nor is there potential

for this species to be affected by the project. Based on the results of the NLEB
survey, FAA determined there would be no effect on this listed species from the
project.

Does the project have the potential to take birds protected by the Migratory Bird O X
Treaty Act? Describe steps to avoid, minimize or mitigation impacts (such as timing
windows determined in consultation with the USFWS).

Click here to enter text if necessary

Does the project area contain resources protected by the Fish and Wildlife O
Coordination Act? If yes, describe any impacts and steps taken to avoid, minimize
or mitigate impacts.

Click here to enter text if necessary

O
X

Does the project have the potential to impact fish habitat protected under the
Magnuson-Stevens Act? If yes, after notifying the FAA and the airport sponsor will
take the necessary consultation action. Actions may include preparing an Essential
Fish Habitat assessment and consultation with the National Marine Fisheries
Service. Describe any adverse impacts, and any conservation measures needed to
avoid such impacts.

Click here to enter text if necessary




ARP SOP No. 5.00 Effective Date: October 1, 2014



Effective Date: October 1, 2014 ARP SOP No. 5.00

Farmiand YES | NO

Is there prime, unique, state or locally important farmland in/near the project area? | X O
Describe any significant impacts from the project. ' ’

A Natural Resources Conservation Service (NRCS) Soil Map is included as
Attachment E. There are small sections of soil included in the project area that are
designated as prime, state or locally important farmland.

Does the project include the acquisition and conversion of farmland? If farmland O | X
will be converted, describe coordination with the US Natural Resources
Conservation and attach the completed Form AD-1006.

Areas identified as protected farmland lie within the boundary of an active airport
and have no potential to be used as farmland. Per the Farmland Protection Policy
Act (FPPA) definition of “farmland”, the areas in question are not protected
farmland, since they fall under the description of “urban built up land”.

Thus, submittal of Form AD-1006 is not necessary for this project.

Floodplains YES | NO

Will the project be located in, encroach upon or otherwise impact a floodplain? If O X
yes, describe impacts and any agency coordination or public review completed
including coordination with the local floodplain administrator. Attach the FEMA
map if applicable and any documentation.

Attachment F includes the Federa] Emergency Management Act (FEMA) mapping
for the project area, verifying the lack of potential to affect floodplains.

A-10



ARP SOP No. 5.00 Effective Date: October 1, 2014

Wetlands and Other Waters of the U.S. YES | NO

Are there any wetlands or other waters of fhé U.S. in or near the project area? X { O

Wetlands and surface waters within the project area as shown on the plans in
Attachment A. There is a large fingerlike wetland system comprised of freshwater
emergent and freshwater forested/scrub shrub wetlands, including a Prime
Wetland for the Town of Newington, associated with the headwaters of Peverly
Brook along the northern/northwest end of the project area. The western side of
the project area contains a large semi-isolated system comprised of freshwater
forested and emergent wetlands that may have been a part of local drainage into
Great Bay, but have been divided by road development over the past several
decades. The wetland system alorig the south end of the project area comprised of
freshwater forested and scrub/shrub wetlands is also semi-isolated by road
development, but ultimately drains under I-95 and into North Mill Pond.

Has wetland delineation been completad within the proposed project area? If yes, O X
please provide U.S. Army Corps of Engineers (USACE) correspondence and
jurisdictional determination.

Wetlands were identified for NEPA analysis using a combination of historic field
delirieation (from 2005), partial field delineation in 2011 along the north end of the
project, and current National Wetland Inventory (NWI) online mapping (Attachment -
G). Wetlands will be reviewed and any undelineated areas will be field delineated in
the spring of 2016 as required for applicable state and federal permitting. Should

the field delineation reveal significant changes to the potentially affected wetlands,
FAA will be notified. Some of the isolated wetlands are questionably jurisdictional
per the newly revised Clean Water Act; this will be determined during permitting
efforts.

If a delineation was not completed, was a field check done to confirm the X | O
presence/absence of wetlands or other waters of the U.S.? If no to both, please
explain what methods were used to determine the presence/absence of wetlands.

Click here to enter text if necessary




P

ettt o m i

Effective Date: October 1, 2014 : ARP SOP No: 5.00

Wetlands and Other Waters of the U.S.

YES

NO

if yes, will the project result in impacts, directly or indirectly (including tree
clearing)? Describe any steps taken to avoid, minimize or mitigate the impact.

A majority of the wetlands identified in the project area for NEPA analysis are
regulated by the US Army Corps of Engineers (USACE) and New Hampshire
Department of Envirronmental Services (NHDES). Wetland impacts have been
avoided and minimized to the extent practicable during design iteration and
coordination with FAA to clearly identify those trees which need to be removed at
this time. Initial wetland impacts were almost three times of that currently
proposed. Approximately 2 acres of wetland impact are anticipated, pending final
delineation. Impacts to wetlands will require a wetland permit from NHDES and
possibly USACE, pending both field delineation to confim wetland boundaries on-
site, and project design parameters. If trees are removed in winter and are left in
the wetlands, not dragged or removed, it is possible that a USACE permit may not’
be required. Compensatory mitigation will be provided for impacts per NHDES
wetland regulations. In lieu of providing wetland preservation or creation on-site, a
single payment to the Aquatic Resource Mitigation (ARM) Fund is anticipated.

X

Is a USACE Clean Water Act Section 404 permit required? If yes, does the project
fall within the parameters of a general permit? If so, which general permit?

Coordination with USACE will be completed in the future. It is anticipated thata .
General Permit may be required for jurisdictional impacts less than 1 acre, however,
if trees are removed in winter and are left in the wetlands, not dragged or removed,
it is possible that a USACE permit may not be required. Compensatory mitigation for
USACE impacts is not anticipated.

Wild and Scenic Rivers

YES

Is there a river on the Nationwide Rivers Inventory, a designated river in the
National System, or river under State jurisdiction {including study or eligible
segments) near the project?

Click here to enter text if necessary

Will the project directly or indirectly affect the river or an area within % mile of its
ordinary high water mark?

Click here to enter text if necessary

304d. Disruption of an Established Community

A-12




ARP SOP No. 5.00 Effective Date: October 1, 2014

YES | NO

Will the project disrupt a community, planned development or be inconsistent with | [ X
plans or goals of the community? '

Click here to enter text if necessary

Are residents or businesses being relocated as part of the project? d X

Click here to enter text if necessary

Environmental Justice YES | NO

Are there minority and/or low-income populations in/near the project area? | K

O
<

Will the project cause any disproportionately high and adverse impacts to minority
and/or low-income populations? Attach census data if warranted.

Neither the City of Portsmouth nor the Town of Newington have disproportionately
high numbers of minority or low-income populations as compared to the national
averages as shown in the data below, although both communities have values for
the age 65 or older population that meet {Town of Newington) or are higher-(City of
Portsmouth) than the national dverage. The project will not change the current
socioeconomic and demographic trends.

Community data below from 2014 as provided by
http://www.census.gov/quickfacts/table/PST045214/3362900,51740,00

City of Portsmouth, 91.5 % non-minority, 16% age 65 or older, 9% below the poverty
line;

Town of Newington, 96% non-minority, 13% age 65 or older, 5 % below the poverty
line;

US Average, 72.4% non-minority, 13% age 65 or older, 15% below the poverty line.

304e. Surface Transportation -

YES | NO

Will the project cause a significant increase in surface traffic congestion or cause a [ X
degradation of level of service provided?

A-13




e 4 s < et et

R DR

o e s o s 5

Effective Date: October 1, 2014 ARP SOP No. 5.00

YES |

NO

Will the project require a permanent road relocation or closure? If yes, describé thé
nature and extent of the relocation or closure and indicate if coordination with the
agency responsible for the road and emergency services has occurred.

Click here to enter text if necessary

X

304f. Noise

YES

NO

Will the projéct result in an increase in aircraft operations, nighttime operations, or
change aircraft fleet mix?

Click here to enter text if necessary

Will the project cause a change in airfield configuration, runway use, or flight
patterns - either during construction or after the project is implemented?

There may be temporary disruption to the runway use and flight patterns during
removal of trees and installation of lighting. Such changes will not cause increased
noise impacts to the surrounding community.

Does the forecast exceed. 90,000 annual propeller operations, 700 annual jet
operations or 10 daily helicopter operations or a combination of the above? If yes, a
noise analysis may be required if the project would result in a change in operations.

Operations will only be temporarily affected and will not change due to the project.

Has a noise analysis been conducted, including but not limited to generated noise
contours, a specific point analysis, area equivalent method analysis, or other
screening method? If yes, provide that documentation.

‘Could the project have a significant impact (DNL 1.5 dB or greater increase) on noise
levels over noise sensitive areas within the 65+ DNL noise contour?

Noise levels are not anticipated beyond temporary increases due to construction -
and tree removal, however these actions are located sufficient distance from any
receptors or sensitive areas. The increased noise would have negligible effects.

A-14




ARP SOP No. 5.00 Effective Date: October 1, 2014

304g. Air Quality

YES | NO

Is the project located in a Clean Air Act non-attainment or maintenance area? :

If yes, is it listed as exempt, presumed to conform, or will emissions (including '
construction emissions) from the project be below de minimis levels? (Provide the
paragraph citation for the exemption or presumed to conform list below, if
applicable.) Is the project accounted for in the State Implementation Plan or
specifically exempted? Attach documentation. If exempt or “presumed to conform”,
skip the next two questions.

Rock'i'ngha'm County, the county which includes the project area, is listed as non-
attainment for sulfur dioxide since 2010 by the USEPA.
(source: http://www3.epa.gov/airquality/greenbk/ancl.html)

Installation of new lighting systems is included on the FAA list of actions “presumed
to conform” per Federal Register / Vol. 72, No. 145 / Monday, July 30, 2007 /
Notices.

Emissions from the temporary use of equipment to remove trees will be below de
minimis levels.

Does the project have the potential to increase landside or airside capacity, [ X
including an increase of surface vehicles?

Could the project impact air quality or violate local, State, Tribal or Federal air O X
quality standards under the Clean Air Act Amendment of 19907 '

Click here to enter text if necessary

Does the airport have 180,000 general aviation and air taxi operations or 1.3 million | [ <]
enplanements annually? If yes, an air quality analysis may be required if the project
would result in a change in operations.

304h. Water Quality

Ai'rport projects may cause water quality impacts due to their proximity to waterways. Airport
related water quality impacts can occur from both point and non-point (stormwater runoff) sources.



Effective Date; October 1, 2014 ARP SOP No. 5.00

YES NO

Are there water resources within or near thé project area? These include X ]
groundwater, surface water (lakes, rivers, etc.), sole source aquifers, and public
| water supply. If yes, provide a description of the resource, including the location
(distance from project site, etc.).

The project area includes the headwaters for Peverly Brook and the 400’ protective
radius of Smith Well, a public water supply well used by the City of Portsmouth and
PDA located along the south end of the airport (mapping provided in Attachment
H).

Will the project impact any of the identified water resources? Describe any steps O X
that will be taken to protect water resources during and after construction.

Communication with NHDES is included as Attachment H. Avoidance and
minimization measures completed to date during design iteration and development
of project plans, including adherence to those listed in the email provided from

1 NHDES regarding the Smith Well, will reduce the impacts to these resources.
Compensatory mitigation will be provided to NHDES for unavoidable impacts to
wetlands.

Will the project increase the amount or rate of stormwater runoff? Describe any X O
steps that will be taken to ensure it will not impact water quality.

A NHDES Alteration of Terrain permit will be required for the project, as well as a
USEPA Construction General Permit per the requirements of the National Pollutant
Discharge Elimination System (NPDES). These pérmitting processes require
development and review by the permitting agencies of a Stormwater Pollution
Prevention Plan (SWPPP) that will include measures to minimize and avoid impacts
to water quality, including compliance with the NHDOT Guidelines for Temporary
Erosion and Sediment Control and Stormwater Management. All activities will
comply with NHDES Administrative Rule Env-Wq 401, Required Best Management
Practices for Groundwater Protection.

Project plans will include stormwater detention areas to offset increases in runoff
from conversion of forested areas to maintained grass.

‘Does the project have the potential to violate federal, state, tribal or local water O X
quality standards established under the Clean Water and Safe Drinking Water Acts? '

implementation of the requirements noted above will ensure such violations will
not occur.

A-16



ARP SOP No. 5.00 Effective Date: October 1, 2014

YES NO

Are any permits required? If yes, list the appropriate permits. . X | O

NHDES Alteration of Terrain, NHDES Wetland Permit,'USEPA Construction General
Permit :

304i. Highly Controversial on Environmental Grounds

YES | NO

Is the project highly controversial? The term “highly controversial” means a N X
substantial dispute exists as to the size, nature, or effect of a proposed federal
action. The effects of an action are considered highly controversial when reasonable
disagreement exists over the project’s risks of causing environmental harm. Mere
opposition to a project is not sufficient to be considered highly controversial on
environmental grounds. Opposition on environmental grounds by a federal, state,
or local government agency or by a tribe or a substantial number of the persons
affected by the action should be considered in determining whether or not
reasonable disagreement exists regarding the effects of a proposed action.

Click here to enter text if necessary

304;j. Inconsistent with Federal, State, Tribal or Local Law

YES | NO

N

Will the project be inconsistent with plans, goals, policy, zoning, or local controls 0| K
that have been adopted for the area in which the airport is located?

Click here to enter text if necessary

Is the project incompatible with surrounding land uses? o 0| X

Click here to enter text if necessary

304k. Lighting, Visual, Hazardous Materials, Construction Impacts, Etc.
Light Emissions and Visual Effects

Airport related lighting facilities and activities could affect surrounding light-sensitive areas such as
homes, parks, recreation areas, etc. Visual affects deal broadly with the extent to which airport
development contrasts with the existing environment/setting.



Effective Date: October 1, 2014 ARP SOP No. 5.00

YES

NO

Will the proposed project produce light emission impacts?

obstruction light has been designed and located on the project plans to ensure that
there will be no light emission impacts extending off the airport property. Lights will

| be buffered such that emissions will not be seen from below except on cloudy

nights due to light scatter.

Installation of the proposed L-864 flashing red hazard beacon and L-810 stady white '

Will there be visual or aesthetic impacts as a result of the proposed project and/or
have there been concerns expressed about visual/aesthetic impacts?

Visual and aesthetic impacts have been avoided during design changes, including
reduction in scope of the project, reduction in the height of the hazard beacon and
relocation of the beacon to allow for appropriate buffers to town roads, the Alfred
Pickering farm, and the Newington Center Historic District. The Newington Historic
District Commission and SHPO initially expressed concerns over such impacts during
the Section 106 coordination process, however, such concerns have been addressed
to their satisfaction.

Hazardous Materials

Federal, State, and local laws regulate hazardous materials use, storage, transport or disposal.
Disrupting sites containing hazardous materials or contaminates may cause significant impacts to
soil, surface water, groundwater, air quality, humans, wildlife, and the organisms using these

resources. This category also includes solid waste and hazardous substances.

hazardous materials or contaminants?

Click here to enter text if necessary

YES | NO
Does the project involve or affect hazardous materials? O X
Click here to enter text if necessary
Will construction take place in an area that contains or previously contained O] X
hazardous materials?
Click here to enter text if necessary
If the project involves land acquisition, is there a potential for this land to contain 0O X

A-18




ARP SOP No. 5.00 Effective Date: October 1, 2014

YES { NO
Will the proposed project produce hazardoué and/or solid waste either during X | O

construction or after? If yes, how will the additional waste be handled?

Compostable or green solid waste (trees, branches, shrubs) will either be remqved
off-site and sold or disposed of as a wood product, or left in place should NHDES or
USACE request it to enhance wildlife habitat in the wetlands.




AN 1 At £ At il b Ay e B .

Effective Date: October 1, 2014 ARP SOP No. 5.00

Construction .

Construction may cause various environmental effects including, but not limited to, increases in
dust, aircraft and heavy equipment emissions, stormwater runoff, spill/leaking petroleum, and noise.

YES | NO
Will the project result in construction impacts, such as reducing local air q_ual-ity, O |
increase erosion, pollutant runoff, or noise, or disrupt local traffic patterns? If yes,
describe measures to avoid and minimize construction impacts.
The project will create temporary impacts to local air quality and noise due to
equipment use, however these impacts will be minimized to the extent practicable,
are negligible in scope, and fall below regulatory thresholds. As detailed in the
Water Quality section, appropriate and required water guality protection will be
utili_zed to protect such resources.
Will the project create short term impacts? g X
Click here to enter text if necessary
Will the project result in long term/permanent impacts? O X
Click here to enter text if necessary
Energy Supply and Natural Resources YES | NO
Will the project change energy requirements or use consumable natural resources? | [J X
Click here to enter text if necessary
Will the project change aircraft/vehicle traffic patterns that could alter fuel usage? O X
Click here to enter text if necessary -

Public Involvement

Through public participation, federal agencies disclose information about a proposed project and
expected environmental effects. Many of the special purpose laws (National Historic Preservation
Act, Clean Water Act, ete.) require public notice and the opportunity for public involvement.

YES | NO
Was there any public notification or involvement? If yes, provide documentation. X |

Publicly noticed meetings were held with representatives of the Town of Newingten
in May, 2011 and again on September 17, 2015, including the Historic District
Commission, the Town Planner and Chairman of the Board of Selectmen.

A-20




ARP SOP No. 5.00 Effective Date: October 1, 2014

Indirect/Secondary/Induced Impacts

Indirect/Secondary/Induced Impacts are caused by the action and are later in time or farther removed
in distance, but are still reasonably foreseeable. They may include growth inducing effects and other
effects related to induced changes in the pattern of land use, population density or growth rate, and
related effects on air and water and other natural systems, including ecosystems.

YES | NO'
Will the project result in indirect/secondary/induced impacts? ' - 0| X
Click here to enter text if necessary
When considered with other past, present, and reasonably foreseeable future O X

projects, on or off airport property and regardless of funding source, would the
proposed project result in a sighificant cumulative impact?

Click here to enter text if nécéSsa-ry

Permits

List any permits required. for the proposed project that have not been previously discussed. Provide
details on the status of permits.

NHDES Wetland Permit- application to be filed spring 2016

NHDES Alteration of Terrain- application to be filed spring 2016

Wetland Buffer Conditional Use Permit from the Pease Development Authority — application to be
filed spring 2016

USEPA Construction General Permit- application to be filed summer/fall 2016

Environmental Commitments

List all measures and commitments made to avoid, minimize, mitigate, and compensate for impacts
on the environment, which are needed for this project to qualify for a CATEX.

Since initial project development in 2011, the project has been redesigned several times in order to
balance the need to meet FAA standards for obstruction removal to protect human health and safety
with the potential nnpacts to the environment. The number of individual trees to be removed, as well
as the number and size of clumps of trees, have been reduced substantially during design iterations
via coordination with FAA. The currently proposed removal areas and light installations present the
best alternative to meeting the project purpose and need while avoiding and minimizing impacts.

Adequate and appropriate buffers of remaining trees have been left along the project boundary in
order to protect and screen Section 106 historic resources and the Great Bay National Wildlife
Refuge.

Compensation will be provided for impacts to NHDES jurisdictional wetlands via payment to the
Aquatic Resource Mitigation Fund.

Coordination with the NH Fish and Game Department (NHF &G) recommended that equipment or
vehicles not be staged in any grassland areas near the runways to avoid impacts to upland sandpiper

A1



Effective Date: October 1, 2014 ARP SOP No. 5.00

between April 15 and August 1; this will be adhered to and noted in contractor plans.

Two state-listed plants, Hairy Hudonsia (Liatris novae-angliae, threatened) and Northern Blazing
Star (Hudsonia tomentosa, endangered), were surveyed for and areas identified within the project
area. NHNHB requested these areas be identified in the field via flagging or snow-fence to ensure
contractors are aware of and avoid impacts to those areas. This will be adhered to and noted on
contractor plans. '

For work in areas within the 400’ protected radius of the Smith Well:

L The Pease Development Authority (Pease Trade Port water system) and City of Portsmouth
Public Works Department (Portsmouth Water Works) shall be notified of the start and completion of
work.

2. Prior to the start of work, the subject areas shall be inspected to locate any monitoring wells.
Measures shall be implemented to protect these wells during the tree removal process.

3. Trees must be removed by hand cutting only and not with a harvester.

4. Fueling and maintenance of all equipment (vehicles, hand tools, etc.) shall be performed
offsite, or on an impervious surface outside of the protective area of the well. .

5. All activities shall comply with DES Administrative Rule Env-Wq 401, Required Best
Management Practices for Groundwater Protection, which is available on DES’ website at
http://des.nh.gov/organization/commissioner/legal/rules/index.htm#waterq.

6. An ample supply of absorbent spill clean-up materials and spill kits shall be available onsite,
in the immediate area, while the work is being performed. '
7. The following activities shall be restricted in the protective area of the well: 1) storage of
fuels or other hazardous materials; and 2) the storage of fuel- or hazardous-material containing
equipment.

NHDES and USEPA requirements for use of stormwater and erosion controls, including
development and submission for review of a SWPPP, and adherence to the NHDOT Guidelines for
Temporary Erosion and.Sediment Control and Stormwater Management, will be met and will
provide for protection of aquatic and soil resources.

A-22



ARP SOP No. 5.00 Effective Date: October 1, 2014

Preparer Information

Point of Contact: Kimberly Peace, Environmental Coordinator, Hoyle, Tanner & Associates, Inc.

Address: 150 Dow Street . .

City: Manchester : State: NH ZIP code: 03101
Phone Number; 603-669-5555 Email Address: kpeace@hoyletanner.com

Signature: m M : Date:  November 24, 2015

Airport Sponsor Information and Certification
(may not be delegated to consultant)

Provide contact information for the designated sponsor point of contact and any other individuals
requiring notification of the FAA decision.

Point of Contact: Maria Stowell, P.E. Manager, Engineering, Pease Development Authority -
Address: 565 International Drive

City: Portsmoeuth State: NH ZIP code: 03801
Phone Number: 603-766-9296 Email Address: m.stowell@peasedev.org '
Additional Name(s): Click here to enter text. :

Additional Email Address(es): Click here to enter text.

I certify that the information I have provided above is, to the bést of my knowledge, correct. I also
recognize and agree that no construction activity, including but not limited to site preparation,
demolition, or land disturbance, shall proceed for the above proposed project(s) until FAA issues a
final environmental decision for the proposed project(s) and until compliance with all other
applicable FAA approval actions (e.g., ALP approval, airspace approval, grant approval) has
occurred.

Signature: %’L—\ Date: 1 (24 \ 15

Ll > T~

David R.Mullen, PDA Execuhive Director




Effadtivs Date: Octobsr 1, 2014 | ARFS0OP Ne: 5,00

FAA Decision
Having soviewed die sbovetntbimation, siified by e fespenifble Alrgort offield, it 13 the FAAS
deciSion that the proposed prefect (53 ordevdiopmeint warrants environmmental peocessing &

indigated below. =

8 Mo thrther NEPA reviow required: Projorts carsgorteally ot i

1030, 1ECATER thatapplics) (055 | & 5 ,,,
p)

0 An Brvitonitiental Assesshiotit (BAY is fagitred,

11 Av Brdfronninital. tripaice Starement (EIS {3 redniied,

O The fallowing additional dovumenistion fs neosssary for FAA to performd cotuplets
envifonmental evalnation of the proppsed project:

Click hers 1o enterexd i necessary

Rk



T T ey

. ..& a8 |
f TOTAL OBSTRUCTION AREA,
THIS DWG ONLY: 20 AC |
8| POTENTIAL WETLAND IMPACT,
i THIS DWG ON

I
LEGEND:

TREES TO EXISTING AND

OBBTRUGTION ».;,,., wvguuma.. “ummmnma : : o . : ; P
>zm»o.“_.8m§=9._mzm3 e, e A3 APPROXIMATE 7N\ OFFARPORT va—UommU >—I-—.mmz>-_.._<m i = . 5 er

Creny MO 0 I, FOR NEPA ANALYSIS

PROPOSED HAZARD BEACON

s

b’,;‘vﬂ-"—
“ e
RROUTH

=
5
3
2
]
25
Blxx
5| %5m
3|
Elxx
ElE
51°3
nYﬂ
L Y
(&)
E|ZS
212z
L e e
[L47)]
Jus]
Q

REVISIONS
OESCMP RGN

/| pare

<

[PROL. o< 052847
s emortn £
[ 1003 33500k -
DRAWNG |

11

SHEET 2 OF




S

Deowing nomu K- \062837\dwg\Lonlraci\Permilting\OIZAS?~G10T.dwg  Nov D4, 2018 ~ 10:12em

ENGINEER'S SEAL

‘4 e,
v e, i
) avhv.v i B \Mu\ <5
N R/ W W
& \ﬁ, e * { NEw HasiPSHIRE AR
3 ./ \.. ] = ,,... \

L @e\N

Wl Poym sy ]

Nemsleator, 4 W08
T -
fex G-amyem

T O et

h
3
3
/.,

. e
X : =y
J } APPROXMATE AIRPORT Si=E i
/ \n PROPERTY LINE (TYP.) . B &.u
AREA OF OBSTRUCTION % . ._.". 1, - - _ﬂ
REMOVAL (NORTH) i _ [ ) *pe-1 {8 m m__
\ 3 I 3 -
\ § .'\A.l.ﬂu.]. o y W,L »_ £ :._T
‘% ,~ LOCATION OF NEW HAZARD BEACON AND LANGY o
e £):
: i hd A &
[
/ g WLM 5
¢ k r =Ll
=i % #5=s
g1 -
A, TR
ACCESS 10 WEST UBSTRUGTION = S
'REMOVAL THROUGH GATE & _W_ El:
(PDA GATE GUARDS REQUIRED) e \ e
) (PHASE 2 (WEST) ONL' XA . | z
T, P [P o s Rl - m e T e = i e - e — o - - e e ¢ [=)
s I o~ - z
1/ A g m < e
o f o - mc < (&
- K1 AREA OF OBSTRUCTION _/Rw G_..A._ g
- % REMOVAL (SOUTH, TYP.) N B g
_‘ﬁ\ \\A e L : 9 i3 R 3 H AN, ~ie. - - o - ” I HD.A“W M
- R: e ] ! A . ! L - TR o S 7 . . Se
. i L ST N - : R o e H L =n 47, |PHASE 3 (NORTH)Y\|EZ| T x|,
LH:J i N e S ™ i  GUDESLOPE'CRITICAL AREAy, I z G SORE e T |lag| & & |8
- e ey ¥, : B e " HAUL ROUTES FOR WEST OBSTRUCTION om = oz =
ASE 1 _(NORTH)] ? s REMOVAL AREAS. CONTRACTOR T REMAN ON % ... |HE| & =g
. -~ s f /" .- AND FOLLDW ONLY DESIGNATED HAUL ROUTE % /4 22| O _ [
oA . e : . 2o INSIDE THE AIRFELD PERMETER FENCE. Ay m:n EZ=
C ’ NO CONSTRUCTION ACCESS T~ pre=t: B D= N 9 SW
Y L PERMITIED OFF OF McINTYRE ~.. / AF o~ e O 2Z 248
GREAT BAY NATIONAL g ROAD N B ~a — . ™ : zn .nln m
. . 4 ~. L/ WE > 2
.. & $ ) < | Z H q
4 i 5 1 1O i
; . 218 H 9
i ) o, ! vi__ |8
AIRFIELD CONTROL POINTS (NGS PACS L
NAD &5 NAVD B8 ¢ ANDESACS) 1 TREES AND VEGETATION N UPLAND AND WETLAND AREAS AS SHOWN ON THE PLANS: MULCHING 1. PHASE 1 _(NDRTH): INCLUDES AIRSPACE OBSTRUCTION TREE AND VEGETATION REMOVAL, GROUND
) NA' AND COMPACTING OF SOILS, STUMPS AND ROOTS AND/OR APPLICATION OF TOPSOIL AND SEED IN AREAS PREPARATION SUCH AS GRINDING STUMPS AND ROOTS; CONSTRUCTION OF AN L-884 HAZARD BEACON
> #_IELEV. INORTHING _JEASTING ESCRETION 2 CONSTRUGTON oF QooﬂmnF FEEDS wwm INSTALLATION OF AN L-B6+ BEACON (PMASE 1 (NDRTH)) 2 > Cupsry: NGBS TREE AND REMOVAL, GROUND i
= PHASE 2 (WEXT): E
PSW C [787 | 20855513 | 1,211,086.74 | NGS PAG "PSM G PiD; AHBB71 D AN LLB10 CacUemon L e 3 (i) L-Be4 HAZARD (" o i el g SR g oL R, H
PSM D |76.7 | 211,051.78 | 1,209,005.35_| NGS SAC "PSM D" PiD: AHBE7S 3. PHASE 3 (SOUTH): INCLUDES AIRSPACE OBSTRUCTION TREE AND VEGETATION REMOVAL, GROUND e mm
IS 2054 | 206,347.51 | 1,215.467.58 | NGS SAG LS 2 13712° FI: AHBBTZ ) . T POy 3 CAMOING: STUMFS(AND!ROOTS: | GONSTRUGRON 1OF AN L~810| QBSTRUCTION]UGHT | 3 Ww
ST CONSTRUTION ST 40 PSS IS i
ANTICIPATED PHASE DURATION: 5
4 AN T oL S A TS AN SR B ) ¢
RFIELD N L POIN 3 1. NORTH: 45 DAYS (INCLUDING HAZARD BEACON AND POWER FEED!
CONTRACIOR SR GRoRR ORIZONTAL AND ADMINISTRATION. (FAA). L wesna) R (NCLUDING 0B o » FEED) m
VERTICAL DATUM OF THESE CONTROL POINTS IF USED) 2.. THE CONTRACTOR mxz._.?.wwv._. AT ANY TIME DRVE ON AIRFIELD AIRCRAFT PAYEMENTS OR s__zzaev zmw« SouTH: STRUCTION LIGHT AND POWE g
CP # JELEV. [NORTHING [EASTING DESCRIPTION RUNWAY SAFETY AREAS , TAXIWAY SAFETY AREAS OR RUNWAY PROTECTION ZONES , AND ARFIELD CLOSURES AND IMPACTS PER PHASE: =
SHALL REMAIN ONLY ON DESIGNATED HAUL ROUTES AS ]
101 [68.00 | 212,781.90 | 1,213,665.77 | PDA 3700680 1. NORTH: NO CLOSURES, ALL WORK IS OFF ARPORT. HEIGHT RESTRICTIONS APPLY PER PLANS e 5
102 |s276 | 21561260 | 1,207,044.69 | PK NAIL 3. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL BE RESPONSIBLE FOR MEETING ALL APPLICABLE FAA AND AIRPORT RECULATIONS 2, WEST; NO CLOSURES, WORK 1S OFF AIRPORT BLIT HAUL ROUTE IS ON—AIRPORT, OUTSIDE OF ALL SAFETY |3 -
= CONCERNING THE MAINTENANCE OF SECURITY. THIS SHALL INCLUDE BUT NOT BE UMITED TO ACCESS TO AREAS AND OUTSIDE ALL TAYIWAY QBJECT FREE AREAS s
105 10142 | 217,380.92_| 1,206,800.68_ | ANG DISK_"DEGREE 35 THE ADA THROUGH THE GATES iN THE PERIMETER FENCE. NO OPENING WITHIN THE FENCE LINE THAT 3. SOUTH: NO CLOSURES, ALL WORK IS OFF AIRRORT. HEIGHT RESTRICTIONS APPLY PER PLANS i ;
o | s | o T o Dt et AT, L SN e e
3 ] [PHASE RESTRICTIONS: £
105 [102.49 | 215417.43 | 1,208462.11 | DRAL HOLE IN SKiN BASE PROVIDE GATE GUARDS FOR COMTRACTOR ACCESS. A
- ; 1. SEE EQUIPMENT WEIGHT RESTRIGTIONS PER PHASE A==
NOTES 4. RUNWAY 16-34 SHALL REMAIN OPERATION' DURING CLEARING ACTMITEES. 2. HAUL_ROUTES ONLY ON DESIGNATED AREAS UNLESS FRIOR PERMISSION IS OSTANED FROM THE ARPORT |- o= D20 J
3. UNLESS PRIOR PERMISSION IS GVEN BY THE AIRPORT, GONCURRENT WORK ON THE TWOD DIFFERENT BRAWNG]NO
1. CODRDINATES BASED ON NAD BS NH STATE PLANE COORDINATES. PHASES IS PROHIBITED.
2. MONUMENTS SHALL NOT BE DISTURBED. I A MONUMENT BECOMES DISTURBED
THEN THE CONTRACTOR SHALL MMEDIATELY REPORT THE INCIDENT TO THE = o,— m
RESIDENT ENGINEER. 5 K
1"=500" . SHEET 2 OF @




Orgwing nome: H:\OIZ837\dwg\Coniroc| \Parmiiting \062857-ER10I~ 1020wy Nov 04, 2016 - 10:13om

ENGINEER'S SEAL

N
3

7 m HEN
AT TREES, BRUS, AND, VEGETATION FLUSH 10 SRV e
_ GROLIND. APPLY TOPSOL AND, SEED.... - V277 waoom 7 sene area

o AREA NiB

[ZZ=] wenwos
SENSITIVE AREAS

UPLAND VEGETATION
REMOVAL~FORESTRY MULCHING

UPLAND VEGETATION
REMOVAL-TOPSOIL AND SEED

WETLAND VEGETATION
REMOVAL

—§iLT— CONTINUOUS CONTAINED
BERM SEDIMENT BARRIER

TSt EXISTING TREE UINE

- REMOVE APPROXNATELY 600" OF
{ BARB WIRE FENCE AND POSTS
N T
e .

NOTE DISTURB, CONTACT

™ Ovw

" 75' PRIME WETLAND BUI
it

FFER Azm«‘_‘zna.z_v
e

NOTES:
1. REFER TO DWG ER1.2 FOR DETALS AND
REQUIREMENTS OF DIFFERENT VEGETATON REMOVAL

Janner
oclates, Inc.
s

PROJECT DESIGNER .

AND SOIL. TREATMENT IN AREAS SHOWN HERE AND =
DEPICTED IN THE LEGEND. o
2. PROTECT THE EXISTING CULVERTS BY McINTYRE al:
ROAD DURING CONSTRUCTION ACTIVITIES. LOCATIONS mm d
“ PRIME WETLANDS SHOWN ON PLANS. 3 WLmW
(00 NOT DISTURB) *, | WETLAND IMPACTS' (THIS SHEET) pESH
CODE, —__AREA _(5F) AREA To”"
AWt PSSTE 113.90 0.003 3 MA ¥
NS—W1_|PssTe/pewie]  2.663.46 T.06 231
N6—Wi | PFOIE | 99435 007 zZle
[ Ne-WZ | RsUsz/5 514170 oz | 5
— A TOIA:  Blad 0203 Z
4 e .
UPLAND REMOVAL AREAS 2 |Z z H
(TS SHEET) Bg| 53 el
At U . cRTES RiLY ESI$=C W
G = ED
- >C -BERM SEDMENT BARRIER R ——wig | Sa OmN_ 8
. . %z | EZ =02,
- = 8¢l ez o S|4}
NN - ] mw zZ0
) s Ry NeA & O _
 PSIEPEMIE ToTA giEzD
e e e ;| OO _Dln
S L8O G
PFOIE ., m .nI“ON £
3 L] h& w ]
T T2
i . i m g |© u
. S . Lods ) M. z
ifs L) Z
i T AREN NGB |27 g 5 g
) e rre, 1 R - i
* { REMOVE APPROXIMATELY 500° OF 3' HIGH / o g
i ' 3-STRAND BARB WIRE FENCE AND POSTS J . F]
C\/ - i
3 &
mb
g
: . 0
N IS ~ w 3
. EXISTING CULVERT 3 e H g
- (36" CWP) — H
AREA N3 " E Ry
- \ 4 SEE DWG NO ERLAA |\ ) .
/ i T L FOR THIS INSET e e
ey : R - - ety




dep  Mov 4, 018 ~ 10:1dum

Oroming noma: H: \OSI80T

ENGINEER'S SEAL

LEGEND:
§ LAYDOWN / STAGING AREA

.....r...r -

E SENSITIVE AREAS
G [ Y-

Wl P wirichpyiotmers.comn

]

P2 UPLAND VEGETATION
PRIR] RENAL TOPSOL AND SEED kg
- B B WETLAND VEGETATION i 1
L T - s i - REMOVAL e “.a
CLEAR MINMUM_20° PATH ALONG FENCE FOR el e ! —SILT— CONTINUOUS CONTAINED & P ._._
R e .\”-i_bcwm DETERRENT, AND AREA FOR FENCE S N R BERM SEDIMENT BARRIER mT..m i
MAINTENANCE . g g T m=~emc s EXISTING TREE LINE ] 'm. "m«
NOTES: . 3 __.
1., FOR DEYALS ON OBSTRUCTION REMOVAL TYPES SEE |§ ail
THIB_SHEET., =
2. PROTECT THE EXISTING CULVERTS BY McINTYRE ©
ROAD DURING CONSTRUCTION ACTIVITIES. LOCATIONS o1,
SHOWN ON PLANS. L]
Edus
[ WLH..
E5o0
3 [T
. EETE
= oa<t
WETLAND IMPACTS (THIS SHEET) Pm .
3 B
£
UPLAND REMOVAL AREAS 2 le o
{THIS_SHEED) g |Z— |8
. AREA_(ACR go GEle
e NoE 365 z5 IS L8
. T N7 003 &a mew
AIRPORT PERIMETER * T [ B2} 18o/Qm
... FENCE (TYP) ; 3 2580 E=z WSN @
p i S Bglag Sia
\ . .
1 3 ~ mm z%5 a
A 4 a5 o
s \ £ el EZ O
' SN \ 20O
. /A 8|55
s : { 37 z|%
. ! 1 . { ga mm Q15
a A el e Y % L9
; - : L ~ N 1 | @
.. % 1 = 0 u
H 8 N TV I 3
T ’ lj 4
H AT 1\““.“-.%&.."5!&\‘&.' 4« AN ! L B
; ;] Ty AL, i~ i e /S : :
’ ;- |S NOT TO BE_SEEDED. IT:3veS. -3 F= Vig B %4 &
- ! \x N : 1S REQUIRED THAT NATIVE GRASS iy 74 "3 4 s
g . AND VEGETATION RE-POPULATE WITHIN, At C d
PP RN A ; 100' OF THE SENTSITIVE AREAS < 3
¥ X, s + % - ™ F m
Lo A . . 3 P H
[OBSTRUCTION ROWIVAL TYREG ; . mm
1, UPLAND VECEVATION REMOVAL WITH FORESTRY MULCHNG: «u - 2
UPLAND VEGETATION REMOYAL WITH FORESTRY MULGHING SHALL BCLUDE REMOVAL OF THE MAJORS NI Gm
ALL TIMEER AND LIMBS OVER €7, AND MSPUSAL OF THOSE MATEMIALS OFF SITE BY M oaadd [} m-
IN THE PAYMENT ITEM FOR .__xm VEGETATION IOVAL. ADDITIONAL MATERIALS THAT CAN BE MUILCHED . . Sl
§§<§ﬂ—!ﬂ.m§!ﬂdﬁEaagssnwciga%:gu.%am!!z_zngbzwu_habbm‘u:%ufﬁ!._:ﬂ‘_vwzogﬂ: 3 » : m
THAN B-LONG, LEAVING A .COMPACTED MINED LAYER OF EXISTING SOLE AND WOOD CHIPE. ALL CHIP PILES OR SO0IL MLES SHALL BE LEVELED 10 APPROIMATE EXISTING GRADE AND LEAVE A S L b a
[SHOOTH GROUND SURFACE FOR FUTURE MAINTENANCE. WHERE BOULDERS AND/OR ROCKO AAE ENCOUNTERER. THE CONTRAGTOR IS REQUIRED TOEXCAVATE AND REWOVE THE BOULDER AND [+ e
ROCKS TD ALLOW FOR THE FORESTRY MULCHING EQUIPMENT TO OPERATE. AND BOULDENS SHALL BE REMOVED OFF~SITE BYY THE CONTRACTOR AND D/SPOSED OF OR GRUSHED AND
RE-USED. PATMENT FOR EXCAVATION AD REMOYAL OF ROCKS AND BOULDERS IS INCLUDED IN THE PAYMENT ITEM FOR FORESTRY MLLCHING. N m
AFTER FORESTRY MULCHING IS CONPLETED, THE AREAS SHALL BE SEEDED AND MULCHED AS SPECINED IN THE CONTRACT DOCUMENTS. N -
2. UPLAND VEGETATION REMOVAL WITH TOPSOIL AND SEED m M
THIS IS LOCATED M AREAS WHERE THE EXISTING 6ROUND DOES NOT CONTAIN SUFFICIENT ORGANIC MATERIALS, AND RUCKY AND/OR GRAVELLY SURFACES WHERE VEGCETATION MAY NOT PROPERLY >
[ESTABLISH THROUGH FORESTRY MULCHING, .
p| |VEGETATION REMOVAL IN THESE AREAS SHALL INCLUDE REMOVAL OF ALL TREES, BRUSH AND VEGETAVION ABOVE GROUND, AND FLUSH TO THE GROUND. THIS NGLUDES REMOVAL/DISFOSAL OF | mm —
ALL TIMBER AND LMBS, AND REMOVAL/LEGAL OISPOSAL OF THOSE MATERIALS OFF SITE BY THE CONTRACTCR, PRos Moz 062857
UPON SATISFACTORY REMOVAL OF VEGETATION, THE CONTRACTOR BHALL SPREAD TOPSOL ON ALL DISTURBED AREAS AS SPECIFIED AND APPLY SEED AND MULCH AS SPECHTED IN THE GONTRACT . E
DOCUNENTS. . 001 S50 8024
3, a_.hv._u VEGETATION REMOVAL I .
REMOVAL OF VEGETATION (N WETLANDS REQUINES THAT THE TREES AND LARGER SHRUBS BE CUT FLUSH WITH THE GROUND AND REMOVED, THIS INCLUDES REMOVAL/LEGAL DISPOSAL OF THOSE
MATERIALS OFF SITE BY THE CONTRACTOR. THE SDILS {4 WETLANDS MAY NOT BE DISTURHED, RUTIED, MATVED, FILLED WITH ANY HIATERIALS NCLUDING WOOD CHIFS, SORS OR OTHER DEBRIS OR
EQUIPMENT, ANY OF THOSE DISTURBANCES WILL RESULT IN THE IMMEDIATE SUSPENSION OF ACTIVITES IN WETLANDS AND MAY RESULT IN ENVIRONMENTAL FINES, WHICH {F ASSESSED, WILL BE THE| mmd N
RESPONSIBAITY OF THE CONTRACYOR, THE CONTRACTOR, AT THER DISCRETION, MAY ELEGT TO UTILZE LOW CROUND PRESSURE EGUIFMENT, HAND NETHODS, DABLE MAULING, SEASONAL - — o
[CONDITIONS OR OTHER MEANS AS DEEMED APPROPRIATE BY THE CONTRACTOR TD ACCOMPLISH THOSE REQUIREMENTS N 100
1"=100" SHEET 5 OF B




Nav 04, 2055 - 1k1%am

Drening nume: H: \08:

ENGINEER'S SEAL

REREam

I
- L H
= T |
P P = . Sy T S S H i
1
e D
" RUNWAY 16-34 - _a
T T T I T e T U L TR T S T It e S e e L S M T S ._“m
T .
[ 4
— S
— N 2.
B et ptr 1 e | o e N T T e - Tl
"~ AIRFIELD PERIMETER FENCE . : : : N g Do
Ce . £ Dges
e R F2I3
gol:
; EELr
Pm Y
. T ? 5 = T 2 3 L —
s e N 7 = ; N 7 L7 ~
, IS =" 2N e s o MR v\%j&% : ; . s |z a
\“ﬂl\\x-llﬂ\\n\\%-m.np. B, iy e f 2 .‘!a.m Z :&%\.ﬂ‘nﬂ& 37 b hsa °7 frsis £l ! g |=< m = H
TV e 3 o T £ S oI P % \ Bo :
R, gl 547 Sl : U oty G O 28249
P Cipriinig 75 TN S i W =S gl HER
=" S gk v’!ﬁl £ ) — Leres o A 1820 ! 12
[¥ 7 By HER T LAY ) cad
PEMIE *FOR AREA W3, MAINTAIN SELECTIVE BUFFER OF TREES ALONG m S
N FAIRWAY (TREES 7O REMAIN TO BE DETERMINED BY THE ez 3
i . __-OWNER), BETWEEN CLEARING LIMIT AND PRIMARY SURFACE u_w S_3a
EDGE. ENSURE CANOPY OF ANY REMAINING TREES DOES NOT ez
ENCROACH_INTO PRIMARY SURFACE NOW OR INTO FUTURE, o8k
NCROACH 5 = s gElovz|z
gEIEQ2SIE
& o
2 |BwTe
& |O g
3
:
Z
g
5 )
! :
NOTES: Esj
1. REFER TO DWG ER1.2 FOR DETALS AND REQUIRENENTS OF 9
DIFFERENT VEGETATION REMOVAL AND SOIL TREATMENT IN AREAS g
V7] wavoom /7 stacis amea 2 INSTALL EROGION ANt SEOIMENT CONMECE DEWCES AS SHOWN OR 1
£Ld " S DIRECTED BY THE RESIDENT ENGINEER. m
rote 5] WETLANDS WETLAND IMPACTS (THIS SHEET) -
CODE AREA (SF) AREA_(ACRE) B 3
i. SENSMIVE AREAS WA=W1 PFOTE 1,464.85 0,03 s g
wa-w1_ | PFO1E 32,312.27 0.74 =
Frapivirony s WaWZ_ | PFOIE 5317.13 6.1z [
OBSTRUCTION [ Wa-wi PFOTE 1,080.. 0.05 or0Lva: OB2B57
CTONAREMOVAL iy 8335 573 ne_062857-ER0S
(HETLANDS ONLY) oot 555 1oz |
4>  CONTRAGTOR'S HAUL ROUTES UPLAND REMOVAL AREAS (THIS SHEET) DRAWING NO.
—sut — CONTINUQUS CONTAINED . AIEA
BERM SEDIMENT BARRIER =1 — [ 100 250 . 500 mIA— m
Aernree EXISTING TREE LINE W ] 705 L e e e ‘
I0TAL, 337 1"=100 SHEET 5§ OF §




ENGINEER'S SEAL

e NI T —
RS A OBSTRUCTION REMOVAL H
APPROXIMATE AIRPORT PROPERTY UINE (TYP.) \(WORK BY OTHERS) Ak
I
. !
. N . . r h
L ST, iy _“\
P 'APPROXIMATE OBSTRUCTION LIBHT
LOCATION (SEE DWG NO. . -
& A e [
=
@x
o]
IS E
&y
gy
2
V¢ 23%h
7 ZZwe
£g=s
gRss
oz M
Bl
1]
4
212, I
Bol <ZE[7
=5 Y28
E3ILZD g
m! (e} o0
22 w ||z
: mA m nz ']
/ : 82| ¢ o i3 |
PROTECT EXISTING GAS UNE, SEE DWG wEl_Za
. NO. ERZ.2 FOR CROSSING DETAIL. Q51 2 <
. APPROX. 250 FT IN LENGTH. _ aEl © nlu.
_ EXISTING GRAVEL : g5
= ROAD 2ZQ9FK
32O |E
RIECSS
BN hES(?
T la¥ )2
ek B 5 |° |
§ ) il ) ’ i OBSTRUCTION REMOVAL L}
3 - P e WORK BY OTHERS INCLUDED
& _ >_z..1_.m_b PERIMETER FENGE Y = R 7% \\\ m&. - _Az THIS PERMIT APPLICATION) H m
R T : .nﬂ&t»\ﬁ Pty
p : I
3 Iy g
3 -~ - 3
H e
o NOTES: i ] m~
LEGEND: 1. %__a N,xz_..cmz_\,.zoz ©ON OBSTRUCTION REMOVAL TYPES SEE DWG NO. m mﬂ
B B
P 2. INSTALL EROSION AND SEDIMENT CONVROL DEVICES AS SHOWN OR AS &l
§ LAYDOWN / STAGING AREA DIRECTED BY THE RESIDENT ENGINEER. m-
> o
"] wemanps . m
A P 0.42 m M
BB wom e auvens TOTHG FIXES 578 g
l-\ UPLAND VEGETATION 2
1 & REMOVAL~FORESTRY MULCHING UPLAND REMOVAL AREAS (THIS SHEET) ﬁ wo: DB2B57
3 Renon, TEoeTRo il £REA B e 0G2857-ER108
||WN|I Dot B 16-XX-20M4
nm 4  CONTRACTOR'S HAUL ROUTES 53 0,99 DRAWING NO.
¥ — 51T — CONTINUOUS CONTAINED oA 178
1 BERM SEDIMENT BARRIER mm.— L.
m ~orw-e EXISTING TREE UNE. P .
a 1"=100" SHEET 7 OF @




PEASE DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY

AIRPORT COMMITTEE

Date: January 19, 2017

Time: 8:00 AM _
Place: 55 International Drive, Pease International Tradeport
L Call to Order (Chairman Preston)

II. Acceptance of Minutes: May 11, 2015*%

II. Flight Training Facility Proposal - CHI Aerospace*
Iv. Airport Brief Report (Pomeroy)

V. New Business

VL Public Comment

VIL Adjournment

VIII Press Questions

%
¥kk

Related Materials Attached

Related Materials Previously Sent

Related Material will be Provided Under Separate Cover
Confidential Materials

Copy

AGENDA



\'4

>
A
“zl>m

NTERNATION 55 laternational Drive, Porismouth, NH 03801
EVELOPME
AUTHORIT

MOTION

Director Allard:

In accordance with the recommendation of the Pease Development
Authority Airport Committee, the PDA Board of Directors hereby approves
of CHI Aerospace Fuel LLC dba CHI Aerospace’s application to operate a
flight school and provide flight training services at the Portsmouth
International Airport at Pease; all in accordance with the memorandum of
Andrew Pomeroy, Airport Operations Manager, dated January 10, 2017
attached hereto.

Note: Roll call vote required

N:\RESOLVES\FlightSchool0117.docx

O0QOQO TAKING YOU THERE

- . £ -] — e Spmszraar o ome oo s oaf ,
ph: G603-435-4008 A ANS-427-Dda3 WW DEasErfaw N



INTERNATION 55 International Drive, Portsmouth, NH 03801
DEVELOPME
AUTHORITY
INTEROFFICE MEMORANDUM

TO: PDA AIRPORT COMMITTEE

FROM: ANDREW B. POMEROY, C.M. AIRPORT OPERATIONS MANAGER

SUBJECT: REQUEST TO AIRPORT COMMITTEE FOR CHI AEROSPACE

DATE: JANUARY 10, 2017

CC;

CHI Aetospace has submitted a proposal to open = flight training facility at the Portsmouth
International Airport at Pease. After a review of the application, staff has determined that the proposal by
CHI Aetospace does meet the Minimum Standatds for Commercial and Noncommercial General Aviation
Opetatots for PSM last updated on August 16, 2007.

CHI Aetospace has certified flight instructors on staff and currently petforms flight instruction at
Hampton Airfield with a fleet of four aircraft and has acquited a flight simulator for Instrument Flight
Training as well. They would lease space from Port City Air in Hangar 212 and will make improvements to
the facility to suit their needs.

I request that the Airport Committee recommend to the PDA Board of Directots at its January 19,
2017 meeting, to approve CHI Aerospace’s application to provide flight training services at the Pottsmouth
International Airport at Pease. Attached is CHI Aerospace’s tequest to provide such services.

OO0 TAKING1 YOU THERE

b ; 2 23 o~ oara
603-433-6088 fax 6NRA-427-0433



CHI AEROSPACE FUELS, LL.C

~ November 25, 2016

Mr. David R. Mullen

Executive Director

Pease Development Authority
' 55 International Drive

Newmgton NH 03801

Referenee Applrcatron
Dear Mr. Mullen,

Please consider the following application for CHI Aerospace Fuels LLC dibfa CHI
Aerospace, operate a flight trainrng facrlrty at Pease lntematronal Airport.

- 1. Applicant; CHI Aerospace Fuels, LLC d/bla CHI Aerospace
430WestRoad .- -
Portsmouth NH 03801 -
2. Services to be Offered:: o
.. Flight traimng in Irght sport aircraft
. Flight training for the mobility impaired
. Simulated flight trainlng in'FAA approved srmulator(s)
Flying club activities, including but not limited to: -
- i Model building
ii. Simulator contests o
~iil. Classés in aerospace operatrons and employment opportunitiues
3. Proposed start of service date: January 1,2017 -
4. .Facilrtres To be leased from Poit City Alr, INC .- .
. ‘a. Heated hangar space for four light sport aircraft, and; -
b. 2,297 SF of ¢ space within Harigar 212, North End, (58 Durham Road,
Portsmouth, NH 03801) comprised of: . .
i. Approximately 2,045 SF of dedrcated prrvate office and simulator
~8pace, and,
il Approxrmately 252 SF of area common to the balanoe of the

.....

U'D

oo

‘5. Costs: ,
'CHI Aerospace plans to make various non-structural modifications to the leased
space, at an estimated cost of $25,000, including: .
a. Two new doors to separate the publrclcommon space and;
b. New entry door with side lites, and A
c. New awing over the new entry door, and _
d. Office partitions {o separate the various activities, and
- 430 West Road Portsmouth, NH 03801 -
978-764-2988
chosford chiengineering.com
Page 1 of 4




CHI AEROSPACE FUELS, LLC

e. Remodeling of the sanitary facilities to provide handicapped access, and;
f. New flooring and ceiling in the existmg storagé room, and;
g. Sub metering of the electrical power to the leased space
h. Various other non-structural modifications that might be requrred
6. Financial Responsibility:
The proposed activities will be funded by Chiistian S. Hosford, P. E., sole
menmiber of CHI Aerospace Fuels, LLC, who has been furding. slmllar activities at
7B3 for the past three years, Hosford is thé founder of CHI Engmeermg Services,
430 West Road, Portsmouth, NH 03801, and currently semi-retired and serving
as a senior consultant to the fim. CHI Aerospace Fuels, LLC owns all of the
arrcrafl and equipment to-be-located-at-KPSM-out right-and neither-the. .
corporation nor.the member has any debt.
7. Nares of Quallficatlons of Key Personnel:

a. Lee Faulkner Chief PrlotIOperator
+ BS Embry-Riddle Aeronautical University.
ii Commercial Pilot, Airplane SEL, MEL, SES, Instrument, CFil.
~ fii. FAASTeam Representative.
b.  Christian S. Hosford, P.E. pnvate pilot and busmess leader for 43 years.

8. Insurance:
Insurance is. provrded in accordance with the Port Clty Air lease, and includes:

_ .(Certrflcates to be provrded before occupancy)

a. Fire and extended insurance on Lessee s personal property, trade fixtures
and equipment located in or on the Premises, in an amount equal to the
full replacement value thereof: ($250,000) - '

b. Comprehensive General Lrabrllty (or dircraft liability extended to alrport
premises: exposures) insuraince for the Premises, oni an occurrence basis
having a combined single limit of not less than One Million Dollars
($1,000,000) per occurrence, insuring Lessee against any liability anslng
out of the use or ocgupancy ofthe Premlses :

¢. Al Risks Aircraft Hull lnsurance on any arrcraft OWned leased, managed
or operated by Lessee which is in, on or.about the Premisés, inthe
amount of one hundred pereent (1 00%) of the replacement value of such

aircrafl

d. Aircraft liability insurance on any aircraft owned, leased, managed or
opereted by Lessee (ircluding | Non-Owned Aircraft Liability Insurance)
which is in, or about the Premlses on an occurrence basis having a
combined single limit of not less than One-Million Dollars ($1,000,000) per

430 West Road, Portsmouth, NH 03801
978-764-2988

Page 20f4



CHI AEROSPACE FUELS, LLC

occuirence.

e. Workers Compensatlon lnsurance at statutory limits and Employers
Liability Insurance in ah amount not less than One Mrllron Dollars '
($1, 000 000) each accident / employee (From Paychex)

f. Comprehenslve Automoblle Llablllty Insurance applying to all owned, hired
‘and non-owned vehicles entering upon the Premises or associated Office
Space, or ways adjoining, with a limit of not less than One Million Dollars
($1,000,000) per occurrence; (fo be supplied on a per vehicle basis when
secure entry is required)
9. Aircraft;
The following aircraft are owned outright by CHI and will be Iocated at KPSM.
a. N288VA, 2014 Van's RV-12 SLSA with dual digital avionics,
b. N271VA, 2015 Van's RV-12 SLSA with dual digital avionics,
‘c. N370LS, 2010 Flight Desrgn CTLS, SLSA with drgrtal avionics and ballistic
. rescué system
- d. N3443H, 1946 Ercoupe 415C light sport aircraft suitable for mobility
lmparred training (no rudder pedals)
10. Equrpment tools, etc
The following equipment will be located at Hangar 212.
“a. 2015 hydraulic “Hoyer" lift for the handicapped, with remote control,
specifically designed for the Ercoupe.
b. 2016 Redbird FMX Full motion simulator, fully rated for FAA approved
flight tralmng. including instrurnent training.
'2016 Redbird full motion X-Wind cross wind flight trainer
2016 Redbird Jay table top flight simulator.
2 Hp. air compressor, 5 gallon tank, dryer, and 100 feet of air hose with
Schrader valve and pressuré gauge.
Battery operated vacuum cleaning system -
Computer system that incorporates an point of sale terminal, inventory
system, and scheduling system.
Security CCTV system that is either part of the PCA system. or indlvrdual.
‘Secure entry system(s) that is compliant with the TSA/PDA/PCA
requirements.
Limited inventory, perhaps 10 liters, of Shelf Light Sport engine oil.
Limited inventory of aircraft cleaning/polishing consumables.
Limited inventory of flight training publications and equiipment
5 erlted inventory of promotional mérchandise, such as teé shirts, jackets,
etc. .
11. Staff. . _
The compliment of the staff will be determined by that required to meet the
demand. The Initial staff will be:-
-&, Full time Chief Pilot
430 West Road, Portsmouth, NH 03801
'978-764-2988

hosford@chlengmeen g. Qm
Page 3of4

PR

~F @~

3 -"-'?r‘f-



CHI AEROSPACE FUELS, LLC

b. One part time flight instructor

-c. .One full time-general managerlscheduler/retail clerk
d. Two pert time schedulers/retail clerks '

-@.- One-part time teenage tralneelhelper

12. Hours of Operation: . '
. The hours or operation will vary dependmg on student schedules, but genérally

wnll be 8: 00 AM 10 6 00 PM, seven days a week, ﬁfty two weeks ayear.

i belleve the above represents a complete application and 1 look forward to appearing
before you end your commission at your December 2016 meeting.

Sincerely, ~

Christian S, Hosford, P.E
Member

430 West Road, Portsrouth, NH 03801
| 978-784—2988 -




* COPY

PEASE DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY AGENDA
Marketing & Economic Development Committee
Friday, January 6, 2017

Time: 9:00 a.m. _
Place: 55 International Drive, Pease International Tradeport
Portsmouth, New Hampshire

AGENDA
L Call to Order (Loughlin)
1. Acceptance of Minutes to Form only: April 17, 2006*
1L Public Comment

IV.  Old Business

V. New Business - '

A. Public Work Session: Committee and Staff re: RTG, Inc.

Presentation by Maria Stowell

Presentation by Marcus Ebert

Presentation by Irving Canner

Review of Annotated Lease Agreement by Lynn Hinchee*
Questions, Comments, Discussion; Additional Information Required

Committee Recommendation

Sk LN&

VI.  Upcoming Meetings:
Board Meeting January 19,2017

VH. Adjournment

VIII. Press Questions

* Related Materials Attached

** Related Materials Previously Sent

*kk  Related Materials will be provided under separate cover
Materials to be distributed at Board Meeting
Confidential Materials

u+



PEASE

INTERNATIONAL 55 International Drive, Portamoutn, NH 3801

DEVELOPMENT
AUTHORITY

MOTION

Director Lamson:

In order to permit a full discussion of this matter, | make the
following motion: The Pease Development Authority Board of Directors
hereby approves of and authorizes the Executive Director to complete
negotiations with Royal Technical Group, LLC (RTG) and to execute a Lease
with RTG for Hangar 227 upon substantially similar terms and conditions
of the document attached hereto as Draft 002 LMH - 1/13/17.

Note: Roll call vote required

N:\RESOLVES\RTGLLCO117.docx

OQOO TAKING YOU THERE

nhe ANR_LRA2.8N05 ing: ROS.AR2T7-04ARS www . neasedev.org



P:\Hangar 227\LeaseDraft002011317.docx

DRAFT 002
LMH - 01/13/2017

LEASE
BETWEEN
PEASE DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY

AS

"LESSOR"

AND
ROYAL TECHNICAL GROUP, INC.

AS

"LESSEE"



TABLE OF CONTENTS

ARTICLE PAGE
LEASE .ottt e s e e 3
RECITALS ..ottt srts b e bt snsa st s sss e s s bbb s ensan e asaes 3
ARTICLE 1 PREMISES ..ottt ssse et siresssssss s ssasesssssssnenses e
ARTICLE 1.LA.°  TENANT’S WORK.......ccecvuriemiirenrenimeecresaseseierescrsssressesessssssssinssssonsssssesssens 9
ARTICLE 1.B. FUTURE EXPANSION ......ooctiriceeireinennriecninisensieaeiessesnesee s ssissssssensnsens 13
ARTICLE 2. CONDITION OF LEASED PREMISES.........ccoooeieiieniincs s 14
ARTICLE 3 TERM .ottt et sb e e s 15
ARTICLE 4 BUILDING AREA RENT - MUNICIPAL SERVICES FEE - LANDING FEES
& PARKING FEES ..ottt sas e ssasessssassesssnens 17
ARTICLE 5 IMPOSITIONS .....ooiiiimiiiiiiminiericner et resere e e s sttt shebs s sasaenne s 24
ARTICLE 6 SURRENDER OF LEASED PREMISES .......ccooceivierrrernecriccesinsmsinnens 25
ARTICLE 7 INSURANCE ...ttt rncsst e ses s s seassssnssssssasssnsseans 26
ARTICLE 8 LESSOR'S RIGHT TO PERFORM LESSEE'S COVENANTS .......cccccvvirnnnve, 30
ARTICLE 9 USE OF LEASED PREMISES.........ccoiminciinccnnn e anens 31
ARTICLE 9A.  LESSOR SERVICES........ccooivitimrtrierniceeerinsesesseseseesesesasessssesssasisinisssesenes 34
ARTICLE9A  LESSOR SERVICES.......ccconmimieimienineneensienesrsessessssssssssnsosssasssssssssssases 34
ARTICLE 9B. RESTRICTIONS ON CERTAIN AIRCRAFT OPERATIONS .........cccocnuvinneee. 35
ARTICLE 10 LIENS ..ottt st b st as s ents 36
ARTICLE 11 REPAIRS AND MAINTENANCE .....cocccommiireiecnsieissineisieressssssnsssaessssans 37
ARTICLE 12 RIGHT OF LESSOR TO INSPECT AND REPAIR .........ccoovurrmrrreerersnmsecennens 38
ARTICLE 13 GENERAL INDEMNIFICATION BY LESSEE.......ccocvivniinncmnieiinnene e 39
ARTICLE 14 UTILITIES .ottt stisast st st ssscsnsssnssssssansnassensasssassaens 40
ARTICLE 15 ALTERATIONS - SIGNS.....o ottt iisnsnsis s sssss s eens 42
ARTICLE 16 DESTRUCTION AND RESTORATION........cccovuvereermminmimsiircniimnminsncsnerinessrens 44
ARTICLE 16(A) EMINENT DOMAIN......occcoiimimniecnrenninrrmiscrsmressesssescesssnaeesessstssssessssssinsnssssens 47
ARTICLE 17 DEFAULT BY LESSOR ......coiviriiecine it ssssssss s s 48
ARTICLE 18 DEFAULT BY LESSEE ......cconmieiirineienesmiismsssssesssesssesssessssssessessesessessensssenss .50
ARTICLE 19 DELEGATION - ASSIGNMENT - SUBLEASES - MORTGAGES..........ccoo... 33
ARTICLE 20 [RESERVED] ...cconiiiiiiiimiiiiiniir e iecscrsnecmsesesi s rsnisssnssasssssssssss s 55
ARTICLE 21 ESTOPPEL CERTIFICATES AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS. .................. 56
ARTICLE 22 INVALIDITY OF PARTICULAR PROVISIONS ......cccoiimiiinmninrieniiniinnennenn, 57
ARTICLE 23 NOTICES ...ttt er e sten et nener s b s s b s s s ssa b enes 58
ARTICLE 24 QUIET ENJOYMENT .......ccortiivinrieiremeitieseniciesssimnsesisssissensss s ssssssesense 59
ARTICLE 25 ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION........cccecerimmmrnimninmmieieninimncssessssnesesenens 60
ARTICLE 26 MISCELLANEQUS ...ttt e eseeesesnsnensssssinssasasensane 67
ARTICLE 27 GUARANTY/SECURITY DEPOSIT .....c.ccoormiirnircrnnicirsre e s 71



EXHIBITS TO LEASE

EXHIBIT
1 - QUITCLAIM DEED AND EXHIBITS
2 - FEDERAL FACILITIES AGREEMENT
3 - LANDING FEE AND PARKING FEE REPORTS
"A" PLANS DESIGNATING THE LEASED PREMISES (SUBDIVISION PLAN)
"A-1" EXCLUDED BUILDING AREAS
"A-2" ESTABLISHMENT OF A PART 145 REPAIR STATION IN NEW HAMPSHIRE
"A-3" PHASE 2 EXPANSION OF THE PREMISES
"A-4" PHASE 3 EXPANSION OF THE PREMISES
"A-5" OCCUPANCY PHASE 1A
"A-6" OCCUPANCY PHASE 1B
"A-7." OCCUPANCY PHASE 1C
"B" MINIMUM STANDARDS FOR COMMERCIAL AND NONCOMMERCIAL
GENERAL AVIATION OPERATORS
"B-1" RESTRICTIONS ON CERTAIN AIRCRAFT OPERATIONS
"C! RESERVED
"D" SUMMARY OF LEASE PROVISIONS REQUIRED BY THE FEDERAL
AVIATION ADMINISTRATION
"E" LIST OF ENVIRONMENTAL LAWS AND REGULATIONS
"R CERTIFICATE OF GOOD STANDING
“GQ” GUARANTY
“H” INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS - CONTRACTORS/SUBCONTRACTORS

“17 LETTER TO MICHAEL J. WIMSATT DATED DECEMBER 22, 2016

-1i-



LEASE

THIS LEASE ("Lease") is made by and between the PEASE DEVELOPMENT
AUTHORITY ("Lessor" or "PDA") and ROYAL TECHNICAL GROUP, INC. with a principal
place of business at Burlington, NC. ("RTG" or "Lessee"). (Lessor and Lessee may be referred to
jointly as the "Parties.")

RECITALS

A Lessor is an agency of the State of New Hampshire established pursuant to RSA
ch. 12-G, "Pease Development Authority," and is authorized to enter into this Lease pursuant to
the provisions contained therein.

B. In 1992, Lessor commenced its acquisition of fee title to portions of the former
Pease Air Force Base from the United States of America ("Government" or "Air Force") by
public benefit transfer (i.e. transfer without consideration) pursuant to the general authority
contained in 49 U.S.C. Sections 47151-47153 and other applicable provisions of law (the
"Airport" or "Pease"). The terms of such acquisition are set forth in an Amended Application
for Public Benefit Transfer executed by Lessor ("Application") and accepted by the Air Force on
April 14, 1992 (the "Acceptance"), as the same have been subsequently amended by Amendment
No. 1 dated March 24, 1994 and executed June 27, 1997 ("Amendment No. 1"). (The
Application, as amended by Amendment No. 1 may be referred to as the "Amended
Application.") The Amended Application was approved December 12, 1995 and confirmed
March 18, 1997 and the Air Force executed an acceptance of the Amended Application on June
26, 1997 ("Acceptance II"). (The Acceptance and Acceptance I may be referred to collectively as
the "Acceptance.") Pending final disposition of the Airport in accordance with the terms of the
Amended Application and Acceptances, the Lessor and Air Force entered into a Lease on April
14, 1992 for the Airport District, a Supplement No. 1 thereto dated August 4, 1992, a
Supplement No. 2 thereto dated July 15, 1993, a Supplement No. 3 thereto dated June 27, 1997,
and a Supplement No. 4 thereto dated October 15, 2003 (collectively the "Master Lease").

C. By Quitclaim Deed (and Exhibits A - G, inclusive) made and entered into on
October 15, 2003 and by Quitclaim Deed made and entered into on September 16, 2005 (and
Exhibits A - D inclusive) (collectively the "Deed"), the Government, acting by and through the
Secretary of the Air Force did grant to PDA the land and improvements located in the City of
Portsmouth, Town of Newington and Town of Greenland, as contemplated by the Master Lease,
Application and Acceptances, and which Deed includes the Leased Premises. The Parties
acknowledge that the Deed imposes certain requirements on Lessee with respect to leases which
are addressed in the terms and conditions of this Lease. A copy of the Deed is attached to this
Lease as Exhibit 1.

-iii-



D. The Parties acknowledge that a Federal Facilities Agreement ("FFA") required
under Section 120 of the Comprehensive Environmental Response, Compensation and Liability
Act of 1980, as amended, 42 U.S.C. § 9601 et seq. has been entered into by the Air Force, the
New Hampshire Department of Environmental Services ("NHDES") and the United States
Environmental Protection Agency ("EPA") regarding certain contamination at Pease and that this
FFA also imposes certain requirements upon Lessor and Lessee which are addressed in the terms
and conditions of this Lease. A copy of the FFA is attached to this Lease as Exhibit 2. Unless
the context refers specifically to the document constituting Exhibit 2, the term FFA shall include

any amendments to said document.

IE. Lessee is a North Carolina corporation formed on August 30, 2013 and is
registered to do business in New Hampshire.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the covenants herein contained and other
valuable consideration, the receipt of which is hereby acknowledged, Lessor and Lessee hereby

agree as follows:



ARTICLE 1.
PREMISES

1.1.  Description of Leased Premises

Lessor, for and in consideration of the rents and covenants herein specified to be paid and
performed by Lessee, hereby leases to Lessee, and Lessee hereby hires from Lessor, the land,
buildings and other facilities and improvements located in the Airport Zone at 14 Aviation
Avenue in Portsmouth, New Hampshire, (“14 Aviation” or “Building 227”) consisting of
498,762+/-square feet of land area (11.45+/- acres) together with an existing hangar building
consisting of 203,498 square feet (the “Hangar”), which land area is more particularly described
on the plans attached as Exhibit A (the "Leased Premises" or the "Premises").

[N.B. For the purposes of the vote to be taken at the PDA Board meeting on January
19, 2017, a sketch depicting the Revised Lease Areas dated January 11, 2017 is included
under cover of Exhibit A.]

Excluded from the Leased Premises are property or other rights obtained by a wtility
supplier from the Lessor pursuant to a Lease or other agreement in connection with the provision
of utility lines and or utility services at the airport.

As of the Execution Date (defined in Article 3 below) the maximum available hangar
square footage will be 174,673 square feet excluding a license area under agreement to Cianbro
Corporation through December 31, 2017 and the multi-story area known as Tower D, both
shown on the sketch attached hereto as Exhibit A-1.

1.2. Easements - Rights-of-Way

This Lease is subject to existing easements and rights-of-way of record and to (i) the
Utility Sublease and License Agreement dated July 31, 1992 by and between PDA and Public
Service Company of New Hampshire ("PSNH"); (ii) the utility Sublease and License Agreement
dated March 23, 1995 by and between PDA and New England Telephone and Telegraph
Company ("NETEL"); (iii) the Wastewater Disposal and Water Service Facilities Sublease and
License Agreement dated as of January 1, 1993 and amended July 1, 1998 by and between PDA
and the City of Portsmouth ("COP") and (iv) and to the Pipeline Easement and Transfer
Agreement dated August 12, 1998 by and between PDA, Portland Natural Gas Transmission
System and Maritimes & Northeast Pipeline, L.L.C.

The Government reserves for the use and benefit of the public, an avigation easement and
a right of way for the free and unobstructed passage of aircraft in the airspace above the surface
of the Airport, together with the right to cause in such airspace such sound, vibrations, fumes,
dust, fuel particles, and all other effects as may be caused by the operation of aircraft, now



known or hereafter used, for the navigation through or flight in the said airspace, and for use of
said airspace for landing on, taking off from, or operating on the Airport.

The Government reserves a no cost right of access for purposes of environmental
investigation, response or other corrective action, as required by CERCLA Section
120(h)(3)(A)(iii), the FFA, and as otherwise set forth in Article 25 of this Lease.

1.2.1 Existing Agreements

The Parties acknowledge and agree that premises shown as a single subdivided lot on
Plan D-27540 described in Section 1.1above include lease, license or other agreements which
may burden the Leased Premises, including the hangar (collectively the “Existing Agreements”).
The terms and conditions of said agreements, scheduled below, shall remain in full force and
effect and, except for the Cianbro Corporation License and the Lonza Biologics, Inc. License,
may be extended without Lessee’s consent unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Parties at
the request of Lessee. At the written request of Lessee, Lessor shall provide sixty (60) days
written notice to Lonza Biologics, Inc. terminating its License prior to its natural expiration date.

Cianbro Corporation: License; expires December 31, 2017; License to use a portion of
Hangar 227 located at 14 Aviation Avenue, (consisting of approximately 15,000 square feet of
hangar space, as may be assigned and designated from time to time by PDA) and the parking area
adjacent thereto

Lonza Biologics, Inc.: License; expires June 30, 2017; exclusive License (including as to
PDA) to use a parking area adjacent to 14 Aviation Avenue, Portsmouth, NH, consisting of 119
spaces

Port City Air Inc. ("PCA"): Lease Agreement; The Fuel Farm located directly West of
and at the rear of Hangar 227 occupying a 28,336 square foot area consisting of five 20,000
gallon Jet A fuel tanks, one 20,000 gallon fuel tank used for miscellaneous fuels, fuel spill dykes
and alarms, pumps, plumbing and hardware, electrical controls and two associated sheds which
house the electrical and alarm systems.

Port City Air, Inc.: Hangar 229 Right of Entry; expires June 30, 2017, for the purpose of
the storage of ground support equipment in connection with PCA's aviation related activities at
PSM.

Prior to expiration or termination of the Existing Agreements, each is available to Lessee upon
request.

13. General Rights of Access

Subject to the provisions and additional restrictions set forth in Article 9 and other
pertinent provisions of this Lease, Lessee shall have in common with other authorized Airport

-6-



users the right to use the entrances, exits and roadways designated by Lessor for common use at
the Airport. Lessee shall also have in common with other airfield users the right to use the
runway, taxiways and available common apron areas of the Airport.

The rights of Lessee under this Section 1.3 shall be subordinate to Lessor's rights to
manage the Airport and other common areas and roadways, which rights shall include, without
limitation, the right to impose reasonable rules and regulations relating to use of the Airport
common areas and roadways and the right to add, delete, alter or otherwise modify the
designation and use of all Airport facilities and parking areas, entrances, exits, roadways and
other areas of the Airport, to the extent all of the foregoing are not part of the Leased Premises;
provided, however, that Lessee shall continue at all times to have reasonable access to and use of
the Leased Premises and the runway, taxiways, and available common apron areas.

The rights of Lessee or any of its employees, contractors, subcontractors, agents, servants
or invitees to access, by ground vehicle or otherwise, restricted or controlled areas or the
flightline area shall be subject to the training and security requirements set forth in the Pease
International Tradeport Airport Certification Manual as the same may be from time to time
amended.

Lessee shall comply with all federal, state and local laws, rules and regulations which
apply to the conduct of the uses contemplated under this Lease, including, without limitation,
rules and regulations promulgated by Lessor. Lessee shall pay to Lessor an amount equal to all
fines levied by any governmental body against Lessor for any breach of applicable requirements
by Lessee or any of its employees, contractors, subcontractors, agents, servants or invitees.
Nothing in this Section 1.3 shall modify or amend the rights and obligations of the Parties with
respect to environmental matters as set forth in Article 25 of this Lease.

1.4. Airport Access

Lessee shall ensure that its agents and contractors comply with all PSM Airport and TSA
security requirements and is required to inform the PDA’s Airport Management Department
when contractors will be on site conducting work authorized under this Lease. Lessee
acknowledges that the property is in the Security Identification Display Area (SIDA) at PSM.
Designated representatives of Lessee will be required to obtain airport SIDA badges and qualify
as escorts in order for representatives, employees and agents of Lessee to gain access to and .
remain in the SIDA. While in the SIDA, escort procedures per the requirements of the PSM’s
Security Program must be met. Prior to accessing the Premises, all persons who are going to
obtain a SIDA badge must undergo criminal history check, and pass a TSA security threat
assessment, and attend a training class that is offered no more than two times a month and pay
any applicable fees. Information regarding escort requirements can be obtained by calling the
Airport Management Department at (603) 433-6536, Monday through Thursday, 8:00 a.m. to
5:00 p.m. and 8:00am to 4:00pm on Fridays. No representative, employee or agent of the Lessee
will be allowed in the SIDA without escorts meeting the requirements of the PSM’s Security

Program.



Lessee is responsible for maintaining airport security requirements for SIDA badges and
for facilities that provide direct or indirect access to the airfield. Any TSA fines incurred by the
Lessor due to Lessee’s actions or inaction will be fully reimbursed by the Lessee. Lessee
acknowledges that PDA retains the right to enter Lessee’s leased apron areas and hangar areas
where security inspections are conducted.

END OF ARTICLE 1




ARTICLE 1.A.

TENANT’S WORK

1.A.1 In order to induce the Lessor to enter into this Lease, the Lessee covenants and agrees
that it will make application for, undertake and continue with due diligence (but subject
specifically to the terms and conditions set forth herein), following execution of the Lease, at its
sole expense, the design, installation and construction of improvements to the Premises necessary
or appropriate to RTG’s transfer and amendment of its repair station certificate for Limited
Landing Gear Components to include the Premises as a satellite location and, further, to expand
the capability approved to operate a full service MRO, as defined in Article 9 below.

Lessee is currently the holder of an Air Agency Certificate issued by the Greensboro, NC
Flight Standards District Office (“FSDO”) of the FAA. Lessee is authorized in NC to operate a
repair station and is rated for “limited landing gear components.” Lessee has represented its
intention to operate an expanded facility at Pease for provision of full aircraft maintenance
services, to include mobile repair station services. The jurisdictional FSDO for Pease is located
in Portland, ME. A memorandum from Lessee setting forth the process for “Establishment of a
Part 145 Repair Station in New Hampshire” is attached hereto at Exhibit A-2. RTG will make
any required application to the Federal Aviation Administration (“FAA”) within 30 days of the
Execution Date as defined in Article 3 below.

Lessee’s obligation shall include, without limitation, the obligation to make timely
application, diligently pursue and obtain necessary approvals and/or any and all permits required
for its renovation and construction and intended use of the Leased Premises in accordance with
the schedule set forth below.

Without limiting the foregoing, Lessee agrees that during the term of the Lease, including
any available extension options, improvements to the Leased Premises to be made by Lessee

shall include construction on and under the Leased Premises (and the inclusion of necessary
equipment) of:

Phase 1A Improvements to be completed not later than that Term Commencement Date:
A. Complete Fire Suppression System Upgrading and Repairs

B. Complete Upgrades and Repairs required to obtain a Certificate of Occupancy for
not less than Phase 1A as shown on Exhibit A-5 attached hereto.

Phase 1B and 1C Improvements subject to PDA approval and a condition precedent to Lessee’s
unilateral exercise of Option 1 for an additional term of five (5) years.

Phase 2 Improvements subject to PDA’s approval and condition precedent to Lessee’s unilateral

-9-



exercise of Option 2 for an additional term of five (5) years
A. Expansion of the Premises as shown on Exhibit A-3 attached hereto.

Phase 3 Improvements subject to PDA approval and a condition precedent to Lessee’s unilateral
exercise of the Option 3 to extend the Lease Term for an additional term of five (5) years.

A Expansion of the Premises as shown of the concept plan sketch attached hereto as
Exhibit A-4.

The provisions of Article 15 and Article 25 applicable to construction work shall apply
with equal force to any demolition and/or construction work by Lessee under this Article.

Any approval or agreement by Lessor with respect to any element(s) of the Construction
Plan(s) shall not affect in any way any other approval or other process involving Lessor in its
governmental capacity, including, without limitation, requirements under the Lessor’s Land Use
Controls as defined in Section 9.3. of this Lease.

Lessee agrees to be solely responsible for any plans and specifications used by it and for
any loss or damages resulting from the use thereof, notwithstanding the same having been
approved by Lessor and notwithstanding the incorporation therein of Lessor recommendations or
requirements. Notwithstanding the requirement for approval by Lessor or the incorporation
therein of Lessor requirements or recommendations, and notwithstanding any rights Lessor may
have reserved to itself under this Lease, Lessor shall have no liabilities or obligations of any kind
to any contractors engaged by Lessee for any other matter in connection with any such approval
by Lessor or Lessor requirements or recommendations, and Lessee hereby releases and
discharges Lessor, its board members, officers, representatives and employees of and from any
and all liability, claims for damages or losses of any kind, or from any action or cause of action
arising or alleged to arise out of the performance of any work putsuant to the contracts between
Lessee and its contractors.

Not later than the Execution Date, Lessee will appoint a project manager (the "Project
Manager") to administer Lessee’s construction and other related activities at the Leased Premises.
The Project Manager shall be responsible for coordinating with Lessor and keeping Lessor
generally up to date on major construction and construction related activities of Lessee and shall
be available at the Airport at all reasonable times and during on-site emergencies or situations
requiring immediate or expeditious response or consultation with Lessor. Unless and until Lessor
has been advised in writing of an appointee, Markus Ebert shall be the designated Project
Manager for the purposes set forth herein.

At the completion of construction, Lessee shall provide Lessor with reproducible as-built
drawings of buildings and building support systems (i.e. , electrical, HVAC, plumbing)
comprising the Facility (but not including any proprietary equipment) when completed.

-10-



1.A.2. Risk of Loss - Builder's Risk Insurance Indemnification

In addition to its obligations under Article 7, Article 13 and Article 15, Lessee hereby
assumes the risk of loss or damage to all of the construction work for or relating to the Facility
and any other improvements prior to the completion thereof and arising out of or in connection
with the performance of Lessee's construction work. Lessee shall provide Builder's Risk
insurance to cover such risk of loss during the period of construction upon terms and conditions
satisfactory to Lessor and designating Lessor as an additional insured/loss payee, as the same
may be appropriate. Binders for Builder's Risk Insurance required to be provided under this
Section 1A.2 shall be submitted to Lessor for its review and approval prior to commencement of
construction work.

Lessee shall require each of its contractors and subcontractors, to defend, indemnify and
hold harmless Lessor, its board members, officers, agents and employees from and against all
claims and demands, of third persons arising or alleged to arise out of the performance of work in
connection with construction of the Facility and any other improvements by Lessee or its
contractors or subcontractors, including all expenses in the defense, settlement or satisfaction
thereof, including without limitation thereto, claims and demands for death, for personal injury or
for property damage, arising from the acts or omissions of such contractors and subcontractors,
excepting only claims and demands which result solely from the negligence of Lessor and its
employees, officers, agents, contractors, and subcontractors.

1.A.3. Performance Guaranty

Lessee shall provide or require its general contractor(s) to provide performance and
payment bonds or a Letter of Credit (the "Performance Guaranty") in an amount and subject to
conditions reasonably acceptable to Lessor to ensure the total performance of the general
contractor(s) for all aspects of the construction work under this Article 1A. The Performance
Guaranty shall be for the benefit of both Lessee and Lessor in the case of performance and
payment bonds provided by the general contractor or exclusively for the benefit of Lessor in all
other cases, and shall be used, if necessary, to complete the. construction work, provided,
however, that the benefits of said Performance Guaranty shall run to the sole benefit of Lessor in
the event Lessee is in default of any of its obligations under this Lease.  The form of the
Performance Guaranty (completed with amounts of coverage and all applicable conditions) shall
be submitted sufficiently in advance of the commencement of any work associated with the
construction of the Facility to allow a reasonable period of review by Lessor. The Performance
Guaranty shall be subject to the approval of Lessor, which approval shall not be unreasonably
withheld or delayed.

1.A.4. Title
Except as provided in Article 6 of this Lease, upon expiration or termination of this

Lease, including any authorized extension thereof, title to the Facility shall be vested in Lessor.
Prior to that time, title to any buildings or improvements situated or erected on the Leased

-11-



Premises and the building equipment and other items installed thereon and any alteration, change
or addition thereto shall remain solely in Lessee and Lessee alone shall be entitled to deduct any
applicable depreciation on Lessee’s income tax returns for any such buildings or equipment and
to any other applicable income tax benefits that are available by reason of such buildings,
improvements and equipment.

1.A.5. Transportation Infrastructure Improvement Fee

Lessee acknowledges that its MRO operations and future expansion of hangar the will
generate additional traffic at Pease International Tradeport and consequently have a direct impact
on traffic patterns and conditions at the Tradeport.

Lessece agrees to pay a proportional share of any Transportation Infrastructure
Improvement Fee (“TII Fee”). for infrastructure improvements including, but not limited to,
signals, signage, markings, geometric changes to intersections and/or roadways and other traffic
control devices. Lessee’s proportional share of the TII Fee shall be based upon a formula which
will be established by Lessor and applied uniformly and proportionally to all projects which are
subject to said fee, Lessee’s TII Fee shall not exceed the best estimate of its reasonable share of
these improvements based on the actual traffic impact caused by the additional p.m. peak hour
traffic generated by RTG’s operations as- determined by PDA’s transportation consultant,
Vanasse, Hangen & Brustlin, Inc. based on information provided by RTG or otherwise verified
by PDA. Once established by the PDA and billed to all similarly situated projects, payment of the
Transportation Infrastructure Improvement Fee shall be made in the same manner as Building
Area Rent payments set forth in Article 4 and may be paid in equal installments over a twelve
month period commencing on the first day of the month following authorization by the PDA
Board of Directors and notification to Lessee of the its share of the fee. The current estimated
proportional share will be based on a projection of $1,285 per pm peak hour trip end.

Lessor and Lessee agree that its proportional share of the TII Fee may be reviewed and
adjusted at the following times: i) the first to occur of receipt of an occupancy permit, and ii)
receipt of an occupancy permit for any additional square footage constructed by Lessee during
the term of this Lease.

END OF ARTICLE 1.A

-12-



ARTICLE 1.B.
FUTURE EXPANSION

1.B.1. Future Expansion

Lessee contemplates the design and construction of two separate expansions to the
existing Hangar within the Leased Premises. It is the current expecta’uon of Lessee to expand the
Hangar, during the term of the Lease as follows:

Phase 2: Construction of a new nose dock of approximately 85’ long and 60’ deep
(5,100 sq. ft.) as shown on Exhibit A-3 attached hereto; and

Phase 3: Construction of a 675’ long x 90” deep expansion (60.750 sq. ft.) as
shown on Exhibit A-4 attached hereto

END OF ARTICLE 1.B.

-13-



ARTICLE 2.

CONDITION OF LEASED PREMISES

2.1. Lessee acknowledges that it has inspected the Leased Premises, including all buildings,
improvements and other facilities thereon, as of the date of execution of this Lease and that it has
determined that the said Leased Premises are in good and tenantable condition. Except as
otherwise expressly set forth herein, Lessee accepts said Leased Premises in their present
condition and without any representation or warranty by Lessor as to the condition of said Leased
Premises or as to the use or occupancy which may be made thereof and without obligation on the
part of the Lessor to make any alterations, repairs or additions to said Leased Premises that has
not been fully set forth in this Lease. Further, except as otherwise expressly set forth in this
Lease, Lessor shall not be responsible for any latent or other defect or change of condition in said
Leased Premises, and the rent hereunder shall in no event be withheld or diminished on account
of any such defect in said Leased Premises nor any such change in its condition, nor, except as
provided herein, for any damage occurring thereto.

END OF ARTICLE 2

-14-



ARTICLE 3.
TERM

3.1.  This Lease shall be effective upon execution (the “Execution Date™) and shall continue
for a base term of ten (10) years ("Base Term") which term shall commence on the earlier to
occur of the following events; (i) receipt of an occupancy permit for Phase 1A, consisting of
63,458+/- square feet or, (ii) twelve (12) months from the execution of the Lease ("Term
Commencement Date"). Lessee is also granted six (6) five (5) year options to extend the Lease.
In no event shall the Base Term and all option periods extend beyond forty (40) years from the
Term Commencement Date. Any extension of the term through exercise of an option shall be
upon the same terms and conditions applicable to the Base Term, provided that rental rates shall
escalate as provided in Article 4 (and any other applicable provision addressing rental rates).

3.2. Asacondition precedent to the exercise by Lessee of any of its options to extend the term
of this Lease, Lessee shall give a written notice ("Option Notice") to Lessor of its exercise of
each such option at least six (6) months prior to the end of the Base Term or the end of any
applicable Option Period.

3.3. Inaddition to the notice requirement set forth in Section 3.2 above, the following shall be
a condition precedent to the unilateral exercise by Lessee of extension options 1, 2 and 3.

Option 1 — Years 11 -15: Lessee shall have received a certificate of occupancy for
Phases 1A, 1B, and 1C of the Hangar, a total of 190,778+/- square feet and, to the extent
Tower D is no longer subject to remedial action and is characterized as having no
significant risk, the additional 14,325+/- square feet of Tower D. Notwithstanding any
provision of this Lease to the contrary, Lessee shall have not less than twelve (12) months
from the designation of Tower D as no significant risk to obtain an occupancy permit and
shall have satisfied the employment requirements set forth in Article 4A of the Lease.

Option 2 — Years 16 -20: Lessee shall have completed Phase 2 of its expansion as
shown on Exhibit A-3 and shall have satisfied the employment requirements set forth in
Article 4A of the Lease.

Option 3 — Years 21 -25: Lessee shall have completed Phase 3 of its expansion as
shown of Exhibit A-4 and shall have satisfied the employment requirements set forth in
Article 4A of the Lease. ‘

Options 4, 5,and 6: Except as otherwise provided in this Lease, there are no condition
precedents to Lessee’s unilateral exercise of Options 4, 5, and 6.

34. The options to extend the term hereby granted may not be exercised at any time during

which Lessee is in default under any of the terms of this Lease, and, at the election of Lessor,
shall not be effective if any default occurs after the exercise of such option and before the

-15-



expiration of the applicable term, it being the intent of the Parties that the options granted hereby
may not be exercised or become effective at a time when a default by Lessee exists under this

Lease,

3.5. Notwithstanding any provisions herein to the contrary, Lessor and Lessee may mutually
agree to the exercise by Lessee of any of extension options 1, 2, or 3 whether or not the
conditions precedent have been met by Lessee.

3.6. Unless the context clearly indicates otherwise when used in this Lease the phrase "term of
this Lease" shall mean the Base Term plus any duly exercised allowable extensions thereof.

END OF ARTICLE 3

-16-



ARTICLE 4.

BUILDING AREA RENT - MUNICIPAL SERVICES FEE - LANDING FEES & PARKING

FEES

4.1. Lessee shall pay to Lessor Building Area Rent ("Building Area Rent") at the following
annual minimum rates for the areas of the Leased Premises described in Section 1.1:

Lease Execution to Term
Commencement Date - not to
exceed 12 months

Term Commencement Date to
Occupancy of Phase 1A —not to
exceed 24 months (Lease Years 1
and 2)

Lease Year 3 to occupancy of Phase
1B —not to exceed 24 months (Lease
Years 3 and 4)

Lease Year 5
Full occupancy of Hanger 227 Phase 1C
but excluding Tower D

Year 6:

Years 7-10:

$1.75 per square foot ($305,677.75 per annum)
based on access for cold storage and tenant work of
174,673 square feet (See Exhibit A-1)

$1.75 per square foot ($194,626.25)

based on access for cold storage and tenant work of
111,215 square feet; and

$3.50 per square foot ($222,103.00)

based on occupancy of 63,458 square feet (See
Exhibit A-5)

$1.75 per square foot ($130,095.00) based on access
for cold storage and tenmant work of 74,340 to
include the former 15,000 square feet licensed to
Cianbro; and

$3.50 per square feet ($403,665.50) based on
occupancy of 115,333 square feet (See Exhibit A-6)

$3.50 per square foot ($667,723) based on
occupancy of 190,778 square feet (See Exhibit A-7)

an annual amount equal to the Base Rate for Year 5
plus a five (5) year CPI adjustment

an annual payment equal to the Base Rate for the
prior year plus CPI adjustment not to exceed the
lesser of CPI or 3% per year; such adjustment not to
exceed 12% in this four (4) period

-17-



Years 11 —15

and each successive an annual payment equal to the Base Rate rate for the

five (5) year term previous year plus CPI adjustment not to exceed the lesser
of CPI or 3% per year; such adjustment not to exceed 12%
in this five (5) year period

The annual Building Area Rent for the Option Area will be established at a rate that
includes any applicable adjustments in rates applicable to the Premises, to the same extent there
would have been an adjustment in same if such Option Area had been included in the Leased
Premises on the Term Commencement Date.

The annual Building Area Rent for the Leased Premises and Option Area will be based on
the total acreage of the Premises and Preferential Use apron area. The per square foot rate at the
Term Commencement Date is calculated at $.35 per square foot.

4.2. The Building Area Rent due under Section 4.1 shall commence upon the Lease Execution
Date. The annual Building Area Rent shall be payable in each case in equal monthly installments
of one twelfth thereof in advance on the first day of each month without offset in lawful money
of the United States at the office of Lessor at the Airport or at such other address as Lessor may
hereafter designate. In addition, Lessee agrees to pay when due, such other amounts that may be
required to be paid as additional rent. Lessee's rent obligation for any fractional portion of a
calendar month at the beginning or end of the term of this Lease shall be a similar fraction of the
rental due for an entire month.

4.3. As of each Adjustment Date (as hereinafier defined), the Building Area Rent shall be
adjusted as provided in Section 4.4 to reflect changes in the Consumer Price Index for All Urban
Consumers applicable to the Boston area (all items 1982 - 1984 = 100) published by the United
States Department of Labor, Bureau of Labor Statistics (the "Index").

44.  Onthe first day following the expiration of the fifth year of the term of this Lease and on
the first day of each year thereafter (individually an "Adjustment Date" and collectively the
"Adjustment Dates"), Building Area Rent shall be subject to adjustment for the remainder of the
term of-this Lease as follows:

(D For the first adjustment (commencing on the first day following the
expiration of the fifth year of the term of this Lease), the basis for computing such
adjustment shall be the Index most recently published prior to the beginning of the first
year of the term ("Beginning Index"). If the Index most recently published prior to the
first Adjustment Date ("Extension Index") has increased over the Beginning Index, the
Building Area Rent for the one-year period commencing as of such first Adjustment Date
shall be the result obtained by multiplying the annual Building Area Rent in effect on the
day of the Adjustment Date (i.e. the annual rental for year five by a fraction, the
numerator of which is the Extension Index and the denominator of which is the
Beginning Index).

-18-



2) For all subsequent adjustments, the Building Area Rent shall be adjusted
in the same manner as that for the first adjustment; provided, however, that the rental
base shall be the rental in effect just prior to the then applicable Adjustment Date, the
Extension Index for the preceding period shall be the Beginning Index and the Extension
Index shall be the index most recently published prior to the then applicable Adjustment
Date. On each Adjustment Date, the Parties shall execute an acknowledgment reflecting
the new rent. Failure to execute such an acknowledgment shall not affect either the
validity of this Lease or the effective date of any adjustment to the rent hereunder,

(3)  If for any Adjustment Date the Index most recently published prior to the
Adjustment Date has not increased over, or has decreased from, the Beginning Index for
that period, no escalation in rent shall be required on that Adjustment Date, and the rent
shall remain at its then current rate until the next Adjustment Date.

If the Index is changed in any manner, including without limitation, a change in the base
year, the Index shall be converted in accordance with the conversion factor published by the
United States Department of Labor, Bureau of Labor Statistics. If the Index is discontinued or
revised during the term of this Lease, such other government index or computation with which it
is replaced shall be used in order to obtain substantially the same result as would be obtained if
the Index had not been discontinued or revised. If the Parties shall be unable to agree upon a
successor index, the Parties shall refer the choice of a successor index to arbitration in
accordance with the rules of the American Arbitration Association.

4.5. [RESERVED]

4.6. The Building Area Rent payable hereunder shall be net to Lessor, free and clear of any
and all Impositions (as defined in Section 5.1), or expenses of any nature whatsoever in
connection with the Premises. The Parties agree that, except as expressly provided herein, upon
execution of the Lease, all costs, expenses and charges of every kind and nature relating to the
Leased Premises which may be attributed to, or become due at any time after the execution of the
Lease, during the initial or any renewal term of this Lease, shall constitute additional rent to be
paid by Lessee and, upon failure of Lessee to pay any such costs, expenses or charges, Lessor
shall have the same rights and remedies as otherwise provided in this Lease for the failure of
Lessee to pay rent. It is the intention of the Parties that Lessee shall in no event be entitled to
any abatement or reduction in rent payable hereunder, except as expressly provided herein. Any
present or future law to the contrary shall not alter the agreement of the Parties.

4.7. In addition to the Building Area Rent required to be paid under the terms of this Lease,
Lessee shall also pay to Lessor, as additional rent, a municipal services fee in accordance with
the provisions of RSA 12-G:14, III and the Municipal Services Agreement by and between the
City of Portsmouth, the Town of Newington and the Pease Development Authority effective July
1, 1998. This fee is for fire, police and roadway services provided by or on behalf of Lessor at
the Airport and will be subject to increases each year only to the extent the cost to Lessor of

-19-



providing such services increases. The municipal services fee shall be paid quarterly in advance
commencing on the Execution Date of the Lease (as distinguished from the Term
Commencement Date) at the office of Lessor at the Airport or at such other address as Lessor
may hereafter designate. Lessee's obligation for any fractional portion of the Municipal Services
Fee at the beginning or end of the term of this Lease shall be prorated, as required and
appropriate. To the extent the Leased Premises are subject to municipal taxation, and provided
such municipal taxes include the costs of the provision of fire, police and roadway services,
Lessee may offset against any fee paid to Lessor the portion of such municipal taxes as are
attributable to fire, police and roadway services, and Lessor shall have no further obligation to
provide such services. For so long as municipal taxes are imposed against the Leased Premises,
or on Lessee for all three of fire, police and roadway services and Lessor either has no obligation
to provide such services (or ceases to provide such services), the municipal services fee
required to be paid under this Lease shall terminate.

In the event the Leased Premises, or any portion thereof, are removed from the Airport
District, Lessee shall make payments in lieu of taxes to the appropriate municipality in
accordance with the provisions of RSA 12-G:14, II (or any successor statute) regarding taxation
by a municipality of property that is within the boundaries of Pease, but outside the Airport
District.

Any tax, fee or payment in lieu of tax imposed for the provision of fire, police, public
works or other municipal services shall be considered an Imposition under Article 5 of this
Lease.

4.8. Landing Fees. For all non-based aircraft operations involving aircraft over 12,500
pounds or for any aircraft involved in revenue producing operations arising out of or in
connection with Lessee’s use of the Leased Premises at the Airport, Lessee shall collect and pay
to Lessor or its designated agent a landing fee, at rates established from time to time by Lessor
("Landing Fee"). As of the anticipated Term Commencement Date, the current Landing Fee is
$.85 per 1000 pounds of Weight. As used herein, “Weight” shall mean the FAA’s maximum
gross certified landing weight for each particular aircraft type of all aircraft landed, whether
empty or loaded. Exhibit "3-1" attached hereto and incorporated herein contains examples of
Landing Fee Applicability as intended by the Parties.

4.9. Parking Fees. For all aircraft operations arising out of or in connection with Lessee s
use of the Leased Premises and apron area designated for RTG preferential use at the Airport,
Lessee shall collect and pay to Lessor or its designated agent, a parking fee (Parking Fee) for
Aircraft parked outside of the Leased Premises at the Airport for any period exceeding four (4)
hours following landing. As of the projected Term Commencement Date, the current Parking Fee
is $.35 per square foot per annum.

4.10. Landing and Parking Fee Reports and Payments. Landing fees and aircraft parking fees
shall be assessed in accordance with Exhibit 3 attached hereto and incorporated herein by
reference (or such other landing fee and/or aircraft parking fee schedule(s) as may from time to

-20-



time be adopted by Lessor in its sole discretion). During the term of this Lease, Lessee shall
account for and pay the required landing fees and airport parking fees for use of ramp and other
airfield areas designated by Lessor for aircraft parking purposes. The full amount required to be
collected, without offset or deduction, shall be paid to Lessor within twenty-five (25) days after
the end of each calendar quarter, along with a report detailing by aircraft type and weight all
aircraft utilizing the Airport, the dates of such use and parking and landing fees which are due
and payable. Accompanying such report shall be a statement executed by an officer of Lessee
certifying that all information contained therein is true and accurate as of the date the same is
given.

4.11. Audit. Lessee shall maintain detailed, accurate records in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles of all Lessee activities for which Lessee is required to pay a fee to
Lessor under this Article 4 or any other applicable provisions of this Lease. Such records shall
be maintained by Lessee for a period of at least three (3) years and shall be available for
inspection and audit by Lessor or Lessor’s representative or agent at all reasonable times upon
three (3) business days prior notice from Lessor. The obligations of Lessee under this Section

shall also apply to any collection of fees on behalf of Lessor in accordance with this Lease.

4.12. Prospective Fees. Lessor has enacted a fee waiver program and does not currently assess
airport terminal, fuel flowage or landing fees. Parking fees are waived for the first 24 hours after
which parking fees are assessed. To the extent PDA determines it is in its best interests to
discontinue the fee waiver program and/or Lessor is required by the Federal Aviation
Administration (FAA), or any other the federal government agency having jurisdiction over the
airport, to implement airport use fees (as distinguished from fees already imposed by the federal
government and not waived herein) those fees will become due and payable in accordance with
the terms of this Lease. Any provision of this Lease or fee waiver program which is deemed to
be in violation of the FAA’s grant assurances shall be deemed to be void.

END OF ARTICLE 4

21-



ARTICLE 4A.

RTG EMPLOYMENT REQUIREMENTS

4A.1. RTG will provide or cause to be provided at the Leased Premises a minimum of 25
full-time jobs by the end of the first year of the Base Term, 50 full-time jobs by the end of the
second year of the Base Term and 100 full-time jobs by the end of the third year of the Base
Term and at all times thereafter during the term of this Lease.

As a condition precedent to the unilateral exercise by RTG of extension option 2 as
described in Section 3.3 above, RTG will provide or cause to be provided at the Leased Premises
a miniumum of 250 full-time jobs.

As a condition precedent to the unilateral exercise by RTG of extension option 3 as
described in Section 3.3 above, RTG will provide or cause to be provided at the Leased Premises
a miniumum of 400 full-time jobs.

4A.2. Within thirty (30) days after the end of each year of the term of this Lease, RTG will
provide PDA with a report ("Annual Job Report") specifying the extent to which RTG has
complied with the requirements of Section 4A.1. during the preceding year.

In the event the Annual Job Report fails to establish that the minimum number of jobs
specified under Section 4A.1. were provided as required, or RTG has otherwise failed to meet
such minimum job requirements, then at the request of PDA, RTG shall confer forthwith with
PDA and develop a mutually acceptable plan pursuant to which RTG will rectify any
employment shortfalls and maintain the required minimums. In such event RTG shall also
provide PDA with monthly updates containing information in a form reasonably satisfactory to
PDA in order for PDA to determine whether RTG is in compliance with such plan and the other
obligations of RTG under this Article 4A, said monthly reports to continue until compliance is
achieved.

4A.3 The failure of RTG to develop and implement a plan to rectify any employment
shortfalls to the extent required under Section 4A.2 after having failed to achieve the minimum
job requirements specified in Section 4A.1. on the date specified for such requirement and at all
times thereafter during the term of this Lease will constitute a Default by Lessee giving rise to
any of the remedies available to PDA for breach as sef forth in Section 18.2.

4A.4. The Parties acknowledge that the obligation of RTG to provide the specified minimum
level of jobs is an essential component of PDA's willingness to lease the Premises to RTG upon
the terms and conditions set forth in this Lease. RTG agrees that it shall exercise good faith at all
times in its hiring practices in order to achieve a stable work force and the required number of
lobs at the Airport and shall maintain in good faith, orderly and accurate records in order to

2.



provide meaningful Annual Job Reports to PDA and such other inf)rmation as PDA may
reasonably request with respect to RTGs compliance with its obligations under this Article 4A.
("Job Records®). All Job Records shall be maintained in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles to the extent applicable or such other requirements to which RTG may be
subject under law and shall be kept at the Leased Premises. All Job Records and related
information and data shall be subject to review and examination by PDA upon three business
days prior notice. RTG shall cooperate in good faith with PDA during the course of any review
and examination of RTG records under this Article and shall allow PDA to make copies of all
pertinent records requested by PDA.

It is acknowledged that financial or other proprietary records provided by RTG to PEA
may be designated by RTG as confidential and such records shall be withheld from disclosure to
third parties by PDA to the maximum extent allowed by law.

END OF ARTICLE 4A

-23-



- EXHIBIT "A"

PLANS DESIGNATING THE LEASED PREMISES (SUBDIVISION PLAN)

-77-



LOHABDANS BAR VORBAR {1200 PEASOOIABUON!

108€0 HN ‘HLNOWSLYOd ‘AN TYNOLLYNYZLNI §§ ALIYOHLNV LNINIOTIAZC 3SViId %
00Z=.} 'TIVOS  ZL/LL/L :3LVa WYW Ad GINOIS3a sealy aseaT] pesiaey Bunoideq yqiyxy
]
I
T SIUOV #T0. 7 STUOV 820
Vad L ANINISY3 nes F STUOV L6570 Vad OL INIW3SY3
IDVHOLS MONS ommon_omn_ 7<om Wyvd 13nd . mo,?obw ‘MONS d3S0d0¥d

oLy e )-e—hﬂoﬂz

™

I/ \ avod M@E.H.mwﬁ.m \ amouns SENe !
~ I

T—

§
y
N

S

IS IrGOLLE! *
WUV NG WAV

!
<Hm<m
b

ot O | ] - B 3 ) .
| TR | % NOILJO FSVAT L
iy = Or) = v SINIW3SYI
Hined . ! ‘_ : 7~ SSIOOV ANV IdHIV

i | /
1@ ) o / p
. £ __..v. \_. \\ # ’ 09483 B \r .I—
i : LESIE . S0.62,] t
! %y . Z N 7 %8 - Ng
L B, °d'S 866'E0 w X o s_ .
"SAY NOLLVIAV ¥1// ‘/ _
: . 422 YADNVHZ/ . ok
SL9 X 06 s _ . :
NolLIiaay e & AEOT . .
oNiaTing o \ . :
NIVWEN-OL MUNIL0d—"| §. e
MOVHS GUVNO Vad — u e o
"SAV_NOILVIAV 2§ okl Sy <18 5 B
G22 DNIATINS: oy e | = I\ P 7 X 1
—— “ DEvsva 1 ¥ . ) )
ﬁl.—&ga L U 4 5 X ™ z - : y
W R S8 =1 — %3 . O\ " __ _Lau
2 il ! .@ﬂ .
M) s SRS S LTSS PAASIIL - T vaa H%\wwmm_w@wiﬁ Ei zo___.5>7w.< wm
A M : . 62¢ 44D
L= - =S INNIAY NOTLVIAV—— A %

| _ M \hzm_\,_mm\ﬁ n_<o% \\

u ) .\ 0M SEONILSDA~ 7




EXHIBIT "A-1"

EXCLUDED BUILDING AREAS




UM I OB DML By oy (e

LOBE0 HN ‘HLNOWSLYOJ ‘IAING TVNOILYNYILNI 55 ALIEOMHLNY L NZWd0O13A3a ISV ad %

SIN:TIVOS  auezizy :aivg WM A8 aanoisag AV NOLLVIAY L LY ISVIAT OLY 40 NMOOXIVI¥E L0004 FuvND
LY 0} pesee] oq o;.
dS €49'vLL Bujupwey ety Buipyng iejo01
3500051 — T eseeToIqueS
38 SZE'PL = 4§ §44'V © sa0014 ¢ diomoy
d4S 866°€02 Basy Buppng fejo)

\..‘.‘ .a ://,,,.,./ = “
& @ NERAR
L | ; L
5 . —
e SH00G ¥YONVH HONOUH) Sshy - KL : |
o 4} i ¥ E _ o
2 | | V10198 52691 1/”/ T E : n_ ] P
L Vi axoma | | o~ QH3IMOL h\_ T._..S KGNS 30 vay [ A . “.__.;4 _
O— : alL. j / __ : _\w/ I %_ i _ : ‘ ;;;;; ——0
; ! . : - | ~. :‘ ._ . i N
@!j&. s 2 5 = - . = ~®
@ ! 'y - | : i - 7 _\ _.QNI_L\J
. > . i w _. . -
T : el .. — el : @
NV 380,975 ol S3kaz : 1 : ’ : . Coe
RS | 7 \§ L LT ¢ e e
. _ 4% 00061 "XOuddw v3dy| i L el ooy i
——my ) e S s o 9 N
—_— S 1004 224 LN II 9444 : — | - .
o 77 \\ 77 \\\\\\\\ , SH000 WONYH Honowr sshioy | | _ ! 2
& _ e —— === e

LT LISuSl




EXHIBIT "A-2"

ESTABLISHMENT OF A PART 145 REPAIR STATION IN NEW HAMPSHIRE




MEMORANDUM
To:  Lynn Hinchee
From: Markus Ebert
Date: October 31,2016
Re:  Establishment of Part 145 Repair Station in New Hampshire

I have set forth below a summary that addresses the procedures and mechanisms for the
establishment of our Part 145 Repair Station in Portsmouth, New Hampshire. In the interest of
time, this process will begin with the establishment of a satellite Repair Station under our existing
Certificate (as defined below). Once the satellite facility has been established in Portsmouth, we
will consult with the FAA their preference with respect to RTG operating as a standalone or
satellite facility in New Hampshire.

I Part 145 Certificate

Royal Technical Group, Inc. already has a Part 145 Repair Station Certificate (6RYR210C)
(“Certificate”). We also have an EASA Repair Station Certificate (145.6602) (i.e., the European
equivalent of the FAA Certificate). As you may be aware, the process of obtammg a Certificate
is very detailed and includes a thorough review of the management and owners of the Repair
Station. Given the importance of the work being conducted by Part 145 Repair Stations, the FAA
reviews the backgrounds of all managers and owners, to ensure that proper maintenance is being
performed on commercial aircraft in order to protect the public. To expedite the process of
becoming operational in New Hampshire, we will be establishing a satellite Repair Station in
pursuant to Section 145.107 (see attached) As mentioned, following the establishment of the
satellite Repair Station, we will review with the FAA as to whether they would like us to
undertake the process of obtaining a standalone Repair Station facility certificate for New
Hampshire or continue operating as a satellite facility.

L Satellite Repair Station

As referenced in the attached regulations, while it will be possible for RTG to obtain a standalone
Repair Station certificate for Portsmouth, the FAA has been promoting the satellite system since
that mandates a commonality in procedures for the respective organization and streamlines the
mspecuon process for the FAA. Under the FAA regulations, the only requirement for the
issuance of the satellite repair station will be an expansion of our capability list to include the
larger aircraft that we will be servicing in New Hampshire.

118 Expansion of Capability List

Our Certificate permits for self-evaluation and expansion of our capability list. Such capability
list expansion will be verified and inspected by the FAA once we have brought all our tooling and
equipment to Building 227 and submitted out Repair Station Manual for New Hampshire to the
FAA. The combination of self-evaluation and establishment of a satellite Repair Station will
facilitate the ability for us to be operational in New Hampshire within several weeks of executing
the lease. for Building 227. Under our particular Certificate, the expansion of our capabﬂlty list
mandates that we have (a) the too]mg and equipment necessary for the expanded services, (b)

anate agd Conﬁdentlal I ) » Page 1



Y

access to the necessary staff, and (c) the hangar facility capable of housing the aircraft that will be
included in our expanded capability list. Our purchase of all the assets of MidairUSA satisfies
the tooling and equipment ownership reqmrement for the FAA. Access to qualified mechanics
and staff beyond our existing management team is relatively easy in New England and we have
already contracted with a staffing and recruiting firm specializing in the placement of airframe
and powerplant (“A&P”) mechanics as well as aerospace engineers. Therefore, the only
outstandmg requirement for our expanded capability list and FAA licensed Repair Station facility
in New Hampshire is a lease for the hangar.

IV.  Applicable Regulations

The applicable regulations have been attached with emphasis-added. These regulations address
not only the initial application procedures that RTG had to satisfy to obtain its existing
Certificate, but also cover the establishment and certification of the satellite Repair Station
facility in New Hampshire. As can be seen from the attached regulations, the establishment of a
Repair Station certificate is a highly regulated process. The FAA regulations cover a wide range
of requirements from the background and training of personnel up to and including the storage
and handling of hazmat materials. Repair Stations undergo continual inspections and are required
to notify the FAA of any changes to its management or ownership structure as well as operating
procedures to ensure ongoing compliance with all FAA regulations, and to avoid the revocation
of their Repair Station.

As an aside, in addition to the regulatory oversight by the FAA, Repair Stations are also subject
to Transportation Security Administration (“T'SA”) regulations and inspections. Pursuant to the
TSA’s aviation repair station security rule 79 Fed. Reg. 2119, the TSA has the responsibility to
inspect and oversee all FAA certified Repair Stations. This additional level of inspection
monitors the owners, managers and personnel of all Repair Stations in addmon to the operation of
Repair Stations to ensure aviation safety.

V. Conclusion

Once we are in receipt of the lease for Building 227, RTG will be able to ‘contact the FAA’s
Flight Standards District Office (“FSDO”) in Portland, Maine as well as our home FSDO to
initiate the process of adding the New Hampshire facility to our Certificate as a satellite facility.
We anticipate that the entire process will take no more than four weeks from the time that we
have access to Building 227 so that we can begin the process of “setting up” the Repair Station in
preparation for all the FAA inspections. Once the satellite Repair Station has been established,
we will consult with the FAA as to whether they would prefer for RTG to operate in New
Hampshire as a satellite or standalone Repair Station.

Vat d Cotial 7 i 7 o Pae.Z—



EXHIBIT A-3

PHASE 2 EXPANSION OF THE PREMISES




MEMT Fi\eon

L0820 HN ‘HLNOWS.LNOd ‘JARIA TYNOILYNNILNI 65 : ALINOHLNY LNIWd O13A3Q 3SVid A&.

SINTVOS  ZuuL-aLvg WMW ‘A9 Q3NOIsa@ ¢ 9SBUd - 8AY UOREIAY ¢| e 9 1Y 10} Buiseyd Aouednoog

48 ooL's M20a ISON

© NOLLONYLSNOD M3N
SIHOT ONV STIVM @aLvy’ YYINVH ’ e A
. . _ NVid ¥001d 1Syl .
. B . . I/.
® 9 o »w _ §® ® . Q ®
. T T = |
g B :
— = =m ) -
| m..... - SHOOQ - YYONVH HONOYHL SSHNSS:
/. Y (oadnano 10w | | Ms/ \m., ,L@
T b ol oewe | AN /l...:a:t.ﬂﬁﬁ&ﬁﬁ\\ 4N .
_ 2 4t RN
® h . L.r ! _ N @
o— A T V
@ @
I /] :
W 350 107134 o) Sanp . @\
30 I OW MO @\ & ==
0 BNt NO-"BNvd 384 30VO00 . —Q
@’ . - . .
\, I : : . . " a ezuﬂ_ﬂ«%uufjmmwu . ‘. . . / )
® = P . . I | 1 —9
® ; , . SY000 YYONYH HONOYHL SSR¥93 Ao . .@l
@— d : = : —@®@--
® 0 © o /\@ N o Q ®© ® 0 © O 0 @

z°Y



EXHIBIT A-4

PHASE 3 EXPANSION OF THE PREMISES




UTAmAR pisoy

'LOBE0 HN ‘HLNOWSLYOJ ‘IAINA TYNOLLYNNILNI 6 - ALIYOHLNY LNIWdOTISAZQ 3SVid d&\.‘T
SN :31v0S Lurin i3lva WiW ‘A8 .a3NOIs3a- € 9sBld - 9AY UOlJRIAY ¥| 1B 9] Y 10} Buiseyd Asuednoag)
S 068'S9 V10L
35057°09  NOILIGGY ONIGTING
48 001 ¥90a 3SON
‘NOILONUISNOD MaN

293°ONV STIVM QLYY MFONVYH o = 2 s

R NV1d d0073 15913
. | - sl =) .w. . 1/
T Nﬂ A V' \? P PR cexoe B %Vw 79
\\ g @ N @ e . i 200 3SON u . , .
O— - — : T — : —®
) | | 5 SHO00 UVONVH HOND¥HL SSEYSE : NOLLILHVd _
. &m s AVE
) [ B g s . IS B ) P N
N i ] = S O = |
2 oaswy | | g [~ONILHIN AON39MENG 0 VUV N ﬁé : ] :
I | _ % - F .
&— 1l - U M -
A 3 ! _ — . 1 — II_._V v
T — p——— —_— ._u“ - @\
. ] ﬁ W .
— "NOY20T —Q
QY. 350 LIT34 01 S3N02 ) o IR } @\ - -
0 GV 10 WS 3 S . |
o— —@
o md | | . Tk S o
o SH00Q AVONVH HOROYHL SShuo3 : . _ .
®- = N oy H——— 1 T ~. == - : = 1.# T _....- i : .
R h_%m T -

NOlLIaay .@z_a.__:m 519,08 HDH_H\_.“..__.l H_.IL Ll._._L._y
H%LL&&LLLL&LLLLLLH._LLL i




EXHIBIT A-5

OCCUPANCY PHASE 1A




wwwww

108E0 HN ‘HLNONWS.1HO ‘IARIA TYNOILYNNILNI S ALINO _._ L ....( LNZWdOTIAICQ IASYid AA
SIN:TVOS  LWIML:3LVG  WMW ‘Ag 3INOISId . Vi @seyd - oy .._o__am_>< vl e _mv._.m_ Joy Buiseyd >uéwn:uo©

48 95v'0 W10L

35 096 391340 GIANVIX3

assvl TINGLLSIA

4SSE9'Y =4S'5Ke’L D SNOOT4E "GAY V NIMOL

4S 08Z'} =4S 09.'Y ® SHOOTA € Vv ¥3MOL

45 gev'ey ‘2OVdS MVONVH

VUV G31dN950

a
L

AN

WAOL 4S5 §2€'vl
_—Q¥3IMOL

| rrrrorrrrh
o \\\\\\\\\\\ O

| S¥DOQ AVONVH HOMOUHL SSH93

00 (gardndan 10m)

¢ T e o
i AL

JTTT 771

T Ti

1 /
N
N
T %\
NN




EXHIBIT A-6

OCCUPANCY PHASE 1B




Buisnid ATUBUAIID HAE UOREINE FI\RBH) FENIOLIBUCY

108£0 HN ‘HLNONS.IOd ‘JARIA TYNOILYNNILNI §§ . ALIYOHKL NV LNIWdOTiAIQ 3S%Y 3d AA
SIN:TIVOS WL :EIVA  WNW AS QINOIS3a gl 9seyd - 9AY UOHRIAY | Je 91 Y 10} Buiseyd Aouednaog
48 ge£'s1L TvLOL
45 096 301440 G3ANVdX3
ds syl INAILS3A
45002t =4S009 ® SYOOI4Z 18 ¥3aMOL
48 60V'Z) = 48 SC1'y © SHOOT4 € 8 ¥aIMOL
48 SE9'Y = d4S 5¥5’L D SHOOd € "aav Vv ¥3IMOL
45 009 LV ¥IMOL
4S 0827l =4S 09LY D SHOOT4E vV H3IMOL
4S 20118 :30VdS MVONVH
VIHV G31dNJJ0
9 8 o ﬂ_/,@ e\V. ® VAN ® ©® 0O ®
j . Wﬂ @ ) E m Wm‘
_. | o | uﬁhﬁ %Lﬁ_l& |
o i - i _h ar et ok N .
N it || IVIOL3S s28L wﬁ////w“MWMWWM%wrw .umm,JUHa FLRISEE: IS s
. . EE asw _ \\IO H3IMOL 5 " _|_| N e . ﬂ_l._.._nm.._._uﬂ_l_u_ll_ ) 5
?T BENEI | U E% P L
Y W '~ . N g ! o . N o -
r
@’

R : fi3 ehets ot RSt R A S et
GOS0 v v 1 | ‘ ﬂwﬁrpiﬁhH%mlq_u
- L LH

L.

i

i
Ly

1111111q11111111111111111 e
o S B b I
®— _ Al A o B 2 o0 el it e o e —= it | i

e




EXHIBIT A-7

OCCUPANCY PHASE 1C




Gupmayd £IB4I060 BAR LOREINE bSON PrayEmIBUDN|

L08E0 HN ‘HLNOWSLHO ‘JAING TYNOLLYNNILNI S5 ALIYOHLINY LNIWJOT1IAIQA 25V Ad %
SIN:FTVOS  LKIMLELVAE WW ‘AG A3NOISEa - Ol 9seyd - aAY UojjeIAY P Je 91 Y 10} Buiseyd Aouednaosg

48 81L°061 TV10L

35096 _ FO330 G3ANVAXa

48 Spl FInaILS3A

48058 391440 G3SIVY

4S 06€°ZL = 4S 011 D SHOOT4 € 2 ¥3IMOL

4800Z'L =4S009 B SHOOT4Z. 18 ¥aMoL

48 SOV'ZL = S SELY D SUOOTdE g 33IMOL

4SSE9Y =4S GpS'L D SHOOT4E AAV V UIMOL

48 009 IV ¥3MOL

4S08Z'%L = 46 00L'Y D SHOOT4E = VNHIMOL

38 €286} :39VdS NVONVH

V34V 031aN000

@ 11 £ AN S O NI
SN e L T
o— Z I Lu»l L Ealebelolil Aol 4 L.m Al LLLW_, N ®
G aa%a s
Nl A ﬂ@%w Lo
o S EEESLLE mhan | iﬁ.ﬁ P
o— - rrrerr i E%H gl 1 gy Ty s ._L._..H_.__L ®
o qlaﬁﬁﬁmwaﬁmﬁﬁﬁn s e < _Eﬁw&wﬁaﬁwﬁ s B
® %& o %h@ w m@ ® 6 & o &M_.




-------------------

zzzzzzzzzzzzz

LT0Z ‘6T AUVNNVL
ONLIIIW SUCLOIIA 40 QUVOE

9T0T ‘0€ YIAWIAON DNIANT
dOId3d HLNOW 3AId4 3HL Y04
LAOdIY TVIONVNIL £T0Z Ad




"STANLTANIdXE
TVLIdVD Q31VAIDLINY NVHL SS31
01 INA YIMOT ISNIdXT LSTHIINT

SISNIdXI ANV
(IWOINI) DNILVYIdONON

‘a3139an4a
LON S3ALLTTIDV4 ANV SONIA1INg
OL NOLLYOOTIV ¥0gv1 LOIJIANT

"STIVS T3N4 HAA ¥IMOT 01 ana
¥IMOT SLSOD INIWFINDOOUd 13N

SS300dd VNHODY
QN3 dV3A 9702 Ad JAISNIHIUIWOD

% VYT A 4AMOT
-S1S0D DNLILVY3dO

"S3TVS 82 TINWD

YIHOIH WOYH SINNIATY
NOISS3ONOD G3SYIWONI  *

“WIHLVIM / AIAVd

SANNOYA NI ASVAYONI OL
3Ng -S33d 4109 QASVIIONI =

*Ag 135440 ‘Hdd IHL NIHLIM STVS
3Nd QILVAIDILNY NYHL ¥3mO1

%%¥'0 A9 ¥AMO1
~S3INN3IATY DNILYYIJO

SISATVNV

FONVIVVA 135ANQ9 LTOTZ Ad

vE'E b j 14 {0Z%) Z0Z {910°T) (60%) IWODNI ONILVHIO 13N

TE09 TC 815¢ 9z £19°¢ BES'C NOLLVID3¥d3a

(# 39Vd)

ASN3IdX3 ANV (IWOINI)

68 (ce) 82 (1) £ 9 ONLLY33IdONON

vLL't 012 9202 z0L ves't 9€T’T IWOINI ONILVNIO

9Z¥VIT (96) Try ZD T80 (1437

1T {85) yrds (602) 869 8% (o# 39v4) YIHLO TIV

NOLLOWOYd

8pg (6) 88 (s01) S8t 6/ QNY ONLIINYYI

(9# 39vd)

£ee [41 26 1T £6 01 SIDIAYAS TYNOISSIHOUd

¥88 (09) £28 (911) £8€ 292 (0% 39va) SALITILLA

JALLVYLSINIWGY

444 (€) £0€ 2! 98¢ 00€ ANV Tv¥aIN3D

; FONYNILNIVI

T2e’e (891) 474 (eg9) 788 6+S SALLTIOVL ANV SONIGTING

, (5# a0 4 39va) S1T4ANIE

£08'S 0T £9€'T 4! T4 L£8°C ANV SFOIAYIS TANNOSYId

SASNIdX3 ONLLYHIdO

(# 39Vd)

0sSTTT PIT Vi) (&%) 9859 7959 SANNIATY DNILVIIJO
13sansa FONVINVYA VNLOV FONVIMVA 139ang TYNLIY

UVIA AVAA alvaolL UVIA ailva alva
INTUUND 0L UVIA UvIA MOIud INTHAND OLdvaA OL¥VIA
(s.000 $)

STO0T ANY 9T0Z ‘0€ ¥IGIW3IAON

ONIAN3G dOI¥3d HLINOW JAIL IHL MO4
; SASNIdX3 ANV SANNIAIY 40 LNAWILVYLS GILVAITOSNOD




(€73 9] (114 9zt ZCT 998§ 252
(£2) [43 59 © 86 [ HOGIVH NOLdWYH
(6£) L6 8s (90 0T 274 HOFUVH 3AY
(1e1) 88z 491 (¢0) S0€ 8ze ¥31d HSIH HLNOWSL140d
) £ 9¢ (om) 65 £ LHOdUIY NIAVHAIS
FONVIUVA S900 S902 FONVIMVYA SAWS STIVS
$900 a3aLranang TVRLOY SAVS aalasansg IYNLV SISATVYNY ._m.:..._
TP HIT Fiid) &) 985S T95'S G SHOUSIS Qs sxsnstas
HOIVINWIS 109w $334 ONDRIVd
THE 86 T 06 0sT 1174 13N -¥3HL0 TIV S334 ONRIOOWE SOTHSYIAWAM {1098
Nmﬂﬁz<=0¢mz D000 AW ISTRIVHM $334 51094
96T £Z L0T or b6 #€1 4109
INNIAIY /%
LEE 9 £51 (€ 991 €91 NOISSIONOD b
(1uvHD 33S)
048 (09) #0S (zz1) 999 44 S37vSs 12n4d
2 (LdvHD 33S)
016'C 9 LT 65 PIb'T /61 SANNIAIY 334
, S3LLIDVA
§65'6 LE 040"y (68) 9Ty L0T'p 40 TVLINTY
I \ %E
139ang IONVINVA IVNLY JONVIUIVA 13sanea VALY
UVaA dvaA alva oL dvaa aiva aiva ALYQ OL UVIA SINNIAT 334
INTHYNO OLYVIA  YVIAUOINd  INITWUNMD OLUVAA OL ¥vIA
(s.000 $)

GTOZ ANV 9T0C ‘O€ ¥IGWIAON
ONIAN3 GOI¥3d HLNOW SAI4 IHL 304

SANNIATY ONILVIIJO GILVAITOSNOD




I5ET T 28T P54
[x#4 [§54) g8 08
s - e S K et S A s ol i Ot 104 PR = = g m @ @ n_..:o mm&ngn_r
ZeT (441 S0T T S 8T &% T 9T 8L (¥b) 088 9g8
ALMOHLNY OF @n [ [:14 YIHLO TIV
6¢ aE ve g L . F L¥0d 029) £s ot dWOO SUINOM
9 9 9 ) - - € - c JONWNId  2gT ¥1) 8bT PET VOH
14 14 14 - - . } - € voal 9T (z0) 12T 661 ANIWIALLTY
£ € € - - - - : g oNmIanioNg TP 1€ bOb Seb ANSNI HLIVIH
S1IJaN3ag
£v L€ o€ - o g - € 3S¥N0D 4109 49NTHd
ot [x3 00T €T
¢ ¢ € i bz ) i ) NIAVHAIS  rzemy 74 64:19] ©on 1NO HIHSNVYL
L¥oquly 9EBT 22} £ 6E9T
T g ST - - S 8 - z HLNOWS L¥OJ —
_ GNY NOLLVDVA
81 81 L1 - - - CTE ! JoNvNaINww %F & ) 1 R0y
bs op LE i IWLLAIAO
i i ) ) ) ) g ! v DA - 5 b 152 ssz Q3LI43NIENON
. S8r'T (20) ¥6S'T st QaL143IN3g
I.m__”_wz I._n._b_w_\,_ _._._m_hnmv_z NOD as NON N3g NON s SIJIANIS
1das 100 AON MH  MH  Avs TINNOSY3d
_ NV
SNOLLISOd G3T1Id -SISATVNY 44V1S avaoL IONVRIVA 139ang  Wniov (5,000 %)
UVaA dvaA jlvaol ilvaol

YOorud INTHNND dvaa UvIA J'

STOZ ANV 9702 ‘0€ ¥ZIWIAON
ONIGNI AOT¥3d HLNOW IAId FHL Y04
y S1I43IN3IE8 ANV SFDIAUIS T1INNOSYId GILVAITOSNOD




199§ WoL

sjeYoIe Uy

AB3SRW Joqiel
uouEH UARY

Jefujiod ueq

35||RjoRds
pessen  BURUNOSOY
uewRie) ONS
juRunocoY
uns|gsy e noded
Ujiupy Bjeqesuad
sioqna Apng Ry
jueisissy 40jensju)
Ujwpy b — W
PeID 324 uosJieneg 8oL
ueUNodDY
h“ﬂﬂul.-.__-"u —— i 40|ues
Ewﬂ:—o Epor uay
uosIBpUY M
l

{esuno)
edueuly
Hodjosopoud  Joiopeig HPUPD NGO ey

{uodiel oups
[}

WNSSSY maem

[ Aswery oy 'OUSPUS Reauc

Jouuey asp “SUPIED NIEW
L

*S2AA0TdWA TYNOSVIS ANV LOVHLNOD ‘SIIA0TdWI JILIIINIE-NON ‘SIANTIX3 ‘T

ISiRPeds sdo
Ron ueys|ssy
QuUARM wwpy
auleneg Wiea
is|epads sdo
uole.g
spunosp
ke UIYBRETIW 3 ]
slepeds sdo o
SRS
SR = Bujpying
eueq SRJND eARQ
Is||eoeds sdo seppPey
espues 1 HDI sueq
uepupe;g
. JuRsISsy S—
1S|lepeds sdo Ipe4g Auog
sjueyoey ssobing
(Atesodwiay) PIousy Baeq — Iy uB|IUIISA
JeBeuryy Piam obi0en

doys oid uewsiog
SUNS JO10IA Spunolg siieads sdo

spIReg earg suinog
1 woy

SRS
Sujp|ing

ujjdof ejuuyor

J0spasedng
Bujueap) —
UMpoOD sewer

Jobeuspy

WOWAINDT e

Asjuo) us)y|

Aﬂmn 0)

SUOLITUIA 40 RIVOod

9T0T ‘0 YIIWIAON -LUYVHD NOILVZINVDY |
ALTYOHLNY LNIWdO13A3QA ASVad

UIInK pireg
- i

Jumsissy osg uspusuLRdns
0D VDd oo F9IN0Y IsiSSY
WeLRE axi uoue) uRdy 15|lepods
I ] 8dQ JOUBS o
o1a YT—— DR} Uiy
3199 vod esnog
eoy) ul 10jeujpi0o)
RS9I Wiy, W uoja Aines
{ BrRgqRrod p3
Jaleuepy ._oooﬂ-n:
[CY sdo yodily
Aosewiog
olAeq 3e3s raipuy
WRS|SSY
= Ujwpy
eaedE] Z17
J010041G
AARNdDX3

Wadapy

ALON

Wegs)ssy
ujpy

obed ujqoy

JJURLIBN IS|SSY
Ao|meDon siyD

SjuduweAed
Moyl wig

sjuswoARY
uorioN Iv

sjusweAed
puejesu)y ppoL

Jojesedg
pesss JUBWIINDY

xx0 qog

saysnequer p3

Jojesado

e JuBWIdINbY
Jouwiess) ueqoy

URWRI0Y
PVuBUAUIEW
- seppey

suesd
spuely




TEIOE A4 ThIOZ Adw ZST0Z Adm 0T Ad.
Hdd 4109 NIAVHAIS WSd LH0d3IvHL
2 Lt 0
o
asva e o0s zop OTC 6% szv ety - SOV wEmmvSv - 009
174 i3 Ji7 TS 13D 4109 ves 06
ASIANVHOUIW T T V1oL \ i
€67 69 €L 98 4109 o . m.m.“m 10z 11 e
S 55 ZEss | om
€ HE NIAVHANS
£08 16€ 6TS vZe 1and s18 /18 Wsd HAITHIOL '+ oger 3
791 5T Ly0daavL 206! : 3
VALY 910z  £10Z HM QLA Ad coo'z I $90°2 tomz g
139Qn4g alva 1395ang VLY . m o
UVIA Ol ¥vV3A alva aiva vz’ dovZ
ININYND YOTud OL¥VIA  OLUYVIA ¥3IHLO TIV
788
44 <6 €6 ¥oT (41 86 0T ] ¥3Lvm
(4 8 3 (3 139N -¥3H10 1Y 29 71 9z 8 ANVIONd
€L 0s o€ £ 11anv 10 ANV SvD
901 8 6€ 9 IVINLYN
ADOTONHOIL
7 (174 €€ 8T NOLLYWYOSNI ¥S0dsIq
8€T €€ 85 5¢ JISYM
0S ¥T 14 o o 6b 91 85T bbT ALDDIY1D313
. IVNLDY VALY
139and 3.va 139dand IVNLOV 1395ang jlva 1395ans IVALDY
yvaa OLAVIA iiva iva SA0IAY3S AvaA OLAVIA aiva alva
ANTWAND donud OLUVY3IA OLAUVIA TYNOISSIi0Ud INFHEND AOIHd OLYVAA OLYUVYIA SALLITILN
(s.000 $)

STOZ ANV 9T0C ‘0€ YIFWIAON
SNIANI dOI¥3d HLNOW 3AId 3HL Y04

SISNIdX3I ONLLVIIdO ¥IHLO AILVAITOSNOD




"SALVY LSTATINT INIHANO ANV TINLONYLS 1930 WHAL ONOT INTHAND Vd IHL SNIGHVOTH NOLLYIWHOINI YIHLNNS YO ST# 39Vd 33S T
410N

68 8T [§13] ZE 9
S13Ssv
40 31vS
NO SSO1
- - - / (NIVD)
26 6 wilol y3HLO
ANV IWODNI
HLNOWS.LHOd
97 6 40 MDD ) M €4 (n (€) 1STUIINI
NVE ISNIdX3
9 - IN3AINOYd 6 62 (62) 8¢ 6 1SIUILNI
139ang aiva
Wosd  obdwk VN1V WnLOV
139ang alva INVINYVA  139ang aiva
ASN3dX3 1STYAILNT UVIA Ol ¥VIA dvaA dlvaol oL
INTWHND  ¥onud INTWND Uvar UVIA

(s,.000 $)

STOZ ANV 9T0C ‘0 ¥3IIWIAON
ONITONZ AOTd3d HLNOW IAI4 IHL Y04
L ISN3dX3 (IWODNI) ONLLYUIJONON A3LVAITOSNOD



$09 E9CP TVi0oL
$09 865
= 0ET ¥IHIO TV
6% - 3avy L NOIFHOS
ANNd AYIHSIL
8/ - -NVO1 ONIATOATY
ONIDQ3IYA
Lip UOUYH
INIWIDVYNYI
- 622 HOFUYH
- 6£ SANN4 TVYaNTD
SUOFYVH
dNV SLNO0d
40 NOISIAIQ
= S99
- 1874 MOYDS3 INVNIL
- Tr'e SANNA Tv¥aN3o
ALTYOHLNY
ININdOT3IAIQ
asvad
[«ETlo)t] TEDEISTANN
9T0Z "0 Y
SINITVAINDI ANV HSYD
(5,000 $)

(t12'%)
1S

112
6ST'T

Sb8'L9

Zoz

1987
2 VA

85t
95z

LP8'T
911
465
642

658°T

970z

8Tc'99 NOILISOd 13N TV1OL
(861'1) A310T4LISTANN
S 3ANOZ 3aViL NOITHO0A
sz ONIOQTIA HOGIVH
6911 GNNd NYOT ONIAOTATY
Y04 Q310Td1S3y
89099 S13SSV TV.LIdYD NI INIWISIANI 1IN
NOILISOd 13N
70z NOISN3d
SADUNOSTY
40 SMOHNI a3uu343q
[3 14 S3LLTTIGVI] VLOL .
B0LF
sk S3ALLIIEVIT 11 ¥3HLO0
95Z'y ALTTIGVIT NOISN3d 13N
SILLTTIAVIT LNTHUNDINON
TTSE SIUTHEVIT LNTHIND WLO0L
911 SILLTIIAVIT 17 -NOLLYOd INFHUND
- ALTTIOVE D07 ONIATOATY
sze INNIATY QaNIVINN
66€ NOLLDMY1SNOD -I19VAYd SINNODDY
144'C F1VAVd SLNNODDY
SILLITIGVIT INTWAND
9T0¢C SALLTIIAVI]

0E NNC

0€ AON

O
N
N

: bES

i1 pso'a9

- E60'T

St
£92'p

9T0Z

0E AON

NOISN3d

S30YNOSIY 40
SMOT4LNO aIYY3Jaa

S13SSVY 1VioL

S$3T19VAIIOIY L1 -¥3H10

GI#-01# 539vd) SSII0Ud
NI NOLLDMYLSNOD

INIWNdINDI
ANV SONIAIING ‘anvi

S13SSV TYLIdVD

S135SV Q3.L0TA1STY TVIOL

13N
-STAVAIZOTY SINNODDV

SINTTVAINOI ANV HSYD
S1ASSVY A3LOTHISTY

S13SSV LNTHUND TVLOL
S13SSV ¥3HLO

13N
-F1EVAIZOIY SINNODDY

SINITYAINOI ANV HSYD
S13SSY INJWYND
S13Ssy

NOILISOd L3N 30 SINIW3ILVLS QILVATTIOSNOD




& S

9 9

- 8
0ET 181
- [4:]
€01 181
- 0s

aaLiiNans  vVad and
ANNOWY FONVIVE

00s

01T

TIT'E

(19)

SOT'T

9947
8¢6

alva ol
Q3AIDN

(2
(9)
(zzg)

(o1)
(1)
(02)

(o1)

(89)

(96)
(ev2)

TUVHS
vad

€es
911
9bb'E

161
091
0L

161
€91°1

Z16'T
[7A%¢

Jivao.L
aaaNadxa

6S

6£S

T09'€

'l

0t
(4]

qQAYMy

INVYS

65

£95

06.'€

01€'T

0ST'C
08

103coud
viol

€1-+0-60
ST-T€-€0
¥1-81-90

9T-T¢-€0
91-12-+0
agl

¥I-S2-+0
€1-90-T7

E€T1-9T-+0
80-0¢-11

alva
TVAOUddY

TIVMLLOS ANV ALTIND3S 1¥0d 3AVEDdN -Hdd

(z10Z-H0 94S)
NODIY ANV NOISIA NNY NIAVHANS

(5T02-90 94S)
NIVYQ ANV AVd INVIIXV.L NIAVHAIS

(z10Z-50 9€S)
£€-ST AVMNMY NIAVHANS

(910z-50 Das)
W31SAS NOLLVDIZILNIAL ALTYNDAS WSd

SNOLLVAONTY WOOYHLYE TYNIWY3L WSd
NOISIA-FHd YE-9T AVMNNY INSd

(¥102-+0 98S)
NDISIA/LIWYAd / TWAOWTY NOLLDMYLSHO WSd

(€091 58S)
FADVNIVIA ANV INIWIAV WSd

(z09T1 58S)
123c0ud NOLLDNYLSNOD ¥SY WSd

Hivd 3SN-11NKW 19043aviL

FWVN ID3004d

5

(s,000 $)

9T9C ‘0 YZEWIAON 40 SV

STATEVAIIOIY TVLNIWNAIACOUZLNI 20 AAVWIWNS



oL

606 €E9 88 h174 9T

= 3% £ - (20-97-98S) NOLLONYLSNOD ¥SY WSd

061 611 = 61T 192 W3LSAS NOLLYDI4LLNIAL ALTHND3IS WSd

L62 52 - LS ob ONIH00YIY ANV OW3Q TVILYYd DLV WSd

- (sv) St - Sb 3AVA9dN IIVMLIOS ANV ONLLHOTIT IWSd

0L L1 - VA €S (Qg1 -¥vd) NOIS3Q-34d HE-9T AVMNNY WSd

161 68T - 68T 4 (Qg.1-vvd) NOISIA NV DNILLIWYId NOLLONYLSEO WSd

191 9 - 9% S9 (Qa1 -vv4) SNOLLYAONTY WOOYHLYE TYNIWYAL WSd
JUOdUIV HLNOWSLYOd

9T-0€-1T JONVHD IIAYIS STUNLIGNADXA gy oe g9

1v UVAA NI INVId UVIA 1v JWVN 1530094
JONYIVE ANTHIND 13N OLYTISNVAL ANTRIND FONVIVE
(s,000 %)

9T0C ‘0€ YIAWIAON 40SVY |

SSFUD0UC NI MUOM NOILONMILSNOD 40 AUVWKWNS



- - 8¢ 8¢ - MOMYL 1411 Y04 THSIANS.LTIW
9 - - - 9 AQOg XN dWna
- - S9 S9 - NVYA NYIDRILOI13
AONVNILNIVW
= (oTT) 7T (14 91T
(5102-90 545)
= (o11) 911 - 917 FDOVYNIVIA ANV INIFWIAVA INVTIXVL
(Z10Z-+0 98S)
- - 6 6 - NOLLONYLSNODTY ANV NDISIQ AYMNNY
(z102-50 94S)
- - 91 9] - 3OVNOIS ANV ONDRIVIN-1INYLSNOITY ££-ST AVMNNY
LIOIIV NIAVHANS
iv UVaA NI INV1d UVIA v JWNVN 133(0¥d
FONVIVE INTUHND 13N OL UIISNVIL INZHAND FONVIVE

(5,000 $)

@ 9TOE ‘0€ YIGWIAON 40 SV |
SSAAUD0Ud NI NUYOM NOILINULSNOD 40 AUVWKWNS !



(4

NOILVILSININGY

Z9 3 €T oT 79

T T 1 AQNLS ALTTIQVIA T13M

[4 [4 4 SNOLLYDIHIAOW INVINYLSTY 8Z TIRIO

- £1 €1 - LNIWAINDT YOLVINWIS

#9 #9 (ATNO N9IS3Q) NOISNYJX3 ISNOHENTD

asAUN0I 4109

9T-0€-TT IONVHD DINNIS STUNLIANIAXI  9T-0€-90
1v UYIA NI LNV1d uvii 1v FWYN I53r0ud
FINVIVE INTWUND 13N  OLYIISNVHL ANTHAND IDNVIVE ‘
” XTI ORI PI B g T TS TPNEL I S R . -
(s.000 $)

i
%
o

(e GTOZ ‘0€ WIGWIAON 40 SY -
SSIUDCUd NI MNIOM NOLLONULSNOD 40 AUVWIWNS T



(90) 9z - oz

AAVEOdN DYAH 13344S 331
1€ - - - 1€ SLINIWIAQUAINT IUNLONYLSVHANI ANV NOLLDISHALNI
Ld0daavii
9T-0€-1T JONVYHD IDIANIS SUNLIANADE 97-0E-90
1v uv3ais NI ANV1d Uvaa iv 3HWVN d
FONVIVE AINTWUND L3N OL ¥3ISNVHL INTHAND FONVIVE

(s.000 %)

e 9TGZ ‘0€ YIAWIAON JOSY |
SSIUDOUd NI NYOM NOLLINYLSNOD 30 AUVWWNS |

€l



144

810 217 66€ €88 vES W10L
[ o1) 8€ :74 ST
S S - S - FUYMLIOS ANV ALTRIND3S 1H0d 3AVHDdn
AN L1 - d3AY3S IONVHOXT 314
[4) 4} - 4Sd -5371d Y3AN34 3DV
(9) 6 € 9 S3X08 TIVI ADNIDYIWI TIVLSNI
- (6) - (6) 6 (9T02) NOLLYOTddY ANVYD HIOLL
- ANIWIACHWT ALTIVND d3LYM
SUOTUVH ANV SLHO0d 40 NOISIAIQ
9T-0E-TT IONVHI IIAYIS SNINLIAGNIDA 91-0€-90
1y UVIA NI INVd AVIA v IWVN 1D3road
FONVIVE ANTWAND 13N OL ¥IASNVYL AINIHUND AONVIVE
(s.000 $)

((QINNILLNOD) @.WQN \@m mumzm%ﬁﬂz mo m<
SSTUD0Ud NI NHOM NOLLONULSNOD 40 AUVIWKNS |




Sl

(s.000 $)

S9b
L1T
911
911
911

%0S'y ©
H1NOWSLd0d
40 ALDD

1oL

LT0C A
NI Qivd

0zoz
6102
810¢
£102

(117 (343 91T
S9p 6vE 91T

ana NOILYOd NOLLYOd
INNOWY Wy3aL ANTWNND

V1oL ONO1

wiol

%0S'y ®

J1ON TOYLNOD
NOLLNTIOd
YALYM
-HLNOWS140d
40 ALID

3LVY LSTYINI
/ ¥3a10H 193a

— cast —

9T0Z ‘0 YIAWAAON 40 SY
SIILITIEVIT WY3L ONOT



JWOONI

611 {T09's) 8s¢ (8ETC) (088T) OSNLLYY¥3dO 13N 0%  ZTTF 0D 3lva oL ¥vaA u
865°T 008'E (29) £85°T 9181 NOLLVID¥d3da ez s @
IsNIDa 9107 e PO v vume SI07 s
GNV (IWODNI) WA AN D0 A5 SN UM ML AR N W e e o
ONLLVIIJONON
I ono'0r
(129) (zos'r) T6Z (ss9) (v9g) AWOINI ONLLYYIHO coots
—_— - ey
88 7T ((§¢3) 3907 1274 000’0y
HIHIO TIV 000'0s
NOLLOWOYd 000'09
6 6T (1 8 L ANV SNLLINAVYIN
SIDIAY3S S
i NOI S Viva INIWINVIINZ
001 oo - - . sunun e dE e v ~ g
ALLVYLSINIWGAY g7 15 9 0z 9z YIHLO TIV
69 SpT L 09 9 ANV TYHaNID
SANNIATY
BONYNLINIVIW 7 96T (59) 99 1 33
SALLMIDVA
12€ pT'T (6v2) 19% [4v4 ANV SONIATING SANNIATY
‘ L 1 £ v NOISSIINOD
S1143N3E QNY
6LE £00°T SS) Lty 703 S3DIAY3S TANN SUVONVH
¢ 3STENNOSH ) 191 74 L9 88 ANV 0DYYD
SasNIdx3 N
ONLLV¥3dO . 586 6 55z 9z SALLMAIOVA
SANNIATY )y
£9¢ 096 [€:14) % €8¢ ONLLVY3dO aiva 135an9  IONVRIVA  139and VALV
OL ¥v3A dvaA VET alva aivag S3INNaATY
VLV 139ang  IONVRIVA  13sang VLDV UORud WOSH  INTMMND  OL¥VIA  OLWv3A __SNv¥ado
Alvd OL Uv3aA dv3aA 41iva 4iva oL A Mt e i e B 4 ok 5. et o s+t At o st s+ oo e e 23 5. o R
YVIAYOINd  TVOSH INDRIND  OL¥VAA  ¥V3A o
(s,000 $)

9l

1d0dYIV HLNOWSLYOd
9T0Z ‘GE YIGWIAON DNIGNT AOTHAd -

HLNOW 3AId SHL ¥0Z SNOLLYY3dO 40 LNIWILVILS



(€49 [(53] (€13 SET

06 062 9¢ 0zZ1

] (s8) 8T (s1)

PIT 90¢€ (G 144

¥S Z0T C)] g

£ S T [4

L z€e ) £1

€1 of (€ ST

44 S8 (81) 9¢

ST 9 (€) 6T

F43 T5¢ (V23] (334
NV 139ana  FDONVIIVA  139ang
ilvaolL UVIA YVIA 3lva

UV3A YORId IVOSH ANTRIND  OL¥V3IA

(5,000 $)

Ll

95T

(4}

81

91

9%

VALV

Ava oL
uv3A

FAWODNI
ONLLIVI3dO 1IN

NOLLVIOZYd3q

asNada
ANV (IWOINI)
ONLLV¥3dONON

dWOONI ONILV¥3IdO

TaNd -¥3H10 TV

NOLLOWOd
ANV ONLLIUYIN

SADIAYIS TYNOISSIHO0Ud
SALLTILLN

JALLVYISININGY
ANV TVHINIO

JONVNILNIVIW SALLTTIOVA
ANV SONIaTINg

SLIJIN3G ANV
SAOIAYIS TANNOSHId

SASNaADNA
ONILY¥3dO

SANNIATY
ONILVY3dO

{00T)

(GSF'T) Te80%
. 107 Ad
(866) 69/ (oot) (s80'1) (z8s) -600C A
(299) $£8'C - (e6e's) (601) ST0Z M
soe {7 - (g61) (€s) 9102 Ad
S Va4 - (Crd) £ LT0Z Ad
viol SANNL Avdy an3da Y43do MO
INVHD lg3a WLIdvD HSVD 13N
0Ty $ 15892 L04'b1 se8'e 910Z Ad
4% ) 65H'0T 6€4°0T €581 2102 A4
IONUd UvIA 31va HINOW alos
IAY VIOL OL¥VIA  LINFWIMD 1and 40
aia SNOTIVD
t444 § {74 [¢73) (334 96
- T - - - YIHIO TV
79 oeT (om) 65 £ S3WVS 1A
SUYONVH
09 0€T (49} #S £5 ANV 09UYD
WALV
aiva 13sang FONVTHVA 13sang VALY
OLYV3AA UvIA UVIA aiva aiva SANNIATY
YORYd TVOSH ANFRIND

OLAV3A

G697 Twvd

0L Yv3A ONLLVY3dO

LYOdUIY NIAVHMIS
9T0Z ‘0€ YITWIAON ONIGNI dOT¥ad | -

HLNOW JAId JHL YO4 SNOLLVYIJO 40 INIWILVLS



JWOONI

TZ8C £099 TST Ti6'C £90°E OSNILY¥3dO 13N
#SE 918 (m Vixy 9€£€ NOLLVIDZUdaa
ASNadx3
ANV (IWODNI)
- - - ONLLVYIdONON
9zZT'E 6TH'L 0ST 6bT’cE 66E'E FINODNI ONILVHIJO
(44 687 00¢ PaE T
St orT (1€) 85 Vid YIHLO TV
NOLLOWOYd
0z 89 (89) 89 - ANV ONILINIVI
SADIAYIS
- - - TVNOISSIHOUd
[43 St1 (8¢) 09 [44 S3LTILLN
FALLVALGINIWQY =~ =+ o = oot aomess i s+ i i e oo e
61 Va4 T 61 474 ANV Tv43aNTO SSHE 308 05 £09°F FSSE
FONVNILINIVIA
S3LLTIDYA
£€T 68€ #9) 64T o8 aNV SONIGTINg
1§ o9pbT 08 95 9fT UIHLO TV
SLI43NTg aNv
- - - - - SADIAYIS TINNOSHId SALLTIDVA
! X g LT 40 VINTH
SISNIdX3 POb'E 790’8 (0€1) PSS £ _
INLLYY3dO VNV 139an4 JONVRIVA 13oana VNV
SINNIAZY 3Lvaol UvIA UVAA ava dlva ol SANNIAIY
TSFE 078 (9] T09°E TTTE ONLLYYIdO AYIA YOTUd IVOSIH ._.ZWMN_D OL¥v3IA dv3A ONILVY3dO
VLDV 13oang FDNVIAVA 13oang VNV

dlvaoL UvaA dvaA aiva aiva
dV3A YORId IVOSI4 ANIHIND OL¥vIA OL¥v3A

(s:000 $)

1¥Od3avil |
9TOT ‘0€ ¥IGWIAON ONIANI AOINAd
o HLNOW JAI4 3HL YO4 SNOLLVYIdO 40 LNIWILVLS



61

JWOONE
ONLLVY2dO
13N

S3aSN3QA
ONLLVY3dO

SINNAATY
ONLLVY3HO

SISATYNY
1INN
SSINISNE

bsT

VNV
aiva

YIHL0 ANV
ASIANYHOUIW

SNOSS1
YOLVINWIS

SAIHSY3FNAW

$334 4109
SANNIATY 3

SANNIATY
NOISS3ONOD

SINNIATY

orY ) 99 8PE
086 1z 88 89
ozr't 91 ¥ST 9171’1
Lol WIS A8 V340
/aood asuNod
T (14 sTTT .
Z01 Sk £6
60T T9T 796
z v 9
£1 ¥ r4
502 L (4174
£98 91 i 74
ST () 65T
WY IONVTIVA 13oang
alva oL UVIA lva
AVIAUORId  INIHEND 0L uv3IA
(s.000 $)

0L Yv3A

SNILVY3dO

(443
I

61

621

[4:]

bLT

L4014

6EE’T
VLY

alva oL
YVIA YORId

g
" g

68€E

06T 99

vee 91

57 81

6 (m

(4 ¥4 (z2)

£81 b1

SZE 9¢

¥€6 o1

TEEC T0C
13oang FONVIUVA

¥VIA UVIA

TISH INFHIND

T

191

9€T

[44

LET

444

61CT

139dn8
31va
0L ¥vaA

60T

98

€L

ey

(174281

VALV

alva
OLdv3A

3WOOINI
SNILVY3dO 13N

NOILLVIOIYdaa

ISN3IdX3
ANV (3WODNI)
ONILVYIdONON

AWOONI ONILVYAdO

EHIO TV

NOLLOWOXd
ANV ONLIIDEYIN

SANANIS
TVNOISS340dd

SILLNLN

JALLVALSINIWNAY
ANV TVAINID

JONNILNIVIN
SALNDVL
aNV SDNIATINg

S1I43IN3d ANV
SADIAUIS TANNOSYId

S3ISNadX3
ONLLV¥3dO

SIANNIATY
ONILVY¥3dO

(s.000 $)

2SUNCO 4109
9T0T ‘0€ YITWIAON DNIANT AOIY3d

HLNOW 3AI4 JHL 04 SNOILVY3dO 20 LNIWILVILS



9€8°2LT

£/8°T€1

5334 WOOY aNv aoo4

P A

0TT'es Wi0L
’ EEAeON. B
€60°'T9 €€809 SaANSVI mmmno.v.mo.nm Mmm_nw—‘m‘nm_‘z,_ WA AN DO A5 AW N ONX AW BY wn 0
82201 LYE'LTT AV1d INSWYN¥NOL NOSV3S -SaNNOY ST0C
000°S
69T'6€ 106'8€ 0t-ZT SANOYUD 9E6PS vioL e
609°2E YIAWIWNON 009
alLa aia SNOLLONNA L2841 YIGWIW
9TOT Ad LT0T Ad 3IsUN0Od /an1d NOSVIS -SaNMoyY 910 000°6
R Rt L e e 1 WA S S st st e > 000t
T69BKSTS  PROTSS § T0Z'E0T 5E
651°502 - annc 201 ) anne (Nosvas) SANNOY UIFWIAWNON / YIFWIW 9TOZ
.v?hsmm.n - AV A A th e | 513t RO e ot 4 i S A e a1 o s gt et e e oo
£96 . AV 8b 8b 09 SAVQ NIVY
87901 - dY .
2009 - Tdv 0T1'2S 0TT'ZS  9€6'bS Q3AV1d SANNOY
! -
£0b'L6 HOUYIN 0zz's ) HONYM o oo i
285’18 - Advnugad YOS’z . ANVANEI4 STOC ST0Z 910z
789'y8 - AYVONVC ove've . AAVANVE et cavor cors oo's ot 0or'z °
2, 2,
A1) 00b°801 3aWId3aa LT6'%T 86112 ¥3aWa03a
4, 4,
12002 062'98 YIAWIAON oLYor 0zb'zt ¥IAWIAON ot0zs
TSS'ETT S6b'bTT UIFOLD0 ozs' 29 ¥380.150
4, 2,
199991 £5£°09T Y3IAWIAL4IS obe ) ¥IANALATS cTozm
4 [
S12's81 Y161 1snany ) $ 1Sn5nV
4, £,
6SK'9/T § /9'e8T $ AN ) $ 8bT § Ane
SITVS
SSOU SANNIATY
9T0Z Ad L30T Ad TITUS 9T0Z Ad LI0Z Ad YOLVINWIS (Nosvas) @IAV1d 4109 20 SAGNNOY
aNV uvd

14

4709

N

ST

9T0Z “TE YIGWIDIA 4O SY |

V1VQ ONDRIVIWHONIE 3SunoD 4109 A



k21 DR 0 <) 577 7E 75 Pt NIdoian (68 {S6t) (€49) SPT Zsyy IWODNI dO L3N

ouvpameia  TIC 909 LS T4 60€ NOLLYID3¥d3a
SNIGNTX3)
53SN3dXA ASNIdX3
€T 081 SET 207 €01 Y4 ONLLVY3dO AaNV (IWOONT)
- - - . ONILVIIJONON
SANNIATY
€1 65€ GET S8t Wi ONLLVY3dO ¢y 143" St £0T zsT IWODNI DNILVHIJO
SISATYNY »rT _
NIWay OYNYIW 133M1S Y3Id HSIH HOUVH HOMIVH AINN g . 98t S0 668

. UOBMVH LDMVW  HINOWSINOd 34 NOLdWYH SSANISNE  go¢ S0Z (681) LY 88¢ AN - ¥IHLO TIV
N my s = A AH T sy rn e e p s o aarae ot Y e AL AMAAR N e i S B A 1 st A s e Zopozom&
SITT TSE'T TeTT TS0'T V101 5 z (1 1 - aNV ONLLINSVI
29 66 s ¥ YIHLO TV STOIANIS
ot 05/ 206 Tob STTVS and £1 9z - 11 14 TYNOISSIHOUd
oeE == TEE ot [4] ST (s2) 9 6€ S3LLTILN
T8 44 907 0z %000 / S4VHM ALLVULSINIWaY
b 0ST 01 rig zZ$ ANV TV43INTD

£z (iYA 9z P4 SNOLLVY1SIOTY
68 bIT €8 8 Dhivd JONVNILNIVIW ONY
ONDIY 6t 291 1) 85 b Jv4 ANV SONIQTINg

LET g€ obT o€t S334 ONRIOOW

S1I43IN3E ANV
INNAAZY 334 b 9£0°T €e 4] Sop SIDIAMIS TANNOSHId

3NNIATY
G 9 G G . S3ISNIdX3
NOISSIONOD ONLLVIO
S LN SINN3IATY

9/2 259 12 182 ALTIDVA
SITT (754 5T 6TT 150°T SNLLVY3dO

WNLOY laoang 13sang NV SANNIATY VALY 139ana  IONVRIVA  139and NV
Jlvaol UYIA alva 31va ONLLVH3dO Alvaol UVIA uvaA 3iva iiva

YV3A JORId TVOSId OL¥vaA 01 dv3aA

UVIA ORI VOSH INTRIND  OLUVEA OL ¥v3A

o e e =5

©00®  (@FLOTY1SIUNN) THIHSAWYH M3N 40 ALTYOHLNY LMOd

9T0Z ‘0€ YIAWIAACN DNIANI AOTNId
'z HLNOW JAId 3HL Y04 SNOILYY3dO 40 LNIWILVLS



JWOINI AWOONI

g [€2] 9 [¢3) 7 ONILVHIdO 1IN O 6T T [¢2) z ONILYYIJO LIN
NOLLYIDT¥d3a £T 8c T 91 Vad NOLLVIDZdaa
aSNadxa asNada
ANV (IWOINI) ANV (3WOONI)
ONILVYIdONON - - - - - ONILVYIdONON
AWOINI IWOINI
S @) 9 (@) 1 4 ONILVH3IdO 6T Ls 14 6 vE ONLLYY3dO
T [3 © P T 5T 05 [§%9) T B
- YHIOTIY - e - - = YIHLO TV
NOLLOWOYd NOLLOWOYd
3 8 @ £ T ANV ONLLDRIVN - - z - - ANV SNLLANYYIW
SAIAYIS SAJIAY3S
TYNOISS340Yd - - = - - IVNOISS3H0Ud
Saunun - - - - - SALTILN
ALLVYISINIWGY JALLVYLSINIWNGY
T ¢9] s - aNY TvyanNae L - - - - ANV TvdINaD
FONYNILNIVI FONVNILNIVIY
SALLTIIDVS SALLTTIOVS
ANV SONIQTINg 8 0s (4 14] 12 - ANV SONIQTING
S1I43N39 any S1I43N38 any
SIDINYASTINNOSYId - - - - - SIDIAYIS TANNOSHId
SASNadX3 S3ASNIdX3
DNILLVY3dO DNILLYY3dO
_ . _ _ SINNIATY SINNIAAIY
9 9g € 4 g ONILYVMIdO #E 0T ¥ [i]% ¥E ONLLYY3dO
l13sang
WY 139N IONVIRIVA  3vg VALY INOZ3IAvdL v 13oang NVRIVA  y3oqng VALY ONIDGIIa
lva oL UVIA yV3A ol aiva alva ol Yv3A UVIA alva aiva gY¥VH
UVIAUORd WIS UNIWIND  WYAA  OL¥vaA NOIFUOd woiwond  wos  inawimo oLwvas o L HVIA .
(5,000 $)

(@3L014L53¥) TUTHSAWVYH MIN 40 ALRNOHLNY L30d
9T0T ‘0€ YIEWIAON DNIGNI dOryad |
- HLINOW JAId IHL Y04 SNOLLVYIAAO 40 LINIWILVIS



pTT
574

999
ST

S102-0€-90

1¥ JONVIVE 1V F0NVIvE

NO.

(s,000 $)

74

8L

9T0¢-0£-20

(G3L51¥4153¥) TUTHSAWVYH MIN 40 ALTIOHLNY
ST0T ‘0€ YIGWIAON DNIGNI GOTHAd

"'SANNH d3431s3IND3S SFIAMNA (+)

(%)
A % -(ADNIDDI4AA)
$S30X3 aNnd
() % -31v
€6 NOILVZIILLN
TLIdVD
TZTT
€60'T
856 WYL ONO1
SET INRRIMD
SNIGNVIS1INO
SNVO1
8
SaNMd
az1sandas
8z SANNA THANID
SIONVIVE HSVD
9102-0€-11
1v 3ONVIVE
NdN TATOAT

[

alva
OLWvNLOV

T [2

14} 14

x4 :

44

T

Ji3 ¥

1394ang JONVIIVA
uvaA UvA

] oT
9 or
[ 6
6 6
5 61
139ang
alva alva

(@anNLLNOD)

130d

JWOINI
ONILVYILO 13N

NOLLVIDI¥d3a

ISNadX3
aNV (3IWOONI)
ONILVY3IdONON

JWODNI DNILVYIdO

YIHLO TV

NOLLOWOYd
ANV ONLLIYIYIW

SAITAYIS TYNOISSIH0Ud
SALUTILN

ALV LSINIWQY
ANV TVd3INTO

JONVNILNIVIA
SILLNIOVA
ANV SONIATINg

SLIJ3INTg ANV
S3OIAYIS TANNOSHId

S3aSNadA3
ONILV¥3dO

SINNIAIY
ONILVY3dO

aNNZ NVO1
ONIATOATY

HLNOW 3AI4 3HL ¥0d4 SNOLLVY3IdO 40 INIWILVIS



[14Z 7] ST8PS NOLLISOd 13N V101 225
(££5'2) (699) G3LORISTANN
2 - 3NOZ 3AVIL NOINOd  §Z9°6S
- ONI9GIYA YOFUVH
- aNNd NVOTONIAOATY =
404 ILORILSTY
Z6977%
£56'95 bBY'SS S13SSY TV.LIdYD NI LNIWLSIANI L3N
NoLsodtan 87§
15T ST NOISNad .
S32UN0SIY berss
40 SMO4NI QIWYIIIa
s [274] SALLMIEVITVIOL -
YAV T08°E
6b€ £ch SALLINEVIT 17 ¥3HIO  *
89¢'s 89€'c ALTTISVT] NOISN3d 13N
SALLTITAVIT INTHNNONON
500°C 5 {44 SILLIAVTT INZWNMO WLOL
911 911 SILLINIEVIT L1 -NOLL¥Od INDRIND ' FggTs
- ALTIIVA D01 ONIATOATY ¢,
8Ig 601 ANNIATY GINUYINN
692 6€ NOLIDNYULSNOD -T1aVAVd SINNODDY ¢S
z0€t v62°Z - TI8VAVASINNODDV  EEO0'T
SATLTIIAVIT ININEND
910z 9102 saLnIavnl | 910z
OENNL  OEAON 0€ NNC
(5,000 $)

(FUIHSIWVH MIN 40 ALTHOHLNY L¥Od INIANTIXI) NOILISCd L3N 40 LNIW2 AVLS

ve

€Y
1433

NOISN3d
SINUNOSIAN 40
SMOT41N0 aTNNI43a

S$13SSV violL

FTEVAIIOI L1 -¥3HL0

(r#ore S39vd) SSAD0Y
NI NOLLONYLSNOD

ANIWLIND3
ANV SONIQTING ‘aNv

S13SSY TVLIdvD

S13SSV QAUONILSTY WL0L

13N
“STMQVAIEDTY SINNODDVY
SINITVAINDI ANV HSYD
S1ISSY Q3 LONRILISTY

S13SSY INTHEND WLOL
S13SSV ¥3HIO

13N
-T1GVAIZO3Y SINNOJDY

SINFIVAINDA ANV HSYD
S13SSV INTWAND
S$13ssy

YI0ZAL  ET0TAd |

R N =

0€ ANNC LY
NOLLISOd G3LOIYLISTUNN L3N

"SLIJINIE ANV

S3IIAYIS TANNOSHId 0L JALLY TN
NOLLYVDS3 1S0D Ad A30330X3
N338 SVH IdD / NOILYTVDS3 INNIATY

"INIWAYATY

1830 gNV S103r04d V.LIdVYD
Q31134 INVYONON Ld0ddNS Ol
NOLLVOIE0 TVIDNVNI4 G3NNILNOD

ALTEOHLNY LNIWdOTIAIJ FSVad

000's-

000°E-

(5,000 $)



.0€ ANNC 1V

NOLLISOd QILONUISTUNN L3N

"SFONVIVE NN A310TH1STANN

A8 d3940S8Y N338 SYH NOITIIW 6°0$ J1THM
SAINOW NI NOITIIW 0°T$ Q3QIAQUd

SVH ONNd NOISNVAA ¥3Id TH.L

"SUVIA IWOSTH ITYHL 1SVd NI S1SOD 1D3f0ud
LNIWIAOUIIWI ANV NOLLYOIHIQOW W3 LSA
ANIWIOVNYIN ¥ILYM WHOLS NI NOITIIW 6T

'§13A31 3DIAYAS

INIHAEND IONTTIVHD AVIW ANV TUNLDNULS
IVIONVNIH G31vdOTd3.13a SYH S1030ud
WLIdVO Q3SUNGWITUNN L30ddNS OL
NOLLYOIIEO TVIONVNIY GINNILNOD

- 000'T-

(5,000 $)

756 89€%6 NOLLISOd 1IN IViOL EST €ST NOISN3d
S3DUNOSTY 40
(b£9) (629) Q3LORILSTANN SMOT41NO0 a3uy3d3a
- - ANOZ 3QWL NOIYO4
INDANA YORVH  y5e07  s7e70T S13SSV V101
- aNNd NYO ONIAOTATY
Wod @aLnLSIY 00Z°0% €06'6
. B . Grr-ore $39vd) SSIIOU
96101 868’6 S13SSV TVLIdVO NIINWISIANL LIN S NI NOLLOMALSNGD
NOLLISOd 1IN INGWdINDI
o5 5% NOISN3d T6T°0T 9686 ANV SONIAIING ‘anv
S32UN0SIY
40 SMOT4NI a3¥ya4aq SLESSYIVEdYD
9951 £€SCT LLITIGVIT V. - -
SEUINAVITVIOL | - : S13SSV QAUOTUASTY TVLOL
888 706 .
) i 13N
- 6T SALLTTIAVI] LT ¥3HIO - -STTAVAIZOTI SINNOJOV
888 888 ALTIEVTT NOISN3d 13N
- - SINITVAINOI ANV HSYD
SALLIIAVIT INTHNNDONON
- _ S13SSV a31OTuLISIY
829 bt SALLTIIEVIT INJWHND W.LOL
SILLTIEVIT L1 -NOLIOd INRYND  TgZ FAT) S13SSY INFWAND TYLOL
- - ALTTIOVH D01 DNIATOATY g€ €€ S13SSY ¥IHLO
62 91T 3NNIATY GINAVINN 13N
b S NOLLDMYLSNOD -318VAVd SINNOJOY 89 (61) “F8VAIZOS SINNOJOV
S6€ [orard T1aVAVd SINNODDY - 089 865 SINTIVAINOT ANY HSYD
SILLITIAVIT INIHUND S13SSV INJHUND
910Z 9702 SaLLINEVIT . 910T 910z S13SSY
0ENNC  OEAON OENNC  OEAON
s 2 = e e T T e e S e e T e B R e S
{(s.000 $)

14

SUNNLd G3LOTYLSIANN -NOLLISOd 13N 40 ._.Zmimhﬁ_.w
FATHSAIWVH M3IN 40 ALDNOHLNY L30d




18 ¥S

9702
0€ NNC

9T0¢C

0E AON

NOILISOd L3N TV.LO1

QILORLLSTINN

3NOZ 3QVIL NOIFHOd

ONIDAAA JoguVH

QNN NVYO1 ONIAOTARY

*404 QOIS

S13SSY W.LIdYD NI LNIWLSIANI 13N
NOILISOd L3N

NOISN3d

S3ANUNOSIU
40 SMOTINI GaHNa4aq

S3LLNIEVI V1oL

SALLIIGVTT 17 ¥3H10
ALTIAVIT NOISN3d L3N

SIALLITIAVIT AINTHUNDONON
SALLTIIAVIT INFHIND TWLOL

SILITTIAVI] 17 -NOLLYOd LINTRIND
ALTIDVY D017 ONIATOATY

ANNIATY GINYVENN
NOLLONYISNOD -31aYAVd SINNODDY

F18VAVd SINNODJDV
SILLITISVIT INIHUND
saLnIavn

(s.000 $)

92

FUTHSdWVH M3N 40 ALTIOH.LNY L30d

NOISN3d

SIOUNOSAY 40
SMOT41N0 aIUN3J3A

S13SSV V101

il
(3} sl

Gre-or# S39vd) SSID0UY
NI NOLLONYLSNOD

INIWdINO
ANV SONIQTING ‘anvl

S13SSV TVLIdvD

S13SSV QIUDNILSIAY VIOL

- 13N
5 -STIVAIDTY SLNNODDY

SINTIVAINDI ANV HSYD
S13SSY A3LOTIISTY

S13ASSY INFHUMD VLI0L
S13SSV ¥3H10

13N
~JTEVYAIZOFY SINNODOY

SINTIVAINOI ANV HSYD
S13SSY INTMUND

910¢C 910C S13ssv

0€ NNC 0€ AON

KM ’

FIOC AS €I0T A4

910T A4 SI0Z A4

l

0€ ANNC LV
NOILISOd Q3aLONIST 13N

Z1d NI NOLLVAIDILYVd ¥I3HL a3AN3dSNS
¢ JRUDTTI ISNOHONLLSIM 9T0Z A4 ONTUNA

"SFONITIVHD TVIDNVNIA
40 NOLLVOIGNI ON HLIM 31V1S Adv3is

(s.000 $)



T1¢

269

L
o™

9T0T
0€ NNC

]

[4:14

9102
0E AON

NOLLISOd 13N TV1OL

G3ODUSTINA
INOZ 3QVHL NOTTIOS °

DNIOQFIQ HOFUVH
ANNd NVOT ONIAOTASY
204 Q3LOoTdISTY

S13SSVY TVLIdVYD NI LNIWLSIANI 13N

NOILISOd 13N °

NOISN3d

SA2UNOSAY
40 SMOT4NI a3yy313q

SALLIIEVI] V10L

SALLIIEVIT L1 ¥3HL0
ALTTIEVIT NOISN3d L3IN

SALLTIEVIT ANTUANONON
S3LLTIAVI] INFY¥ND TVI0L

SALLTIIAVIT L7 -NOLLIOd INFHUND

0 ail
wl

€69

ATTIDVE D07 ONIATOATY - .

INNIATY GINYVINN
NOLLONYLISNOD -T1gGVAVd SINNODDY
F19VAVd SINNOODY

SILLTITAVIT INZHUND
sauravil |

eTT

989

Le

(s,000 $)

ONIDATUC YOFUVH -NOILLISOd 13N 40 INIWILVIS
JUIHSdWVYH M3N 40 ALDIOH.LAY 1¥0d

NOISN3d

$A2UNOSIU 4O
SMOT4LNO gTUY343a

SLASSVY TViOL

(e1#-01# 539va) SSID0UL
NI NOLLDNYLSNOD

ANFWIND3
ANV SONIQTING ‘ANV

S13SSV V1iIdv)

S13SSV 310NIS3Y TWI0L

13N

-SATEGVAIZORI SINNODDV

SINITVAINOI ANV HSYD
S13SSVY g3 LOTuiSIY

S13SSV INIFWIND Tv.IOL
S13SSV UIHIO

13N
-AVAIZOZY SINNODDY

SINTIAINOI ANV HSVD
SLISSV INTWAND

S13ssv

910T A S10T A4 YIOE A3 ETOL Ad o
F SLT
—+t 0SE
f~ 44
0€ 3aNNC 1v
NOLLISOd @3.10N41S3y 13N
14 S3X08 TV DY N
[4} S311d ¥3AN3S .
LT0C Ad .
8T YIHLO TV "
(114 JIVOS 0Nl .
9T0Z A4 "
S¢ YIHIOTIV . .
8. VIS MONUL ANNOUD -
ST0C Ad "
¥8€ 3DARYE SSAIJV HLNOS
[4} NISYE ONINWUNL -+10Z Ad .
8z1 NISVE ONINYNL -€T0Z Ad N
00Z  NOLJWVH / J00uav3s -210¢ Ad B
0bT $ HYOFAYH NOLAIWYH -TT0Z A4 o
‘SNOLLYY3dO

L40d 404 IDNVNILNIVIW NV SHIVdIY HO

S103(0ud TV.LIdVD ISUNGWITUNN LA0ddNS

Ol NOILLYOII90 TVIDNYNI4 Q3NNLLNOD

(s.000 $)




6STT

6ST'T 6911

9702
0€ AON

9702
0€ NNC

NOILISOd 13N V101

Q3LORISTANN

ANOZ 3QVHL NOIFJOL
ONIDAIUA AOTAVH
QNN NYOT ONIAOTATY
404 3LORILSTHY

S13SSV V.LIdVD NI INIWISIANI 1IN

NOILISOd 13N

NOISN3d -

SANUINOSIY
40 SMOT4NI GIuN343a

SILLITIEVIT TVLOL

SALLNIGVI] L1 ¥3HLO
ALTIEVIT NOISNad 13N

SALLTTIEVIT AINRINONON

SALINIAVTT INIHAND WAOL |

SILLITIEVI] L7 -NOLLYOd ANTHUND
ALTTIOVE D0T ONIATOATY

ANNIAIY GINAVANN

NOLLONYLSNOD -T1aVAVd SINNODDV
T1EVAVd SINNODJDV

SALLITIAVIT INFWAND
sarnavIl

w "
'\VI
|
Lal

(5,000 $)

8¢

NVOT SNIATOATY -NOLLISOd L3N 40 INIWILVLS
FUIHSdWYH M3N 20 ALRNICHLNAY LJO0d

NOISN3d
SININOSIY 40
SMOT4LN0 dTNY343a

S13SSViviol

(rre-0r# S39%d) SSADOU
NI NOLLOMELSNOD

INIWAINDI

QaNV SONIQTING ‘anv .
S13SSY TVIIdYD

S13SSV G3LORISY WLOL

13N
-S31GVAIZOTY SINNODDV

SINFIVAINOA ANV HSYD
S13ssv aaloriisay

S13SSY INTHIND vioL
S13SSV ¥3H1O

13N
~FT8VAIIOT SINNODDY

SINTIVAIND3 ANV HSYD
S13SSV INTWAIND
s13ssv

¥I0T Ad

EI0Z A4

0€ 3INNC LV
NOILISOd G310T¥iS3N 13N

"ONIQNVLSLNO SNVO1

ANTHUND 4O LNIWAYdIY ‘ATIVILNILOd
ANV SNVO1T Jdnind 404 aNVWIg JHL
JONITIVHD ATTVILNILOd YIAIMOH
5300 ALYWID AYOLYINDIY LNIJAND

“IONVIvd ANNd 3HL OL
ALLYTIY SIONITIVHD TVIDNYNIJ ANY
40 NOLLVOIANI ON HLIM 31V1S AQV3LS




uuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuu

zzzzzzzzzzzzz

%
hamﬁﬁﬁgzﬁ )AA
ONILIIW S, BOLITIA 20 qUVOod

LTOC ‘0€ ¥39W3Ld3S
DNIAN3 AOI1d3d HLNOW 3ININ




P01 <961 vi0L

SE0S FDNVIVE ANNd ONISOD
a (1174 Q31VNOIS3A Yad
220't §2L'T Q31ORLISTUNN Vad oTeE MO HSVD 13N
STOC-0590  ITOT-TEer oTset
AV FIONVIVE 1V DONVIVE SIONVIVE GNNH V101 9TT INIWTALLT 1930 WYZL ONOT
. T HSVD QALDIALSTHN, e 259 (£#-5# SI9Vd 335) INVED NON ~-STUNLIANIAE TV.LIdYD
596 S3SNId)XA ONLLYYIIO
d3s oanv ne NNC AV Udy Uil 834 NVC .
= 0 SET'Y S1I43N38 GNV SIDIANIS TANNOSYId .
6YE $ 40 1930 V101 LAL S0 859’9 (bi# 39d 335) ANVYD -STUNLIANIDA TVLIdYD

M% SANN4d 40 sasn
\\ A e e

oo - 13N -TVLIdVD DONDRIOM JINVE TYNYALAE
—t _lm\..nlﬁlm 05 S5V 000's

(5,000 $)

QIITISTINN 744 13N ~(d0D) 334 IDIAYIS WAIDINNW
s _ 000’9
X £ST AVHANS
Aﬁ SIOINVIVE 1930 ONY HSVD Qa.153C0ud S SINNIAIY 13N ANY YYONVH LHOJYIV N3
ozk LHOQYIV HLNOWSLYOd
" SWVIYULS INNIATY 10d3IavyL Mm 08Z'1 SINNIATY NOISSIONOD ANV 33 3SUN0D 4109
10, ANV LSYOFIOL IANLIANIAXT TVLIAYD 40 ADVHNIOY (Z .
QAYMY LNVYD JLV1S / W33 40 LdIED3Y (T IAMIONI 86L°S (8# 39vd 335) SQUIVMV LNVAD
SNOLLDICOY¥d FUNLN QAYMOL SALLIATLISNIS NI @ s
006’9 SINVNIL 14043aviL
"STANLIANIAE TVLIdYD QILVITY
10 TR s i QN hcion N
Y3HLENA OL Q33N IHL ILVAIDIINY LON S30d Vad JHL @ TLT FONVIVE ANNd ONINIJO
NOTI! 1a INNOWV (5,000 $)

LTOZ ‘0E ¥IAWILAIS OL £LT0T ‘T AUVNINVC
(SHOGUVH ANV S140d 40 NOISIAIA SNIGN1XF) MIIAYIA0 AAVININNS MOT4 HSY)D
ALTYOHLNY LNIWdOT3IAIQ 3SVYAd




§E0S GSE0S THCTTY S89C OZET ©GI6Z OSTT STHTE @O0T  obTT AINVIVE ANN OSNISOTD

OIE’s &L €65'T 81€'T (6bS5'1T)  (1€2) L SLE 61§ #es MO HSVD 13N
0Z8€T 059 SZ6 9/07¢ II¥e E0C S0LT 08 T6Z 20ET
9Tt = - = = - - - = 91T INIWIUILIY 1930 WYL ONOT
S96 ST1 00T 00T SOT SIT 00T 01T ST1 SOtT S3SN3dXE ONLLYYIIO
vSE'T - - 14 411 - - - - ¥4 334 30IAY3S VAIDINNKW
z89 - 1 09 S6 [4] £81 S8 32 S6 #-5# 52904 B5) |NVHONON ~TW.LIdVD
8v9'9 oL 1743 T4 ¢ 005’1 95H'T £96 ST ZA¢ ST (r# 304 235) QALVITY LNVYD -TVLIdVD
SET'Y  So oLy (1124 S9b obt SSb 09% 09% 0Sv SLEINIE ANV SIDIAUIS TINNOSYd
SANN4 40 3sn

O8STZT ObT 895C bet’e 8261 [£X: 3 [474 S0CT TIET 98’1

- - - - - 13N -D0TY VLIdVD ONDRIOM

LST 6T 81 6T 81 8T IA: 9T 91 91 LAOJUIV NIAVHANS
oy 5 Sy 0S Sb St 0S Sy Sy 0S LHOANIV HINOWSLYOd
08Z'T  S6T (1] ¢4 ST1Z 00z S91 59 ob o 0ST 3SUN0D 4109
ST9‘T 0§ 0SZ SLE 0S¢ 0SZ SLE 0S¢ 0ST L€ 334 IDIANIS WVIDINNW
86L's 0/t SZY'T SS9'T 008 ¥5L 0€T 6€£¢C S9€ 091 (6# 39vd 335) SQAYMY LNVIO
006’9  SZ9 029 080T ST9 009 SL0'T  ST9 565 S20'1 SINVNAL LHOdIaVAL

SANN4 40 SIDUNOS
ST T8TT BVI9CT OLET GT6C OSTE EFTE  B9LT  OHTZ  STOT FONVIVE ANNd DNIN3O

NMC VR IV oW &= NVE

VIOL 1435 5Nv T NNC

Go0d £T0T ‘0€ Y39W31d3S OL LT0T ‘T AUVNANVC
(SHOFYVH GNV SLY¥0d 40 NOISIAIA IHL ONIGNTIXT) MOTd HSYD 40 LNIKWILVIS
ALTYOHLNY LNIWdOT3IAIA 3SVid



TVAQUdAV QUVOa ONIANId #x

210N

8999 07 0ZE SPT 00T 9SFT €96 (744 (744 TS

§10¢ 0¢ 08T 003 005 00 05T ST 05 0€¢
g - - - b - - - - [ NOIS3IA AVMNNY
- - - . . - - - (NDIS30) SINIWIAVA ANVIIXV.L
SELT 0z 0ST 00§ 00S 0ot 0ST ST - - (NOLLONYLSNOD) INIWIAVd INVTIXV.L
S£T - - - - - 0s 744 NOLLDMULSNOD AVMNITY
LIOdYIV NIAVHANS

€E9r 0% (1144 56 0007 950T ©i8 09T 1244 S8¢
65T " - = - - - - [ 05T SNOLLYAONTY WOOUHLYE
] - - - - - - o1 (€097 94S) I9YNIVHA ANV INJWIAVI
ST - - - - - - - - ST (20971 98S) NOLLOMYLSNOD uSY
o1 - - - - - - - S S NOISIQ AYYNIWIIZAd MY
€1 - - - - - £ 0s 08 08 WaLSAS INIWIOVNYIW NOLLYDI4LINIAI
9/ - - - - 9 ot (174 (114 (174 I 3SVHd -NOLLVOLLIW NOLLONiSA0
0SZ - - T4 00z 0sZ SLT - - - sk SINTWIONVHNI TYNIWRAL
002 - - - - - T4 S - - s AQNLS -SINTWIINVHNZ TWNIWHIL
00z’e (0 0zz 008 008 008 00S ST o1 S VHATV AVMIXV.L Q¥VND TYNOLLYN YIV
LAOUIY HLNOKWSLHOd
INTWISANTWITY INVED

et NfC VA v TN 2] NVT

LTOZ ‘O€ YAAWILAIS OL £T0T ‘T AUYNNVL
(SHOTUVH ANV SLH0d 40 NOISIAIG IHL ONIANTIXT) STAUNLIANIALXA TV LIdVD
ALTYOHLNY LN3IWdOT3IA3Q 3SVad



TWACUddY QYO ONIANTd
310N

5 : = - : : 57 %

(1] - - - - - - " o1 - NV1d NOLLVLYOdSNWVIL FOV-RINS
ot = = - - - - - = (1] SIHOLIA IOYNIVAEA
SE - - - - - - N - SE ONINVITO YOLVAVAIS ¥4ILYM TIO
€e - - - - - - - €e - 0907 YaIMOL J3LYm

L¥0od3aavil

VIOL Ias 5V nt NAC VR qdv IV EE] NVT

(5000%) o/ T0C ‘0€ YAGWALDIS OL £T0Z ‘T AUVANVL
(SHOGYVH ANV SLYOd 4O NOISIAIA FHI ONIGNTIXT) WNM : .._.HQ zm&%m |_< ._.HA_<U
ALTMOHLNY LNINWdOT3IA3A 3SVad



TVAOUddY QHVOd ONIANId xx
:110N

|.T|W.ﬂ - z q@ - IN. Mm z = =
b - 4 z - - - *% STALLYNYILTV NOLLYORRII 35SUN0O
9 - - . - - n - - - ++ YIMOW HONOY
0s - . 0s - - - - . - o ININGINOA SOOHENTD
ot - - o1 - - - - - - ++ STOANIE ISANOD 3MA
st - . . - - sT - : - s YITION SNITUO
8 - - . - - 8 - - - ++ ¥3MOTd SRig3a
ISUN0D 4100
) } - ) } ) : +o+ SNOLLYDINNWIWODT AL
ot - - - 3 - - - - g / SYIAYIS / TUYMIH0S / SUILINRIA / SUILNWOD
NOLLVYISINIWAV
514 - 14 - = = - = - E s« ONIAING TYNIWYZL J00Y-TY
LIOdUIV NIAVHAIS
3 5N

gl il N.lwﬂmwﬁmﬂﬂw~ Sl Do

LA
SRRy

AT TS A  abi BES gl
R R T T g

L

ow®) e £T0C ‘0 YIGWILDIS OL LTOT ‘T AUVANVLE
(SHOFUVH ANV SLHOd 40 NOISIAIG FHL ONIANTIXT) SNANLIANILXA TVLiidvD
ALTYOHLNY LNIWdOTIAIG 3ASY:id




TWAOUddY QUVOT ONIANZ %x

:3L0N
59 - [13 09 g6 (4 8T &8 [3 g6 ANVYONON TVAOL
[1] ¥4 = (3 = Ei 05 8 - - -
59 - - - 59 - & - - = ax INSWIOVTdTY 1334 TIDIHIA
o1 - ] - - - - - - 3o+ WYV 31 43 LSIHO0Y S£
00T - - - 0s 0s N *x ML TYNIWYAL
S€ - - - - - SE - - - * 13ULS 31 / -3avA9dN WALSAS DVAH I..I
i
IONVNILINIVW
59T = - - [14 - o1 %8 - 53
14 - o - 4 - - - = - o INSWEOV AT LIdAVD TYNIWRELL
1) - - - - - o1 - - - *+ JOVNOIS -5310d LOT ONDRIVd
S€ - - - - - - se - - 0 YOLVIINIO NOLLVLS ¥IHLYIM HLNON
0s - - - - - 0s - #% 8# ANV £ # 1NH 30 DNHOOYTY
o€ - - = - - - - - o€ ONIQING TYNIWYAL LINFWIDV AT 400N
ST - - - - - - - - ST (@) ONIJWYTEN AVMNIT QTEIHYIVY
LAONIIVY HINOWS.LYOd
“(aann1nod) " INTFWISHNEWIZ Y INVUONON
VIOL 1435 5NV nc Nnt AVIH qdv Il :EE] NVL

w0 = /707 ‘0f YIGWILIS OL LTOZ ‘T AUVANVL
(SH08¥VH GNV SL¥0d 40 NOISIAIA IHL ONIANTIXT) STANLIANIALXA TVLIAYD
ALTYOHLNY LNIWJOT3IAIQ 3SYId



8678 oIt SFT SS9T 008 V&Z OET ®EC ST 00T 1NV TW1O0L

S = - - - - - S - - NOIS3A AVMNMY
S - - - . - - - S - NOIS3A -LNFWIAVd INVTIXVL
0Ee’T - Szl Ss8 - 06T - - - 091 NOLLONYLSNOD ~LNIWIAVd INVIIXVL
00z - - - - - - 00z - - NOLLONYLSNOD AVMNMTY
LUOQUIY NIAVHAAS

00€ - - - - . o011 . 067 - SNOLLVAONTY WOOYHLYE
0z - - - - - - - 174 - (€09T 94S) 39VNIVYA ANV INIWIAVd
174 - - 5 - & 174 B - - (Z09T 98S) NOLLOMYLSNOD USY
8T - - - - 6 - 6 - - NOISIA AYYNIWIITdd MY
0Tt - - - - o1 - - 00T - WZLSAS INTWIOYNVIA NOLLYDIHLINIAL
06 - - - - or - - 0sS - IT 3SVHd -NOLLYOLLIW NOLLDNYLSEO
00S - 00S - - - - - - - SINIWIONVHNT TVNIWYAL
00zZ°€ 0L¢ 008 008 008 S0S - S¢ = - VHATY AVMIXVL Q4¥NO TYNOLLYN ¥IV
LHOdUIV HLNOWS1AN0d

VIOL 1435 5V Nt NNt AV dv TN g3 NVL

Cwes  LT0Z ‘0 ¥IGWILAIS OL ZT0Z ‘T ANVANYC
(SYOGIVH NV SL¥0d 40 NOISIAIQ FHL ONIANTIXI) mn¢<;< hzgw E”mumm
ALTNOHLNY INIWJO13AIG ISVId



ST°0 FALNVEVND
S s o e oemmmaaa L gog ALVLS AHL
R Sl = ea AYNVD LON S30a ¥3HI1O
. S0
& .
[ \m’dﬂéﬂ- SS°0 zgg Mmvua
\ §9°0 WNWINIW ON 40 IZIS WNWINIW
1\ 0 S.INIOd
980 gz SISvd 092 +
0 ™ (OISSVID) d1Hd
HLNOIW 3INO ALV 1STHILNY
L LN THA L
LAV
ONDROM
3QINOYd OL ISOodind
5% 0S¥ AOVIAY
Q3LHOTAM LT0Z-TE-TT 31va wyaL
[51% (537
TT02-0T-€0 31vd IATLD3443
H1NOWSLNOd
0s'y 020¢-1¢-¢T S9b S9b 40 ALD
000’s TEVIIVAY LNNOWY
(007d) YNve
TIGVRIVA L102-T€-¢1 - - AN3QIAOYd FHL
, ALITIDVA LIG3UD
000°s TYNISTHO 40 INNOWY
1STUALNI ATINLYIN 1v v 1S1 {50Td) JINvE
IONVIVE FONVIVE wznnz.< o AIN3QIAOYd FHL

(5,000 $)

SISATVNY 1930 DNIANVLSLNO ANV SALLITIOVL LIgFD
ALTYOHLNY LNIWdOT3IAIA ISVId



LT Te0'T wioL
o7 -

06 ANNd NVOT ONIATOATY
(4:13 FONV1IVE NN DNISOTD
9 ob 3NOZ 3avil NOINO4
e1b T6b ONIDATHA YOGUVH 652 MO HSVD 13N
089 Sob SANN GALORLLSTINN 8Lb
9T0Z-0£-90 9T0Z-TE2t - YIHLO TV
1V IDNVIVE 1V IONVIVE SIONVIVE GNNd TVLOL o€ STHNLIONGE TWLIYD
_ L12 ANIWTINDOYd 13N
das ony nc NNC AVW Udv AV a3 NYL
I— ) * ’ ’ ' * ! ooe (1) 87 SASNADA ONLLY¥IHO

AN

/-Ilnl‘ll/ oo TZ8 S1I43N3E ANV SIDIANIS TINNOSHId
/ oo SaNNd 40 sasn
|

g
& T
002
681 SNOISSIONOD ANV S334 ONDRvYd
SAONVIVE HSVD ILOTALSTUNN AILDACOUd
. 1 Y4 SIS 1[3Nd
"QINIWYALIA 39 OL L13A SVH “(NISvE
ONINYNL YIATS VNOVLIVOSId) V-N4-G¢ GH HIM QE«.UQ&M 002 JOVLUVHM / SNOLLVAISIOTY
A1V 1STIINT ANV QOLi3d NOLLYZLIMOWY NVO1 252 "
sz€ S334 INRIOOW
*£T0T “T€ YIAWIDIA STUIDE NOLLY.LUOASNYIL
40 INFWLHVdIQ INIVIW 40 31VLS HLIM INTWITHOV 3SVET & 98t SIVANTY ALTTIOVY
TALLEAO JAOTANE 40 LNIWNIVINGD CEINILNOD (5 SANNd 40 SINUNOS
TOIT HO ANV SWEY 1 MO VEASNE S
‘1SVOTY0] UNLIANIAXA TV.LIAVD 40 ADVHNODV (T JANTNI Sov FONVIVE ANN ONIN3IdO
SNOLLDICOUA TuMNLN4 QYVMOL SALLIALLISNIS INTND =~ =
INNOWY (s.000 $)

£LTOZ ‘OE YIAWIAON OL LTOZ ‘T AYVIINVL
(sawn azuonusay smano) MITAYANO AUVWIWNS MOT4 HSYD
SYOSUVH ANV SL30d 40 NOISIAIC

oT



11’

OE (419 742 SSb %F ¥E IS8 TWE TEO TTv FONVIVE ONNd ONISOTO

(ev) (601) 9T 6 (86) 4] 6 (08) s81 43 MO HSYD 13N
8IFT  ©&cC EET 144 {544 (44 =T e 8 9T
o€ - - o1 - - ot - - o1 ¥IHLO ANV STUNLIANIdXE TVAIdVD
1T 144 x4 8¢ 8¢ Vid 8¢ €2 61 61 INIWFUNDOUd TN
SE - o1 = - 0T - - St - SIIIAYAS TYNOISSII0Ud
29t ST ST ST ST b1 6T w T4 @ SALLIILLN
S6 [4} 11 01 T 6 (4} 6 T (1]} FALLVYLSINIWAY ANV TVHINTD AR
81T 01 3} o1 o.m (1] (14 ST (0] 8 8T SAUTIOVH ANV SONIATING :
TZ8 08T 6S SS 04T 6 14 S9T 8y iy SII4INTE ANY S3DIAYAS TANNOSHd
SANNd 40 3sn
SEV'T DET (324 ZeT 9ET aat (121 [ ETE 85T
SET 74 5¢ o€ o€ o 0€ T4 0z (174 STIVS TN
74 ] € S ¢ s€ ST ot - - - 5334 ONDRVd
00z ST 0z ST ST ot 0s ST o 0z JOVRAIVHM / SNOLLYALSIOTY
STE - - - - - - 09 0z S9 S334 DNIIOOW
1 - 4 € [4 € [4 - - - SANNIATE NOISSIONOD
o8y S 55 s ¥ ¥ bs Vs €S €S STVANTY ALTIIOVH
_ SANN4 40 SIDUNOS
747 2 177 ws 188 WS TW® v SOv JFONVIVE ANN ONINIdO
:EZ I/

Id38 B e NAifT AV 9V O

£T0Z ‘0E ¥IAWILAIS OL LTOT ‘T AUVANYC |
SANNS GILOTULSTUNN -MO’Id HSVD 40 LNIWILVLS |
SYOFUVH ANV SL30d 30 NOISIAIG



(44

£9¢€ €9¢ 437 (1157 W SBIF¥ TIS €S 96 o6 FONVIVE ANNd ONISOT1D

(821) (¥s) (g€) 8 (o) (e8) 8 L € 8 MO HSVD 13N

¥02 29 oF T 22 [3 4 T [44 T

06T 09 ob - ob ot - - 0T - ¥IHLO TV
9 [4 - " 4 - - 4 - - ~ SADIAYAS TYNOISSII0Ud
- SaLnLn
4 - - - Z - - - 4 - FJALLYVALISININGY ANY TVHINAD
4 - - T - - 4 - - T SALLIIDVYL ANY SONIQTING

- - - S1I43IN39 ANV SIOIAYAS TANNOSYHAd
SanNnd 40 Asn

Rl
ol
N
N
[ ]
N
=
ol
4]
ol

i
N
o
(1]
o
(o]
o~
o~
o~
(2]
~

$334 IDVMOTL 13nd

N
L]
o
i
o
-
i
o~
-
i
-

SNOLLVALSIO

m
<
o0
o}
Ln
Ln
<«
©
O
n
v

S334 3OVSN YAId
SGNN4 40 SIDUNOS

96F G6F
IV e N

FONVIVE ANNd ONIN3IdO

g
3
g
¥
S
2 i
g &
&

o
=

R LT0T ‘0€ YIGWIALdIS OL LTOT ‘T AYVANVE
ANMd DNIDAACA YONIVH -MOTd HSVD 50 LNIWILYLS
SUYOMAVH ANV S1LUO0d 40 NOISIAIG



€T

(172 [13 (172 (17 372 372 17 (37 w w FONYIVE aNNd DNISOTD

@ - - (n S - @ MO HSVD 13N
g = = k4 : = T - k4
YIHIO TV
STDIAYIS TYNOISSIHOUd
SALLTILIN
S - - 4 - - I - - r4 JALLVYLSINIWGY ANV TvHINID
SALLIIOVS ANV SONIATING

SIH3IN3E ANV S3DIAYIS TINNOSHId

SANNd 40 asn
g = = - - - B g E -
- IHI0 TIV
s S STVANTY ALTIOV
SANNd 40 SIUNOS
(12 9% (74 v 14 8 oF w w % JONVIVE ANNd DNIN3dO
NAT W Ydv VA [:F) NVC

s L10Z ‘0E YIFWILAIS OL LTOT ‘T AHVNNVL
INOZ 3dVY.L NOSIFUOL ~MOTd HSVD 40 LNIWHLiVLS
SHOSIVH ANV S130d 40 NOISIAICQ



14

Tt t441 ({3 08 9 312 [33) TET it POT FONVIVE ANNA DNISOTD

Tz L1 ST ] ] ST (86) 14 €T 14 MO HSVD 13N
PET T € 4 4 [ PIT 4 £ €

- YIHLO TIV
TT z £ [4 [4 £ [/ [4 € 3 SIS TVNOISSIHOUd
. - & - SALLIILLN
- - SALLVYISINIWAY ONV TV33N3D
- - SILLIIOVH GNY SONIQTING

= - & - - SLI3INIE ANV SIDIAYIS TINNOSHAd
[433 . - - - = (A48 - - - a3NSST SNVO1 MaN
SANN 40 asn

8
o
a
' 3A
=
=
tE
' a
Igl
' o

SANNd aI¥3LSIN0DIS

m

—
-

'
-

JONVIVE ANNA -INODINT LSTYFLNI

3
[Fp]
[Ts]
wn
N ’
<+
-«
<+
<+
<

SNYOT-3WODNI 1STHILNI

€11 €1 €T €1 €1 €1 I Y4 4! r4 ! SINIWAVATY NVOT
SANN4 40 SIUNCS

06 S6 08 9 [:1% TET V441 POT 06 FONVYIVE ANNS DNINIdO

[x3
VIOoL 1435 SNV ne NNC AVIW ] T

g
g
B

s LT0Z ‘0E YIAWILdIS OL ZTOT ‘T AUYNNYC
NVO'i SNIATOATY -MOTd HSVYD =0 INIWIALVIS
SYOFIYVH ANV S1H0d 40 NOISIAIQ



z
-
m

\4

55 International Drive, Portsmouth, NH 03801

o

T
et
-=
~m

rm
>
< ghn
-

> m

c<

~Mix
iz

MOTION

Director Preston:

The Pease Development Authority Board of Directors hereby
authorizes the Executive Director to execute a Right of Entry with In
Control Family Foundation, Inc. from January 1, 2017 through December
31, 2017, for the purpose of conducting closed course, hands-on.crash
prevention training on a portion of the North Apron, subject to FAA
approval of the non-aviation use of the North Apron; and substantially on
similar terms and conditions set forth in the draft Right of Entry dated

January 20, 2017 attached hereto.

Note: Roll call vote required

N:\RESOLVES\InControl0117.docx

O00O TAKING YOU THERE



ra
Y q CRAGN FREVERIIGN TRAINING
The In Control Family Foundation, Inc
Filed as a non-profit 501(c)(3)

188 Main Street - Suite 202

Wilmington, MA 01887

978.658-4144
R B  Fax 978.388.8443
November 17, 2016 -www,DriveInControl.org

Marie S. Aleksy

Peaise Development Authority
55 International Drive
Portsmouith, NH 03801

Dear Marie:

Per your request, | am writing to request approval for in Control to receive a one year R|ght of Entry to
perform training at your facility for 2017: We have already been contacted by two insuranee: carriers
(Hanover and Safety Insuranee) aboitt spring. classes af Pease so°we're ‘anxious fo try to get sorrie
excltement around those vrsrts_thl_s winter: Addrtronalty a one; year approval timeline would make

moté the program.{o teens and families much easier. ‘We would not
expect to have srgmt"oantly more wsnts ‘and wolld plan to work dlreetly wrth airport managerent-for
prior approval well befare eaeh VISIt (as we do now)

In Control offers the nat[ens ﬁrst state certlf ed crash’ preventlon training program graduatrng over
30,000 students with. skills that will likely save theif Iifesomeday Car crashes are generally the #1 killer
for people under age 45 and the statistics:for teens are.frightening. This program has been shown to
drastically reduce crashes in drwers of all ages and receives countless praise from attendees, civic
organlzatlons etc.

In Control has been recognized as a 5@1(0)(3) non—prot” t and works with. a vanety of partners to
introduce- otr training to feens and their families across New England. - The Exeter Area New Car
Dealer§ have been klnd enough to mtroduoe us to your area and have offered subsidies to encourage
teens: to tram with Y8 . "

If you have any specrfrc concerns or questlons please do riot hesttate to call or write. Thank you again
for your‘tlrne and supportl

Pres ; tlE)(eeutlve Dlrector
Ian@DnveInControl org
(617) 826—9805 moblle 3 L1




i1 IN CONTROL

e’ oM FamiLy Founparion

The Problem;

Our Mission:
Our Solution:

The In Control
Difference:

Our Commitment:

HANDS-ON

Motor vehicle crashes are the number one cause of death among young drivers and their

passengers. More teens and young adults die in violent auto collisions each year in the United

States than the number two through five causes of death combined. In terms of lowest number
of fatalities from motor vehicle crashes per capita, the U.S.A. typically ranks 40th in the world.
Countries that lead the world in safe driving require crash prevention training.

To drastically reduce automobile crashes, fatalities and injuries.

In Control provides a hands-on, high speed, learning experience where drivers are put through
real world, emergency situations on a closed course. Our program is modeled upon the driver
training that is required in the countries with the safest driving records. Trainees develop skills
and build instinctual reactions to make the right decisions in high speed collision avoidance
situations.

In Control provides an active solution. We engage the community to keep safe driving
awareness front & center and we get new drivers behind the wheel. Our Crash Prevention
Training is the first state certified program of this kind in the United States. The results speak for
themselves: our program has reduced crash rates in new drivers by 70%.

In Control is committed to saving lives by providing crash prevention training to all young drivers
throughout New England and eventually beyond. We invest in community engagement efforts to
educate parents and drivers of all ages about the dangers of driving and resources available to
them Long tﬁrm we belleve thls approach will mﬂuence the general pubhc and legislators with -




January 20, 2017

Dan Strollo, President

The In Control Family Foundation, Inc.
188 Main Street, Suite 202
Wilmington, MA 01887

Re:  Right of Entry for Use of North Apron
Pease International Tradeport, Portsmouth, NH

Dear Mr. Strollo:

This Right of Entry will authorize The In Control Family Foundation, Inc. (“In Control”) and/or
any agents or contractors to enter upon a portion of the above referenced Premises (see Exhibit A) effective
from the date of FAA approval (see Paragraph 12 below) through December 31, 2017, for the purpose of
conducting, at its sole risk, closed course, hands-on crash prevention training and for no other use without
the express written consent of the Pease Development Authority (‘PDA"). The use, occupation and
maintenance of the Premises shall be: (a) without cost or expense to the PDA; (b) subject to the general
supervision and approval of the PDA; and (c) subject to such rules and regulations as the PDA may
prescribe from time to time. This Right of Entry shall terminate at midnight on December 31, 2017

1. In Control understands and acknowledges that this Right of Entry; (a) allows only
temporary use of the facilities; (b) is granted on a non-exclusive basis; and (c) may be revoked at will by
PDA or terminated at will and that PDA need not state a reason for any such revocation or termination.
The use of the Premises shall be orderly and efficient, shall not constitute a nuisance and shall not cause
disruption to other Airport activities.

2, In Control's agreement herein that any use of the Premises is at its sole risk and that its
signature below constitutes its agreement to assume full responsibility for any and all risk of loss or
damage to property and injury or death to persons by reason of or incident to its entry or the entry by any of
its employees, agents or contractors upon the premises and/or the exercise of any of the authorities granted
herein. In Control expressly waives all claims against the PDA for any such loss, damage, personal injury
or death caused by or occurring as a consequence of In Control's use of the Premises or the conduct of
activities or the performance of responsibilities under this authorization. In Control further agrees to
indemnify, save, hold harmless, and defend the PDA, its officers, board members, agents and employees,
from and against all suits, claims, demands or actions, liabilities, judgements, costs and attorney's fees
arising out of In Control’s use of the Premises or any activities conducted or undertaken in connection with
or pursuant to this authorization.

3. PDA shall not be responsible for damages to property or injuries to persons which may
arise from or be attributable or incident to the condition or state or repair of the Premises, or the use and
occupation thereof, or for damages to the property or injuries to the person of In Control’s officers, agents,
servants or employees, or others who may be on the Premises at their invitation or the invitation of any one
of them.

O00OO TAKING YOU THERE

55 International Drive, Portsmouth, NH 03801



Dan Strollo, President

The In Control Family Foundation
January 20, 2017

Page 2

4. In Control and any agent or contractor of In Control providing PDA with satisfactory
evidence of comprehensive general liability insurance to a limit of not less than Two Million Dollars
($2,000,000), naming the PDA as additional insured. In Control and any agent or contractor of In Control
providing PDA with satisfactory evidence of automobile liability insurance coverage in the amount of
$1,000,000.00 and workers' compensation coverage to statutory limits.

Each such policy or certificate therefor issued by the insurer shall contain (i) a provision that no
act or omission of any employee, officer or agent of In Control which would otherwise result in forfeiture
or reduction of the insurance therein provided shall affect or limit the obligation of the insurance company
to pay the amount of any loss sustained, (ii) an agreement by the insurer that such policy shall not be
canceled without at least thirty (30) days prior written notice by registered mail to PDA, (iii) provide that
the insurer shall have no right of subrogation against the PDA and (iv) a provision that any liability
insurance coverage required to be carried shall be primary and non-contributing with respect to any
insurance carried by PDA.

5. In Control understands and acknowledges that for each specific period of use requested
during the Term, In Control shall coordinate with and shall obtain prior approval from the PDA Airport
Management Department for use of the Premises. Authorization for use of the Premises shall be granted on
a "first come first served" basis to equal priority users. PDA reserves the right to schedule use of the
Premises for high priority users whenever necessary.

6. In Control understands and agrees that it will not enter the premises or conduct crash
prevention training during the Term of this Right of Entry without the express prior approval of PDA.

7. In Control covenants and agrees that at no time during the use of the North Apron shall
any testing be performed within 200 feet of the area utilized by the National Guard.

8. In Control agrees to pay PDA a user’s fee in the amount of One Hundred Ninety-One and
78/100 Dollars ($191.78) per day for each day the premises are used for crash prevention training. On the
first day of each month during the term of this Right of Entry, PDA will bill In Control for the user’s fee
incurred during the previous month.

9. - In Control hereby acknowledges that vehicles will enter and exit the premises through
Gate 12.- Access to Gate 12 must be arranged in advance through the PDA Airport Operations
Department (603) 433-6536.

10. In Control agrees that during each training period, the training area shall be designated by
the placement of orange traffic cones around the perimeter of the training area. Except during the training
sessions, In Control hereby acknowledges and agrees for itself, and its agents shall observe the 15 MPH
speed limit, and access to and from the training session shall be made in vehicles which are lighted and
marked as required in the sole discretion of the PDA Airport Operations Manager.

11. In Control acknowledges and agrees that it will be responsible for snow removal that is
needed for its operations. Snow removal operations must meet the requirements of PDA Airport
Operations and will not impede aircraft operations or the operations of other airfield tenants. In Control
acknowledges that because there is no stormwater discharge permit in the Right of Entry Area, no deicing
chemicals or salt will be used or permitted on the Airport Operations Area (*AOA”). In Control further
acknowledges that if sand is needed, In Control shall make arrangements with the PDA Maintenance



Dan Strollo, President

The In Control Family Foundation
January 20, 2017

Page 3

Division for the purchase of FAA-grade sand. Only FAA-grade sand supplied by the PDA Maintenance
Division will be permitted to be used.

12, This Right of Entry is subject to the receipt of a written FAA Determination that the
project: a) poses no hazard to air navigation and b) is determined to be compliant with the airports federal
obligations and assurances. This determination requires the applicant to file FAA Form 7460-1 “Notice of
Proposed Construction or Alteration” with the FAA at least 45 days prior to the proposed project start date.

13. The North Apron is part of the Airport Security Identification Display Area ("SIDA").
Designated representatives of the In Control will be required to obtain security badges and qualify as
escorts in order for representatives, employees and agents of the In Control to gain access to and remain on
the North Apron. While in the SIDA, escort procedures per the requirements of the Pease International
Airport Security Program must be met. Prior to accessing the North Apron, all petsons providing SIDA
escort must undergo verification of their criminal history for the past ten (10) years, attend a training class
that is offered no more than once every two weeks and pay any applicable fees. Information regarding
escort requirements can be obtained by calling the Airport Operations Department at (603) 433-6536,
Monday through Friday, 8:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m. No representative, employee or agent of the In Control
will be allowed in the SIDA without escorts meeting the requirements of the Pease International Airport
Security Program

Please indicate by your signature or the signature of a duly authorized representative, the consent
of the In Control to the terms of this Right of Entry and return the same to me before testing begins.

Sincerely,

David R. Mullen
Executive Director

Agreed and accepted this ___ day of , 2017

The In Control Family Foundation, Inc.

By:

Duly Authorized

cc: Andrew Pomeroy, Airport Operations Manager
Mark H. Gardner, Deputy General Counsel

P:\ROE\In ControNInControlCrashROE2017.docx



EXHIBIT "A"
PREMISES



MEMORANDUM
To:  Pease Development Authority Board of Directors
From: David R. Mullen, Executive Director <pAA—
Date: January 19, 2017
Re:  Sublease between Pioneer Aviation LLC and Imagic, Inc.

In accordance with the "Delegation to Executive Director: Consent, Approval of
Sub-sublease Agreements” adopted by the Board on August 8, 1996, I am pleased to report that
PDA has approved of a sublease between Pioneer Aviation LLC (“Pioneer") and Imagic, Inc. for
5,320 square feet located at 125 Aviation Avenue, The Pioneer/ Imagic, Inc. lease is for a base
term of five (5) years effective December 1, 2016. Imagic, Inc., a software developer, will use
the premises for general offices.

The Delegation to Executive Director: Consent, Approval of Subleases provides that:

"A Sublease Agreement subject to this delegation of authority shall not be consented to,
approved or executed unless all of the following conditions are met:

1. The use of the Subleased Premises associated with the sublease is
permitted under the original sublease;

2. The sublease is consistent with the terms and conditions of the original
Lease; :

3. The original Lessee remains primarily liable to Lessor to pay rent and to
perform all other obligations to be performed by Lessee under the original
Lease; and

4, The proposed Sublessee is financially and operationally responsible.

Conditions one through three have been met. As to condition four, PDA relies on
Pioneer's continued primary liability for payment of rent and other obligations pursuant to the
PDA/Pioneer Sublease.

The Delegation to Executive Director: Consent, Approval of Sub-sublease Agreements

also requires the consent of one member of the PDA Board of Directors. In this instance, Director
Lamson was consulted and granted her consent.

PAPIONEER\125 Aviation\Board\BoardmemImagic0117.docx

OO0 TAKING YOU THERE

55 International Drive, Portsmouth, NH 03801



55 international Drive, Porismouth, NH 03801

MOTION

Director Loughlin:

The Pease Development Authority Board of Directors authorizes the
Executive Director to execute such document necessary and desirable to
grant an option to Two International Group, LLC (“TIG”) for the 11 acre
parcel located at 100 New Hampshire Avenue, for a period of six (6) months
at a fee of $12,100.00; with one (1) six (6) month option to extend at a fee
of $24,200.00 exercisable by mutual agreement of the parties; all on
substantially the same terms and conditions set forth in the Option
Agreement and Term Sheet attached hereto.

N:\RESOLVES\ TwolntlOption100NHO0117.docx

OO0OOO TAKING YOU THERE



OPTION AGREEMENT AND TERM SHEET

OPTIONOR: Pease Development Authority (“PDA” or “Lessor”)
OPTIONEE: Two International Group, LLC (“Client” or “Lessee™)
PREMISES: 100 New Hampshire Avenue, Pease International Tradeport
DATE: , 201

This Option Agreement and Term Sheet (the “Agreement”), when executed, shall be effective
as of , 2017

WHEREAS, PDA is the owner of certain property located at 100 New Hampshire Avenue
(formerly known as 80 Rochester Avenue) Pease International Tradeport, Portsmouth, NH (the
"Premises" or "Property"); and

WHEREAS, PDA and CLIENT desire to enter into this Agreement to grant Client an option
to lease the Property from PDA pursuant to the option terms and conditions set forth in this
Agreement. PDA and CLIENT are each sometimes referred to in this Agreement as a “Party” and
are sometimes collectively referred to as the “Parties”.

NOW, THEREFORE, for and in consideration of the mutual covenants and agreements
contained herein, and other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which is
hereby acknowledged and confessed by the parties hereto, the PDA and Client hereby agree to the
option terms and conditions as follows:

1. Option and Option Area

Following execution of this Agreement, Client shall have an exclusive right and option to
lease the land (the “Option™) described generally as 100 New Hampshire Avenue and consisting of
11+/- acres as more particularly shown on the plan attached hereto and incorporated herein as
Exhibit “A” (the “Option Area”), for general office use. The “Option Period” shall be a period of six
(6) months beginning the effective date first above written, for which Client shall pay PDA an option
rate of $12,100.00 (the “Option Payment”).

2. Option Payment(s)

The first Option Payment in the amount of $12,100.00 for the first Option Period shall be due
and payable upon execution of this Agreement.

At least (_) days prior to the expiration of the Option Period, but not later than
,201__, Client shall provide written notice to PDA of its request to extend the

Option Period for one additional six (6) month period (the “Option Extension Period”). Said notice
shall be accompanied by payment of an Option Payment to PDA of $24,200.00 for the Option

1




Extension Period.

Client acknowledges that any extension of the Option Period shall require consent of the
PDA Board of Directors and be further subject to the Client demonstrating to PDA that it has made
substantial progress with respect to the development of the parcel. In the event the PDA Board of
Directors does not consent to the Option Extension Period, the additional Option Payment for said
Option Extension Period shall be returned to Client and the Option Period shall be deemed to have
terminated on , 201

3. Exercise of Option

The Option may be exercised by Client at any time prior to the expiration of the Option
Period by providing written notice (the “Option Exercise Notice”) of such exercise to PDA prior to
the expiration of the Option Period.

Upon the valid exercise of the Option, Client and PDA shall negotiate a Lease Agreement
(the “Lease™) for the Option Area on terms and conditions mutually agreeable to the parties at an
initial base rent of $16,500 per acre per year. The Lease shall be subject to Client’s obligation to (i)
obtain all necessary governmental approvals, including approval of the PDA Board of Directors, as
may be required in connection with its exercise of the Option; (ii) an initial base term of not more
than 40 years; (iii) an initial base rent of $16,500 per acre per year and subject to annual escalation
as such escalation shall be set forth in the Lease; (iv) payment of a municipal services fee in
accordance with the provisions of RSA 12-G:14; and (v) shall be subject and subordinate to the
Federal Grant Assurances to which PDA is subject.

Except as otherwise specifically agreed in writing by the Parties, if a Lease has not been
executed or if all necessary governmental approvals required to commence construction on the
Option Area, as contemplated by Client, have not been obtained within one hundred eighty (180)
days of the Option Exercise Notice, Client shall have no further rights to the Option Area and the
property shall revert to PDA.

4, Access to Option Area

PDA agrees to permit Client or its representative to undertake such reasonable environmental
and/or geotechnical investigations of the Option Area as Client shall request. in writing to PDA,
provided that such rights may be exercised only: (i) during the time that this Agreement has not
terminated; and (ii) subject to the execution of a right of entry setting forth the specific rights and
obligations of the Parties and the provision of required insurance to protect the interests of PDA.

5. Termination of Option

Notwithstanding any other provision of this Agreement, and in addition to the termination
provisions provided herein, the Option shall terminate automatically on the failure to extend the
Option Period for a successive six (6) month period.



Upon expiration or termination of the Option without exercise of the Option Exercise Notice,
Client shall have no further right to the Option Area and it shall revert to PDA.
EXECUTION

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Lessor and Client have executed this Agreement effective as
of the day of _ , 2017

PEASE DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY

By:
Its: Executive Director

TWO INTERNATIONAL GROUP, LLC

Its:




EXHIBIT A

OPTION AREA



100 NEW HAMPSHIRE AVE SITE PLAN " DESIGNED BY: MRM DATE: 6/1/15  SCALE: 1"=400'

PEASE DEVELCPMENT AUTHORITY 55 INTERNATIONAL DRIVE, PORTSMOUTH, NH 03801



55 Intsrnational Drive, Portsmouth, NH.03801

MOTION

Director Lamson:

The Pease Development Authority Board of Directors hereby
approves of the proposed sign for Wentworth - Douglass Hospital at 73
Corporate Drive; all in accordance with the memorandum of Maria J.
Stowell, P.E., Manager - Engineering, dated January 11, 2017 attached
hereto.

Note: Roll Call Vote required

N:\RESOLVES\SignsWDouglass0117.docx

OO0OO TAKING YOU THERE



2"\
m
>

s
m

'

TERNATI A L 53 International Drive, Portsmouth, NH 03801
DEVELOPMENT '
AUTHORITY
To: David R. Mullen, Executive Director el
From: Maria J. Stowell, P.E., Engineering Manage;;U&NBu
Date: January 11, 2017
Subject: Sign Approval Request for Wentworth-Douglass at 73 Corporate Drive

Wentworth-Douglass is seeking approval to place additional signage on their lot located at 73
Corporate Drive. As shown on the attached drawings, three new signs are being proposed and one
existing sign will be updated. Specifically, Wentworth-Douglass is proposing:

1. the installation of a new sign measuring 1’ - 8.75” x 17° - 9.25” or 30.7 square feet. It will
not be illuminated and will be placed on the west side of the building facing NE Rehab
Hospital.

2. the installation of two new wayfinding signs along their driveway north of NE Rehab
Hospital to help direct customers down the long drive to their facility. Each sign is 5 square
feet for a total of 10 square feet

3. to update their existing free standing sign along Corporate Drive. They are proposing to add
text that describes the services provided at their facility. This additional signage measures
1’-9”x 9 -10” or 17.2 square feet.

There currently exists two other signs on site that total 113.9 square feet. Together with the newly
proposed signage, Wentworth-Douglass will have 171.8 square feet of signage on their lot which is
below the 200 square foot maximum.

As proposed, these signs meets the dimensional requirements and all other conditions of the PDA
Land Use Controls.

At this month’s meeting, please ask the Board to approve the new signage as proposed.

NAENGINEER\Board Memos\2017\Wentworth Douglas Signs.docx

OO0OO TAKING YOU THERE



[aos#:

Manufacture and Install (1) Set.of 15717 Flat Cut Out Lette Colors as described above. OAL of
letters is 17"~ 8 '1/4" Letters are mounted ventered left and right-and the W is centered up and down on
tie fascia, Letters to be stud iiourited with spaceis to miss baltens on fastia.

Joby Name: Wentworth-Douglass Hospital Primary Care atPease - -
Locatlon: 73 Corporate Dr: Portsmouth. NH 03801-2847°

- | Sales Rép: MALT
PM; KC

_ Date: 12/14/16
Y%, © COPYRIGHT 2018 THE BARLO GROUP

T WEAEK CONCEPT 1 TR PRCIPERTY OF TIE BARLO GACUP.ALL PROCKTION N0 CUPLICATION T05HCS ARE RESERYED Y TIE AL GROI
] liwgg;gmg-géiigsgls; .

{"Fis Newe: Wentworth-Douglass Hospital 161201305 J GO 12-19-16
‘B-16-12-01305 _ SHEET: 1.0




ITEM.A. FCOLETTERS OVER ENTERANCE.

SCALE: 1/2'=1'

15"

1 %

179 114"

entworth

- SLICONE OR EPOXY

e

ADHESIVEAS REQUIRED ——+

FASCIA

‘1. “FLUSH LOOK"

SPACERS NEED

§ " | - FORVERTICAL

DETAILS

“————— FCOLETTER

Douglass+

n

— 20 3/4" —

Photus of Existing Breaker : O YesTINo
Elactrical Work by: ClBaro Dlothers

BMS Sig. Prov. By: Location:
Service Type: CJOvethead  ClUnderground )
Sarvice Switch Location: [1On Sign n Pole .

[ sope:

[LED MFG:

tamp

ELVIN

P.S. MFG:

WATTS: PART #

TOTAL FOOTAGE/POWER SUPPLY:

Letter

Joby Name: Wentworth-Douglass Hospital Primary Care at Peass

Location: 73 Comporate Dr- Portsmouth, NH 03801-2847

[N et 5| ©COPYRIGHT 2016 THE BARLD GROUP
gn: © Date: . - |

i
ﬁéwﬁsig_
gr-; 6674

TS DENGE CONCERY 1§ THE PROPERTY OF RIZRAXLO GHOUR, ALL PROGNCTION KD TVPLICATION G ARE NESERVED RY THE LAMO GRS

™m _Iiailsglsgis!!;

Flo e Wenfiorth-Dogiass Hosptal 161201305 4 GO 12-15-16

Dale:

Dale:

‘B-16-12-01305 _ SHEET: 1.1




JOB#:
ITEM B- s/F WAYFINDING REFLECTIVE PANELS
SCALE: 1 1/2"=1"0"

I

o )

WD

e

ar

30

213 1/4"

247

QTY: (2)

SEOPEDENVLIRS .ﬁm <y B .
Manufacture-and Deliver (2) 24"x30". Refiective Batkground S/F Signs with Vinyl copy and fo mouniing
holes. To.be delivered by sales or Crew,

Job Nama: Wenh

rth-Douglass Hospital Primary Care at Paase
Location: 73 Corparate Dr- Portsmouth. NH 03801-2847"

e Neme: Weriworth-Dougiass Hospital 161201305 J G0 121816
‘B-16-12-01305 ‘SHEET: 2.0




JOB#:

ITEM C. s/FALUM PANELS W/ GRAPHICS
SCALE: 4"=1-0"

‘‘‘‘‘‘

WALKAIN | pRIMARY | SPECIALTY
PROMPT | 1Mwnwz

Walk-In

- [Manufacture and Install (2) 21"118" White BEA Faca Overlays with VHB and Siicone i u%__a vinyl
18" ey

§> —lmAl— N PRIMARY . o~ . Job Name: Wonworth-Douglass Hospital Primary Care at Pease
PROMPT - ¥ , 4 SPECIALTY Lol T Coporsta D Porsnauh N 03801247

'CARE 'CARE | @ &LAB

QTY: (2)

21

| THESEIGH CORCERT I THE PAOPERTY OF THE DARLY GRODPALL PA20UCTION AND DILICATYON RESTS AXE RESERVED BY THEBAMO CHO
igs;igﬁi-aﬂ_siiiss-!;

w @. e B [y [
Fe Name: Wentworth-Douglass Hospital 161201305 J-CO 12-18-16
‘B-16-12-01305 SHEET, 2.0




INTERNATI 55 International Drive, Portsimouth, NH 03801
EVELOPMENT
AUTHORITY
MEMORANDUM
TO: Pease Development Authority Board of Directors
FROM: David R. Mullen, Executive Director <gér_—
RE: Contract Reports
DATE: January 19, 2017

**********#*******************************************************************

In accordance with Article 3.9.1.1 of the PDA Bylaws, I am pleased to report the following:

1. Project Name: Alternative Sales
PDA Obligation $3,676.47
Board Authority: Director Allard
Summary: For the purchase and installation of an LP Griddle and an LP
Charbroiler in the Golf Course Clubhouse kitchen.

In accordance with the “Delegation to Executive Director: Consent, Approval and Execution of
Documents and Expenditures for Emergency Repairs”, PDA entered into the following contract:

1. Project Name: Eckhardt & Johnson, Inc.
PDA Obligation $22,150
Board Authority: Vice-Chairman Loughlin
Summary: For emergency replacement of the HVAC system at the PSM
Terminal by Eckhardt & Johnson, Inc., PDA’s on-call HVAC

maintenance provider.

P:\BOARDMTG\Contractrpt0117.docx

OO0O0OO TAKING YOU THERE



MEMORANDUM

To: David R. Mullen, Executive Director

From: Scott DeVito, PGA General Manager

Date: December 21, 2016

Subject: Request to purchase Countertop LP Griddle and a Countertop LP Charbroiler

This is a request to purchase a Countertop LP Griddle and a Countertop LP Charbroiler from
Alternative Sales 135 Route 125, Kingston NH 03848. Total cost is $3,676.47 for the two units
installed, the old units removed, and a $200.00 trade in credit which will be used during invoicing.
The only lower option for each unit are online websites. We would like to purchase from Alternative
sales because they will be removing the old units, installing new units LP ready, and if there are any
warranty issues they are a local company that would be able to respond more efficiently.

Thank you for your consideration.



o ) . Quote
) Alternative Sales o

% ¥ RESTAURANT EQLIPMENT AND DESIGN % & % '

Bill To :: Ship To:: From:
Grill 28 Grill 28 Alternative Sales
Kevin Harrington 200 Grafton Road Philip Basiliere
200 Grafton Road Portsmouth, NH 03801 135 Route 125
Portsmouth, NH 03801 kharrington64@comcast.net Kingston, NH 03848
603-433-1331 (Contact) (603)642-3873
kharrington64@comcast.net : pbasiliere@alternativesales.net
Job Reference Number: 2151

Item Qty Description Sell Sell Tatal
Tt s P T I 7| DA R e R W (e S o e S et Wy W e e e T e e Y S o |
4 1lea COUNTERTOP GRIDDLE $2,499.13 $2,499.13

Star Model No. 648TF

(QUICK-SHIP) Star-Max® Heavy Duty Griddle, gas, countertop, 48" W x
21" D cooking surface, 1" thick steel griddle plate, modulating

" thermostat every 12", heavy duty knobs, wrap-around stainless steel
splash guard, grease trough & stainless steel drawer, welded steel
frame with stainless steel front, 4" legs, 113,200.BTU, cULus, UL EPH,
(ships Natural gas includes LP conversion kit)

lea 2year parts & |labor warranty, standard

8 1ea CHARBROILER $977.34 $977.34
Star Model No. 6124RCBF
(QUICK-SHIP) Star-Max® Charbroiler, gas, countertop, 24" W, cast iron
40,000 BTU burners with adjustable manual controls every 12", heavy
stainless steel radiants, welded steel frame with stainless steel top
and front, aluminized steel sides, cast iron broiling grates, stainless
steel water pan, splash guard & grease trough, 4" legs, 80,000 BTU,
cULus, UL EPH (ships Natural gas includes LP converstion kit)
lea 2 year parts & labor warranty, standard
5 lea FREIGHT $200.00 $200.00
ALTERNATIVE SALES Model No. FREIGHT
FOB Charge(s) of shipping product to/from locations incurred by
Alternative Sales to provide the quoted product.

6 lea DELIVERY . $200.00 $200.00
ALTERNATIVE SALES Model No. DELIVERY
Delivery & Set in Place. Standard Ground level delivery to be done
during business hours Monday through Friday from 8:00 AM to 5:00 PM
by non-union personnel. Based on site conditions, products will be set
in place and made ready for mechanical connections by others. Final
adjustments and leveling to be performed by others. Packing
materials and trash to be removed. Deliveries that involve stairs,
obstacles that do not provide reasonable access or require elevation
must be disclosed prior to the delivery or additional charges may be
applied at time of delivery.
1 lea $-200.00 $-200.00

ALTERNATIVE SALES Model No. TRADE IN ALLOWAN
TRADE IN ALLOWANCE for your char grill and griddle

Initial:

- - - -



Alternative Sales 11/22/2016

Total ' $3,676.47

Prices Good Until: 12/18/2016

Acceptance: o Date:
Printed Name:

Initial;

- MNeea ™ =B



PROJECT ESTIMATE
DATE: 01/06/2017

W

QUOTE ID: 707 | CONTACT: Dane Kirkwood
AR CUSTOMER:  PEADEV Ph:(603) 433-6088
SERVICE Pease Terminal Building Fax:(603)-427-0433
LOCATION: DATE SUBMITTED: 01/06/2017
STREET: 42 Airline Ave, Pease Airline Terminal PREPARED BY: - Dan Morin

CITY: Portsmouth, NH

DESCRIPTION: Replace Small Snyder General Unit on Terminal Bldg

SCOPE OF WORK: Remove old Snyder Electric unit and replace with either a Trane or Lennox unit depending on customer choice. This-
price includes crane, electrical work and start up.

N T S e e
Labor Regular Time
RTU and Curb Adapter
Recovery and disposal
Crane - '
Electrical
Controls
Total $22,150.00
SIGNATURE
O\ @ Ml £ eskin Popectn
PRINT NAME
22/ 77
/ [4
DATE

EXCLUED UNLESS SPECIFIED IN THIS SCOPE OF WORK:

Overtime Labor ~ Structural work ~ Carpentry work ~ Roof work ~ Power and control wiring ~ Asbestos abatement ~ Drop ceiling work ~ Any

scope Lv;:rinot listed in this proposal All existing bUIIdIng, plumbing, fire, energy, seismlc, and etc. crﬁ}s}fﬂons ﬂj ’7 [\ Zvork.
Seacled )
FL\ A& (CVALA /’ S HU A e temane

PAYMENT TERMS:



MOTION

Director Allard:

In accordance with the recommendation of the Pease Golf
Committee, the Pease Development Authority Board of Directors hereby
approves of and authorizes the Executive Director to enter into a contract
with Ricci Lumber of Portsmouth, NH in a total amount not to exceed
$28,217.75 (including a 10% contingency), for renovations to the Golf
Course Clubhouse dining room; all in accordance with the memorandum
from Scott D. DeVito, PGA General Manager, dated January 3, 2017
attached hereto.

In accordance with the provisions of RSA 12-G:8 VIil, the Board
justifies the waiver of the RFP requirement based on the following

reasons:
1. Ricci Lumber is a vendor selected by the State of New Hampshire in

accordance with its procurement regulations.

Note: This motion requires 5 affirmative votes.

N:\RESOLVES\Ricci0117.docx

O00OO TAKING YOU THERE

55 international Drive, Portsmouth, NH 03801



To: David R. Mullen, Executive Director «p——
From: Scott DeVito, PGA General Manager

Date: January 3, 2017

Subject: Clubhouse Equipment

This memo is a request to have Ricci Lumber, 105 Bartlett Street, Portsmouth, NH 03801 complete
work on the items highlighted below in the amount not to exceed $28,217.75. The requested amount
will cover the proposed $25,652.50 from Ricci Lumber and a 10% contingence.

The pricing for the proposed items presented at the December board meeting came in under budget
by $9,499.95. With this cost savings would request to add the construction of the banquette seating
to be approved as a change to the original request. The full dining room changes are scheduled to be
done in three phases. Adding the additional item will help us to better manage the long term costs.

Requesting the waiving of RFP because Ricci Lumber is an approved vendor of the state of New
Hampshire. The money has been scheduled in the FY2017 golf course capital under clubhouse

equipment.

Item - | Estimated Cost Proposed Cost
Mﬁiml T Py A e R— -
Constriition Fees
Function Room Carpet Mats
Griddle/Broiler $3,676.47
Bar Glass Washer $375.00

| Total $48,995 $31,700.91
Balance $17,294.09
Bangquette Seating $9,500
Function Room Carpet Mats | $7,000
Total $16,500

The total expenses for these various items will not exceed the proposed $50,000 budgeted in the
FY2017 Golf Course CIP schedule.

Thank you for your consideration in this matter.



RO o 22 on T, K

105 Bartiet Sreet Portsmouth, NIl WercoImbercom

(603)436-7480
Ricci Lumber Proposal

We are pleased to provide you with the following proposal for your project. Please thoroughly review below confirm
that we have included the materials and products that your project requires. If you have any questions or concerns, please
feel free to contact us. We are happy to clarify matters that relate to this proposal.

Customer: Pease Development Authority Job: Grill 28
Maintenance Department
7 Lee Street

Selesi ipal BREDVRBAT. < 7 Epires 01RO

BiSehaEe

Materialssand-tabor
The following is a Erogosal to remove, furnish and install the foIIowing products per the scope of work noted.
Description of work Labor Materials
1) Remove existing carpet tile throughout the dining room .
and properly dispose of it. $1,764.00 $0
2) Prepare floors to receive Shaw Vinyl Flooring and Carpet Tile $1,101.00 $228.00

3) Furnish and install aprox. 840 sqft of Shaw 2x2 Carpet Tile #5T134 Onyx
33505 and aprox. 1400 sqft of Quiet Vinyl Plank #0186V Timber 00750 .
$5,235.00 $15,847.00

4) Install Schiuter Strip between carpet tile and vinyl plank.

(need spec's on this item — this is laboronly) - $141.00 $0 .
5) Furnish and install aprox. 180 If of 4" vinyl cove base to maich ‘ $276.00 $339.00
6) Furnish and install Maitre'd Table with Countertop $1,412.00 |} $3,837.00

Paint and Electrical by others. Estimate does not include any unforeseen repair or replacement of substrate materials
that the above products would be installed on or over. These are considered extras and would be reviewed with you prior
to proceeding.

One year warranty on labor. Manufacturer's warranty on products-installed.

Terms: Deposit of $10,000 upon acceptance with balance on completion.

Remarks: All work to be done in a workmanlike manner. All workers are fully insured. We estimate the job will take 4-5
days to complete. Would like to begin work on a Sunday evening and be done for opening Friday morning.

Material Total $20,251.00
Labor Total $ 9929.00
Proposal Total $30,180.00
Less NH State Discount 15% -4.527.00
Final Proposal Total $25,653.00
We accept the terms of this proposal and wish to proceed with the work as described:
X: Printed Name Date:

Copyright 2017 Ricci Supply Company Inc.
This proposal is proprietary and may not be distributed without the express written consent of Ricci Supply management. Any
dissemination or reproduction of these or any documents created by our company to any other parties not directly affiliated with
construction of the project may result in legal action for recovery of our efforts in producing this proposal.

Fax (603)436-2194 www riccilumber.com Email: ehayes@riccilumber.com




55 International Drive, Portsmouth, NH 03801

MOTION

Director Preston:

In accordance with the recommendation of the Pease Golf
Committee, the Pease Development Authority Board of Directors hereby
approves of and authorizes the Pease Golf Course to:

a) Enter into a contract with Country Club Enterprises of
Wareham, MA, in the amount of $28,350 for a term of five (5)
years (including an option to terminate the Contract at the end
of four (4) years at the sole discretion of the PDA) effective
March 1, 2017 for the leasing of a GPS Car Fleet Management
system and Golfer Interface Technology software; and

b) implement rate increase for players’ use of the Golf Cars on
the Blue Course effective March 1, 2017,

all in accordance with the memorandum from Scott DeVito, PGA General
Manager dated January 6, 2017 attached hereto.

N:\RESOLVES\GolfGPSFees0117.docx

O00OO TAKING YOU THERE



MEMORANDUM

To: David R. Mullen, Executive Director ’p/"'/

From: Scott DeVito, PGA General Manager

Date: January 6, 2017

Subject: Golf Car Fleet Management GPS & Golfer Interface GPS Lease

This memo is a request to approve a 5 year lease, with the option to opt out after 4 years, for GPS
Golf Car Fleet Management and Golfer Interface Technology from Country Club Enterprises, 2D
Express Drive, Wareham, MA 02571 in the amount of $28,350 annually.

Second to increase the 9 hole daily fee rate $3 when playing the 9 hole Blue Course. Pease has been
offering the 9 hole daily rate to play the Blue Course and including the golf car at no cost for a
number of years. The product has been much improved since beginning this program. The increase
will be tracked as golf car revenue to offset the additional annual GPS lease cost, while still being one
of the best values on the Seacoast for 9 holes of golf with a riding car.

Three companies submitted separate bids for Golf Car Fleet Management GPS technology and Golfer
Interface GPS technology. The charts below show annual pricing for the base technology of the Fleet
Management software, the additional Golfer Interface software, and the total for both platforms.

Country Club Enterprises was low bidder for the 90 car fleet, using their GPS technology would
allow us to work with a single vendor for both products. CCE would be able to install the GPS
equipment at the factory when building the fleet, which would ensure proper installation. The CCE
GPS system was introduced in 2008 and continues to grow in market share, as compared to the
Yamaha product that was launched in spring of 2016. Product comparisons shows CCE’s software
delivers more options in both the base Fleet Management and the Golfer Interface platforms. The
differences include a larger LCD screen, tournament hole sponsor and advertising option, blind spot
detection for players to see the groups on the course in front of them, remote access to diagnose golf
car issues, touch screen distance finder, and ability to place food & beverage order. Country Club
Enterprises offers all new customers a two-month free trial period, resulting in a cost savings of
$9,450 the first year of the lease. '



Base Software - Fleet Management

Company Annual Cost
Country Club Enterprises $14,310
Yamaha Golf $15,660
Five Star Golf Cars $26,460
Additional Software - Golfer Interface

Company Annual Cost
Country Club Enterprises $14,040
Yamaha Golf $12,420
Five Star Golf Cars $8,100

Both Base & Golfer Interface Software |
Company Annual Cost
Country Club Enterprises $28,350
Yamaha Golf $28,080
Five Star Golf Cars - $34,560

Please see the attached slide to review additional annual revenue generated, and projected return over
the five year lease period.

Providing GPS to our customers will help Péase continue to build the brand “The Ultimate Golf
Venue on the Seacoast”. The new program will create excitement for the facility, and help us to
attract new daily customers, grow both golf tournament and group numbers, and assist in maintaining
our current base of players. We have been very fortunate with the weather and the long seasons the
last two years. Having this new technology will aid us in filling underutilized tee times throughout
the year, and would be another tool to help us maintain the current annual rounds in years we have
less play days available.

Thank you for your consideration in this matter.



Cons

Increase the operating budget

Working through new staffing guidelines
Rate increase $3 per daily fee Blue Course
Trouble shooting when system goes down

Pros

More efficient utilization of fleet

Tool to assist in using less electricity

Less money spent on course supplies of rope, stakes and signs

Better manage course damage

Increase safety with decreased speed zones in parking lot, and other high traffic areas

Will never be more affordable

Help to attract new daily fee customers

Help to attract new outing rounds

Help to attract new groups

With rate increase on Blue Course offer remains as one of the lowest 9 holes with a cart offers when
comparing to other Seacoast area course.

Better way to advertise for the course

Opportunity to charge for advertising

Added revenue through the food & beverage platform

Help to retain base of customers

Gives the facility broader appeal as a destination when marketing to Lakes Region, North Shore,
Boston & Portland areas

Help us fill tee times any time we are open



36 Airline Ave. Portsmouth, NH 03801
$03.433.6536

MANAGEMENT

Memorang

To:  Andrew Pomeroy, Airpert Operations Manager

From: Sandra McDonough, Airport Operations Specialist DM
Date: 1/11/2017

Subj: Noise Report for December 2016

The Portsmouth International Airport received a total of 19 inquiries in December 2016,
15 rotor and 4 fixed wing.

The 15 rotor wing inquiries originated from 2 Portsmouth residents. One resident
inquired 13 times. All of the rotor wing inquiries pertained to Seacoast Helicopters.
Three of the four fixed-wing aircraft inquiries were refated to based military aircraft
practicing touch and go’s and the last fixed wing inquiry is unknown. The three calis
about the KC€135s based here at the NHANG were from a Greenland resident and camé
in ‘within a 12 minute period.

Attachied is a copy of the Noise Report for December 2016.

OCO0O TAKING YOU THERE



PDA Noise Control Log For the Period: 12/1/16 to 12/31/16
Call Date Time Caller ID Location . Aircrafi ZE,.._E“ﬂ
_
i 12/2/2016  14:33 68 Based Rd44 Emailed: NOISE COMPLAINT -
Milier Avenue N219CR directly over my house, alt:
Portsmouth, NH 03801- 850
2 12/3/2016 8:55 178 Unknown unknown A plane coming from Pease, coming
Bayview dangerously close to oy property.
X Clearly targeting it. Fargeting
Newmarket, NH 03857- everyene who lives here, works here
and everyone who has property here.
This is an extremely dangerous
condition and part of the purpose of
this call is for when tlie foreseeable
catastropbe happens those people
responsible for presenting it will-be
held accountable. :
3 12/4/2016  13:21 68 Based R44 Emailed: NOIISE COMPLAINT -
Mitler Avenue N219CR directly over my house, alt.
Portsmouth, NH 03801- 625
4 12/4/2016 - 13:27 68 Based R4 Emailed: NOISE 002!.32% -
Miller Avenue N219CR directly over my house again,
Portsmonth. NEL 03801~ alt. 450" - twice in 6 minutes!
5 . 12/4/2016  13:43 68 Based Rd4 Emaited: NOISE COMPLAINT -
Mifier Avenue N219CR directly over my house again,
Portsmouth, NH 03801- S
6 12/4/2016 wun.%. 68 Based Rd4 " Emailed: NOISE COMPLAINT -
Miller Avenue N219CR directly over my house again,
ait, 425 f¢! That makes 4 timies in 26-
Portsmouth, NH 03801- minutes!
Monday, January 09; 2017

Follow Up
Individugl has indicated in-the past

that & call back is unnecessary.

Caller has heen contacted in the past
about her concerns. .

individual has indicated in the past
that a call back is unnecessary.

Individual has indicated in the past
that a-call baek is unnecessary.

Iadividual has indicated in the past
that a call back is unsecessary.

McDonough senit-an email asking for

# retorn call and also left a voice
message. Caller sent McBonough
pictures of different flight tracks of

-aireraft 219 CR. Wt is-unclear how

accurate the information is.

Page | of &



PDA Noise Control Log

Call: Date - Time

7 12022016 21:32

8 121272036 20:20

9 12/12/2016  21:26

10 1216/2016  17:54 -

Wednesdgy, January F1, 2017

Portsraouth, NH 03801-

For the Period:

Caller ID Location
209 Based
Palm Drive
Greenland, NH 03840
209 Based

~ Paim Drive
Greenland, NH 03840
209 Based
Palm Drive
Greenland, NH 03840
68 Based
Miller Avenue

12/1/16

Aircraft

2 KCi35s

2 KC135s

2 KC135s

R4

12/31/16

Narratives

Follow Up

Emailed: again. This is. happening
every 3 mins. I'm bringing this to
town selectman's meeting.. this is
ridiculous. )

Emailed:. again, low level approaches,
continually after 8pm. This has got to
stop please,

Emailed: Again, The low approaches
keep happening later and later in the
evening, this hasgot te stop.

Emailed: NOISE COMPLAINT -
N219CR directly over my house,
altitnde 525 feet,

M¢Donough discussed the voluntary

noise procedures at Portsmouth
International Alrport which
indicates aircraft that are based here
at Portsmouth are allowed to train
antil 13:00 PM. Residents from the
surrounding area were involved with
developing these procedures. The
Greenland vesident.is going to hiis
town selectman’s meeting to see if
they ean stop the-aircraft from flying
after 8:00 PM.

MeDenough discussed the-voluntary
noise procedures at Portsmouth
Internationsl Airport which
indicates aircraft that are based here
at‘Portsmouth are.allowed to train
entil 11:00 PM. Residents from the
surrounding area wereinvolved with-
developing these procedures, The
Greenland vesident is going to his
town selectman's meeting fo see if
they can stop the aircraft from flying
after 8:00 PM.. .

McDonough discussed the voluntary
nofse procedures at Portsmouth
International Airport which

‘indicates aircraft that are based here

at Portsmouth are aliowed to train
until 11:00 PM. Residents from the
surrounding area were invelved with
deviloping these procedures. The
Greenland resident.is going to his
town selectman's meeting to see if
they cap stop the aircraft from:flying
after 8:00 PM.

Individual has indicated in the past
thata call-back is unxiecessary..

Page 2 of 4



PDA Noise Control Log

Call Date Time

11 122012016 “14:07
12 12R012016 14:42

13 12/20/2016 14:55

14 127202016 1445

15 122012016  11:47

16 1272712016  10:45

Monday, January 89,2017

Caller 1D

68

Milier Avenue
Portsmouth, NH 0380%-

68

Miller Avenug - _
Portsmouth, NH (3801-

155

Ruth. Street
Portsmouth, NH 03801-

155
Ruth Street
Portsmouth, NH 03801-

68

Miller Avenue
Portsmouth, NH 03801-
68

Em:n...bﬁaﬁ
—..walmEo.:nr NH 03801-

NE——

For the Period:  12/1/16 to  12/31/16
Location Aireraft Narratives Follow. Up
NS ’ . e

Based R44 Emailed: NOISE . COMPLAINT - Individual has indicated in the past
N2I9CR directly over my house, ‘that a call back is unnecessary.
EXTREMELY LOW - 200" alt.
confirined.

Based R44 Emailed: NOISE COMPLAINT -~ Endividual has indicated in-the past
N219CR directly over my house again, that 2 call back is unnecessary.

350" confirmed altitude.

Based Robinson helicopter I calling to complain about the noise McDonough speke with the calier on
from the liitle red tour helicopter. He  12/20.about bis concerns with.the
has miade several passes over our aircraf ftying so low. McDonough
house today. When I tracked him en  spoke to Bruce Cultrera about the
Flight Radar 24 it indicated that he is  website that indicates he is flying
flying at 350-ft. when he goes over our lower than he states. He indicated
house. So I thought he was supposed  they are having issues with'the
to fly at 560.ft. The lower altitude device that seads out his altitude to
would explain why it is so loud right other devices and are currently
now. So could you please look inte it  trying to reselve it with the company
and Tind out why he-is flying at-such.a  that makes it. McDowough also
low altitade. 1 couldn't get the spoke with the air traffic control
numbers off of it but it's the little red  manager who indicated the air
tour-helicopter. It hias been a long traffic confroliers have mot witnessed
time since we have complained -any flying over the city less than 700
because it has beén tolerable but now  fh.in the downtown area.
that he's flying at the lower altitodes
it's getting to be a psinin the butt
agsin. 8o if you could look into it
would be appreciated.

Based Robinson helicopter Entailed: The:red tour helicopter made Same as above,
several passes over a residential area
at an aftitude or 350 feet when 500 is
requiced. Etracked him on the app
flightradar24 which tells you-all the
fligli¢ dats. - .

Based: Robinson helicopter Emailed: NOISE COMPLAINT - Red  Individual has indicated in the past
‘helicopter directly over my house, that a call back is unnecessary.
EXTREMELY LOW -200'?

Based R44 Emailed; NOISE COMPLAINT - Individual bas indicated-in the past

N219CR directly over my house,
Always exactly the same route,

that 3 call back-is unnecessary.

Page.3 of 4



PDA Noise Control Log

Call Date Time

S e ——

17 12/28/2016 12:02

18 1272872016 11:42

19 12/28/2016 11:54

Menday, January-09, 2017

Miiler Avenue
Portsmouth, NH 03801-

1271716 o

Aireraft

12/31/16

Narratives

Follow Up

For the Period:
Caller ID Location
68 ‘Based
‘Mitler Avenue
%o..ﬁici—r.zﬁ 03801-
68 : Based
‘Miiller Avenue
Portsmonth, NH 03801-
68 Based

R44

Rd4

R44

Emailed: NOISE COMPLAINT -
N219CR directly over my house again,

altitude 850°. Always exactly the same

route. Lueky us.

Emailed: NOISE COMPLAINT -
N219CR directly over niy house,
altitude 850'. Very LOUD.

Emailed: NOISE COMPLAINT -
N219CR again.

Individual has indicated in the past
that a.cafl back is unmecessary.

Individual has indicated in the.past
that a call back is unnecessary.

Individust has indicated in the past
that a call back is unnecessary.

Page 4.0f 4



55 International Drive, Porismouth, NH 03801

MOTION

Director Lamson:

The Pease Development Authority Board of Directors hereby
authorizes the Executive Director to accept and bind Long Term Disability
Insurance and Life and Accidental Death and Dismemberment Insurance
effective March 1, 2017 through February 28, 2019 for the continued
benefit of the employees of Pease Development Authority as proposed by
the Unum Life Insurance Company of America in the projected amount of
$25,950 per year; all otherwise in accordance with the memorandum of
Irving Canner, PDA Director of Finance, dated January 12, 2017 attached

hereto.

Note: Roll Call vote required.

NARESOLVES\Disabilitylns0117.doex

O0O0OO TAKING YOU THERE



55 Intarnational Drive, Portsmouth, NH 03801

INTERNATION
DEVELOPMENT
AUTHORITY
Date January 12, 2017
To: David Mullen- Executive Director < ¥
From: Irv Canner- Director of Finance
Subject: Insurance Renewal- Life and Accidental Death and

Dismemberment and Long Term Disability

Our current insurance coverages for employee 1) Life Insurance and Accidental Death
and Dismemberment (LADD) and 2) Long Term Disability (LTD), as provided through
Hartford Financial Services Group (the Hartford), are scheduled to mature as of February
28,2017.

Working with our insurance broker (Davis & Towle) bids were solicited and based on the
following analysis, it is requested that the Pease Development Board of Directors be
presented this information at their January 19, 2017 meeting in order to secure their
approval allowing the PDA to enter into a two-year fixed rate agreement through
February 28, 2019, with the Unum Life Insurance Company of America (the Unum) for
both LADD and LTD coverage.

The final bid results provided the following annual cost comparisons providing an
estimate savings of 3.6% between the two bids:

Long Term Life and Accidental Total
Disability Dismemberment Annual
Provider Insurance (LTD) (LADD) Cost
Hartford $ 15,582 $ 11,325 $ 26,907
Unum 15,582 10,368 25,950
Cost Difference $ - $ (957) S (957)

The final bid results were based on current employee salaries of approximately
$3,323,000 which excludes classified employees. Submitted cost information were
detailed on the following billing rate structure:

Provider / Long Term Life and Accidental
AM Best Disability Dismemberment
“Rating Insurance (LTD) / (LADD) /
$100 $1,000
i Rartford (A) $ 0.490 S 0.284
Unum (A) 0.490 0.260
Rate Difference S - S (0.024)
OO0OOQOO TAKING YOU THERE



Key coverage highlights remain consistent to what we have provided our employees

during the past several years including:

Long Term Disability
Insurance

Life and Accidental Death and
Dismemberment

100% PDA Sponsored

100% PDA Sponsored

Monthly Benefit % of Earnings= 60%

Coverage is Equal to 1 X Annual earnings

Maximum Monthly Benefit is $5,000

Maximum Benefit is $130,000

Elimination Period of 60 Days + Social
Security Integration .

Benefit Reduction Formula:
65% at Age 65
50% at Age 70

Four additional insurance providers were solicited, including Boston Mutual, Lincoln
Financial, Mutual of Omiaha and Standard Life but did not respond as they could not
match the plan design specific to the desired elimination period of 60 days associated
with the long term disability coverage. From an overall industry perspective, a 90 day
elimination period is a typical plan design component.

At your convenience, | would be pleased to address any questions and or the need for
supplemental information that you might have




~ 55 Intarnational Drive, Porismouth, NH 03801

MOTION

Director Allard:

" The Pease Development Authority Board of Directors authorizes the
Executive Director to expend funds in the total amount of $819.00 for
legal services rendered to the Pease Development Authority by:

1.  Kutak Rock LLP
Through November 30, 2016 $ 819.00*

*Note: The City of Portsmouth will pay the remaining balance.

Note: Roll Call Vote required

N:\RESOLVES\Legal Services0117.docx

O00OO TAKING YOU THERE



ANALYSIS - LEGAL FEES
ENVIRONMENTAL MATTERS

Lead Counsel:

Lynn Preston

Lead Counsel; Barry Steinberg

Lonservation

— Conservation

Law Fiscal Year Law Fiscal Year
DATE Haven Well Foundation Total Haven Well Hangar 227| Foundation Total
FY 17 $42,739.76 $42,739.76 $7,005.93| | $6,570.00 $47,449.89 $61,025.82
FY 16 $14,472.30 $14,472.30
FY 15 $2,400.17 $2,400.17
FY 14 $14,604.30 $14,604.30
Cumulative Total $17,004.47 $42,739.76 $69,744.23 $21,478.23] | $6,570.00 $47,449.89 $75,498.12

Through Nov. 2016




DEC 2 0 2016

KUTAK ROCK LLP ATLANTA

CHICAGO
DENVER
. SUITE 800 FAYETTEVILLE
1625 EYE STREET, NW IRVINE

KANSAS CITY

WASHINGTON, DC 20006-4061 - LITTLE RocK

. 202-828-2400 - ' LoS ANGELES
FAGSIMILE 202-828-2488 :Lt::’;;‘:-:w
www.kutakrock.com OMAHA
PHILADELPHIA
RICHMOND
ROGERS .
B : SCOTTSDALE
BARRY P, STEINBERG ] SPOKANE
barry.steinberg@kutakrock.com WIGHITA
{202) 828-2316 ) . J
December 14, 2016
Suzanne M., Woodland
Deputy City Attorney
City of Portsmouth
1 Junkins Avenue
Portsmouth, NH 03801
Lynn Hinchee
Pease Development Authority
55 International Drive '
Portsmouth, NH 03801
Re:  General
TOTALFORSERVICES RENDERED, - i © $2,340,00
TOTAL CURRENT AMOUNTDUE" - L $2340.00

e e P S S S S ——



55 International Drive, Portsmouth, NH 03801

MOTION

Director Loughlin:

WHEREAS, RSA ch. 12-G vests the management of the Pease
Development Authority (“Authority”) in its Board of Directors;

WHEREAS, the Authority has duQ/ enacted By-Laws in accordance
with the provisions of NH RSA 12-G:8, XIX; and

WHEREAS, the By-Laws provide that the Executive Director shall
have all the authority of the Chairman with respect to the signing of
contracts, leases, releases, bonds, notes and other instruments ‘and
documents approved by the Authority; and '

WHEREAS, the Authority deems it necessary to the management and
regulation of its affairs to delegate to the Executive Director the authority
to consent to, approve and pay legal bills up to $50,000 when no regular
meeting of the Board is scheduled within 21 days.

NOW, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Authority does hereby delegate to
the Executive Director the authority to consent to, approve and pay legal
bills in accordance with the terms and conditions of the “Limited
Delegation to Executive Director; Consent, Approval, and Expenditure of
Fufn s for Legal Services” attached hereto and incorporated herein by
reference.

N:\RESOLVES\Delegation of Duties-Legal0117.docx

O00O0O TAKING YOU THERE



Limited Delegation to Executive Director:

Consent, Approval and Exnenditure of Funds for Legal Services

Summary:

Transaction:

Amount:
Execution Document:

Authority to Execute:

Conditions:

Reporting Requirements:

ADOPTED:

This delegation covers the consent, approval and payment of fees
for Legal Services by the Executive Director and the authority of
the Executive Ditrector to correct errors in connection with the
allocation of fees in situations where representation is shared by
PDA and a third party. This delegation is intended to grant
limited authority to the Executive Director to make payments for
legal fees at times when the PDA Board of Directors has no regular
meeting scheduled and the legal services provided are specifically
related to ongoing litigation, administrative orders or regulatory
matters. The Board has delegated authority to the Executive
Director, subject to concurrence by one member of the Legal Bill
Review Committee of the PDA Board of Directors, to consent to,
approve and execute the required documentation and to expend
funds up to $50,000. This authorization is subject to the conditions
set forth below being satisfied.

Consent, approval, and execution of required documents and
expenditure of funds for the payment of fees for legal services.

Up to $50,000 per entity
None.

Executive Director with review and approval of General Counsel
and with concurrence of one member of the Legal Bill Review
Committee of the PDA Board of Directors

The request for payment of fees for legal services subject to this
delegation of authority shall not be consented to, approved, or the
expenditure made unless all of the following conditions are
satisfied:

1. The legal services provided are specifically related to ongoing
litigation, administrative orders or regulatory matters.

2. The PDA Board of Directors has no regularly scheduled
meeting within 21 days of the invoice date.

3. The conditions set forth above do not apply to corrections of
errors in the allocations of fees shared by PDA and a third

party.

Any legal bill authorized to be paid and any funds expended
pursuant to this delegation shall be reported to the Board at its next
regular meeting.

PADELEGATIONS\Legal Bills.docx



i

COPRY

PEASE DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY
PORT COMMITTEE MEETING

FRIDAY, JANUARY 06,2017 @ 8:00 A.M.

CALL TO ORDER (Loughlin)

APPROVE MINUTES OF THE OCTOBER 06, 2016 MEETING*
MOTION FOR NON-PUBLIC SESSION* (Torr)

RETURN TO PUBLIC SESSION

VOTE OF CONFIDENTIALITY* (Torr)

ADJOURNMENT



Y

Qo

T
>
N
“zl2m

INTERNATION 55 International Brive, Portsmouth, NH 03801
EVELOPME
AUTHORIT
MEMORANDUM
To: Pease Development Authority Board of Directors
From: David R. Mullen, Executive Director ggé
Date: January 19, 2017
Re: Commercial Mooring Permit Transfer

Tn accordance with the “Delegation to Executive Director: Consent, Approval and
Execution of Mooring Permit Transfers” adopted by the Board on January 24, 2002, I am pleased.
to report that PDA has approved of commercial mooring permit transfer for the following permit:

Date of
Permit Business Approval
Seabrook Harbor No. 3127 Commercial Fishing 12/12/16
Transferor: George Littlefield
Transferee: Joshua Crooks

The Delegation to Executive Director: Consent, Approval and Execution of Mooring
Permit Transfers provides that:

"A Mooring Permit Transfer request submitted to this delegation of authority shall not be.
consented to, approved or executed unless all of the following conditions are met:

1. In accordance with NH Administrative Rule Por 301.08 (superseded by
Pda 508.01 (2) - (d)), a commercial boat owner must submit to the

Division documented proof of the commercial nature of the business being
sold.

These conditions have been met.

P:\PortAuthority\Moorings\Transfers\BoardMemos\Boardmem0117.docx

OO0OO TAKING YOU THERE



g

>
PEASE

INTERNATIONAL 555 Market Street, Suite 1 Portsmouth, NH 83801
PORTS AND HARBORS '

L.

TO: David Mullen, Executive Director, PDA
FROM:  Geno J. Marconi, Director, DPH
DATE: December 11, 2016

RE: Commercial Mooring Transfer

The Pease Development Authority, Division of Ports and Harbors has received a request
for the transfer of a commercial mooring, permit #3127, from George Littlefield to
Joshua Crooks.

I'have reviewed the attached paperwork and concur with the local Harbormaster and
Chief Harbormaster that the request meets all the requirements of the PDA-DPH Code of
Administrative Rules regarding commercial mooring transfers, Therefore, I am
requesting approval of the transfer.

If you have any questions or need further information, please let me know.




\

PEASE

INTERNATIONAL 555 Market Street, Suite 1 Portsmouth, NH 03801

PORTS AND HARBORS
December 12, 2016

George Littlefield
10 Lamprey Road
Kensington, NH 03833

RE: Request to Transfer Commercial Moorings _
Commercial Mooring No. 3127, Seabrook Harbor, New Hampshire

Dear Mr. Littlefield;

Please be advised that Pease Development Authority - Division of Ports and Harbors has
-approved of your request to transfer the above referenced commercial mooring to Joshua Crooks, of
77 Locust Street in South Hampton, NH in connection with the sale of your commercial ﬁshmg

business.

You and Joshua Crooks have represented that Joshua Crooks intends to use the mooring for
commercial fishing related purposes. Please be advised that the approval to transfer the mooring is
subject to the condition that Joshua Crooks will continue to use the mooring for commercial fishing

related purposes.

In accordance with the administrative rules which govern the transfer of commercial
moorings; “If the holder of a commercial use mooring permit ceases operation of the commercial
entity for which the permit was issued, the permit shall lapse.” See enclosed copy of Pda 508.01(d).
By copy of this letter, Randell Collins is being put on notice of this provision.

Thank you for your attention to this matter,

David R. Mullen
Executive Director

Enclosure

cc: Geno Marconi, Director PDA-DPH
Joshua Crooks
PDA Legal Dept.

DOy TAKINGE YOU THERE



PART Pda 508 TRANSFER OF MOORING PERMITS

Pda 508.01 Transfer of Commercial Use Mooring Petmits.

(a) A commercial vessel owner may transfer his or her commercial use mooring permit(s) to a new
owner if the pefmit holder's business, including the vessel for which the commercial use mooting permit(s)
was issued by the division, is sold or under a contract of sale, subject to:

(1) The buyer's submitting an application for a commercial use mooring permit for
the same type of business or another type of business that would qualify for a
commercial use mooring permit and all applicable documentation;

(2) Payment of the commercial use mooring permit transfer fee for transfers pursuant
to Pda 508.01(a), provided that fees paid in the form of a check or a money order
shall be made payable to "Pease Development authority, Division of Ports and
Harbors;" and

(3) Approval of the transfer by the authority upon the buyer's showing that he or she
has complied with all the requirements for a commercial use mooring permit.

(b) The owner of a water-dependent business as described in Pda 502.30(b) may transfer his or her
commercial use mooring permit(s) to a new owner if the permit holder's business is sold or under contract

of sale, subject to:

(1) The buyer's submitting an application for a commercial use mooring permit for a
water-dependent business as described in Pda 502.30(b) and all applicable
documentation; '

(2) Payment of the commercial use water dependent business mooring permit
transfer fee for transfers pursuant to Pda 508.01(b), provided that fees paid in the
form of a check or a money order shall be made payable to "Pease Development
Authority, Division of Ports and Harbors;" and

(3) Approval of the transfer by the authority upon the buyer's showing that he or she
has complied with all the requirements for a commercial use mooring permit.

(c) The division shall only consider written transfer requests made by the owner of record and
mailed or hand delivered to its office at:

Deliver To: Mail To:

Pease Development Authority Pease Development Authority
Division of Ports and Harbors Division of Ports and Hatbors
555 Market Street 555 Market Street
Portsmouth, NH 03801 Portsmouth, NH 03801

(d) If the holder of a commercial use mooriﬁg permit ceases operation of the commercial entity for
which the permit was issued, the permit shall lapse.



